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Part I
Item 1. Description of Business
Background

Revlon, Inc. (and together with its subsidiaries, the “Company”) conducts its business exclusively through
its direct subsidiary, Revlon Consumer Products Corporation (“Products Corporation”) manufactures, markets and
sells an extensive array of cosmetics and skin care, fragrances and personal care products. Revlon is one of the
world's best-known names in cosmetics and is a leading mass-market cosmetics brand. The Company believes that its
global brand name recognition, product quality and marketing experience have enabled it to create one of the strongest
consumer brand franchises in the world. The Company's products are marketed under such well-known brand names
as Revlon, ColorStay, Revlon Age Defying, and Skinlights, as well as Almay and Ultima Il in cosmetics; Almay
Kinetin, Vitamin C Absolutes, Eterna 27, Ultima Il and Jeanne Gatineau in skin care; Charlie and Fire & Ice in
fragrances; and High Dimension, Flex, Mitchum, Colorsilk, Jean Naté and Bozzano in personal care products. To
further strengthen its consumer brand franchises, the Company markets each core brand with a distinct and uniform
global image, including packaging and advertising, while retaining the flexibility to tailor products to local and regional
preferences.

The Company was founded by Charles Revson, who revolutionized the cosmetics industry by introducing nail
enamels matched to lipsticks in fashion colors over 70 years ago. Today, the Company has the number three position in
the color cosmetics category in the U.S. mass-market distribution channel and leading market positions in a number of
its principal product categories, including the lip, face makeup and nail enamel categories. The Company also has
leading market positions in several product categories in certain markets outside of the United States, including in
Australia, Canada, Mexico and South Africa. The Company’s products are sold in more than 100 countries across five
continents.

All United States market share and market position data herein for the Company’s brands are based upon
retail dollar sales, which are derived from ACNielsen data. ACNielsen measures retail sales volume of products sold in
the United States mass-market distribution channel. Such data represent ACNielsen’s estimates based upon data
gathered by ACNielsen from market samples and are therefore subject to some degree of variance. Additionally, as of
August 4, 2001, AC Nielsen’s data does not reflect sales volume from Wal-Mart, Inc.

Recent Developments

On November 26, 2001 Products Corporation issued and sold $363 million in aggregate principal amount
of 12% Senior Secured Notes due 2005 (the “12% Notes™) at 96.569%, in a private placement, receiving gross
proceeds of $350.5 million.

On November 30, 2001 Products Corporation entered into a new credit agreement (the “2001 Credit
Agreement"). The 2001 Credit Agreement provides up to $250.0 million in credit facilities comprised of $117.9
million in a term loan facility and $132.1 million in a multi-currency revolving credit facility (the issuance of the
12% Notes and the 2001 Credit Agreement are referred to herein as the “2001 Refinancing Transactions”). The
proceeds from the offering of the 12% Notes along with borrowings under the 2001 Credit Agreement were used to
repay all amounts outstanding under the 1997 Credit Agreement (as hereinafter defined) and to pay fees and
expenses incurred in connection with the 2001 Refinancing Transactions, and the balance is available for general
corporate purposes. On or before February 25, 2002, Products Corporation is required to file a registration
statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission™) with respect to an offer to exchange
the 12% Notes for registered notes with substantially the same terms (the “Exchange Offer”).

Products Corporation’s obligations under the 12% Notes are secured on a second-priority basis by
substantially the same collateral that secures the 2001 Credit Agreement on a first-priority basis, which includes, with
certain limited exceptions, Products Corporation’s capital stock, substantially all of Products Corporation’s non-real
property assets in the United States, Products Corporation’s facility in Oxford, North Carolina, the capital stock of
Products Corporation’s domestic subsidiaries and 66% of the capital stock of Products Corporation’s first-tier foreign
subsidiaries.



Effective February 14, 2002, Jeffrey M. Nugent, the Company's former President and Chief Executive
Officer, resigned from employment with the Company. On February 19, 2002, the Company announced its

appointment of Jack L. Stahl as its President and Chief Executive Officer.

Products

The Company manufactures and markets a variety of products worldwide. The following table sets forth the

Company’s principal brands and certain selected products.

PERSONAL
BRAND COSMETICS SKIN CARE FRAGRANCES CARE
PRODUCTS
Revlon Revlon Eterna 27 Charlie High Dimension
ColorStay Vitamin C Absolutes Ciara Colorsilk
Revlon Age Defying Revlon Absolutes  Fire & Ice Frost & Glow
Super Lustrous Absolutely Fabulous ColorStay
Moon Drops Flex
New Complexion Outrageous
Absolutely Fabulous Agquamarine
Line & Shine Mitchum
Skinlights Lady Mitchum
Super Top Speed Hi & Dri
Shine Control Mattifying Jean Naté
High Dimension Revlon Beauty
Illuminance Tools
Wet/Dry
Everylash
Street\Wear
Almay Almay Almay Kinetin Almay
Time-Off Almay MilkPlus
Amazing
One Coat
Skin Stays Clean
Beyond Powder
Organic Fluoride Plus
Ultima 11 Ultima Il Glowtion U Il Sheer Scent
Beautiful Nutrient Vital Radiance Ultimately U
Wonderwear CHR
Full Moisture LightCaptor-C
Glowtion
Pucker & Pout
Ultimate Edition
Significant Jeanne Gatineau Jeanne Gatineau Bozzano
Regional Brands Cutex Juvena

Cosmetics and Skin Care. The Company sells a broad range of cosmetics and skin care products designed to
fulfill specifically identified consumer needs, principally priced in the upper range of the mass-market distribution
channel, including lip makeup, nail color and nail care products, eye and face makeup and skin care products such as
lotions, cleansers, creams, toners and moisturizers. Many of the Company's products incorporate patented,
patent-pending or proprietary technology.

F-3



The Company markets several different lines of Revlon lip makeup (which includes lipstick, lip gloss and
liner). The Company's ColorStay lipcolor, which uses patented transfer-resistant technology that provides long wear,
is produced in approximately 38 shades. ColorStay Liquid Lip and ColorStay Lip Shine, a patented lip technology
introduced in 1999, is produced in approximately 64 shades and builds on the strengths of the ColorStay foundation by
offering long-wearing benefits in a new product form, which enhances comfort and shine. Super Lustrous lipstick is
produced in approximately 70 shades. Moon Drops, a moisturizing lipstick, is produced in approximately 30 shades.
Line & Shine utilizes an innovative product form, combining lipliner and lip gloss in one package, and is produced in
approximately 8 shades. Revlon MoistureStay uses patented technology to moisturize the lips even after the color
wears off, and is produced in approximately 40 shades. In 2001, the Company launched Absolutely Fabulous
Lipcream, a new premium line of emollient-rich lip color which is produced in 30 shades.

The Company's nail color and nail care lines include enamels, cuticle preparations and enamel removers. The
Company's flagship Revlon nail enamel is produced in approximately 64 shades and uses a patented formula that
provides consumers with improved wear, application, shine and gloss in a toluene-free and formaldehyde-free formula.
In 2001, the Company launched Super Top Speed nail enamel, currently available in approximately 48 shades,
containing a patented speed drying polymer formula which sets in 60 seconds. Revlon has the number two position
in nail enamel in the United States mass-market distribution channel. The Company also sells Cutex nail polish
remover and nail care products in certain countries outside the United States.

The Company sells face makeup, including foundation, powder, blush and concealers, under such Revlon
brand names as Revlon Age Defying, which is targeted for women in the over 35 age bracket; ColorStay, which uses
patented transfer-resistant technology that provides long wear and won’t rub off benefits; and New Complexion, for
consumers in the 18 to 34 age bracket. In 2001, the Company launched Skinlights skin brighteners, that brightens skin
with sheer washes of color, which created an entirely new category in color cosmetics.

The Company's eye makeup products include mascaras, eyeliners, eye shadows and brow color. ColorStay
eyecolor, mascara and brow color, Everylash mascara, Softstroke eyeliners and Revlon Wet/Dry eye shadows are
targeted for women in the 18 to 49 age bracket. In 2001, the Company launched Illuminance, an eye shadow that
“brightens up eyes”, and High Dimension mascara and eyeliners.

The Company's Almay brand consists of a complete line of hypo-allergenic, dermatologist-tested,
fragrance-free cosmetics and skin care products targeted for consumers who want "a good, healthy for you,” hypo-
allergenic product. Almay products include lip makeup, nail color, eye and face makeup and skin care products. The
Almay brand flagship One Coat franchise consists of lip makeup and eye makeup products including mascara and
eye shadow. The Company also sells Skin Stays Clean liquid and compact foundation makeup with its patented
“clean pore complex.” The Almay Amazing Lasting Collection features long-wearing mascaras and foundations. In
2001, the Company launched Almay Kinetin Skincare Advanced Anti-Aging Series featuring Kinetin, in a patented
technology.

The Company’s StreetWear brand consists of a quality, value-priced line of nail enamels, mascaras, lip and
eye liners, lip glosses and body accessories that are targeted for the young, beauty savvy consumer.

The Company's premium-priced cosmetics and skin care products are sold under the Ultima 11 brand name,
which is the Company's flagship premium-priced brand sold throughout the world. Ultima Il products include lip
makeup, eye and face makeup and skin care products including Glowtion, a line of skin brighteners that combines skin
care and color; Full Moisture foundation and lipcolor, Vital Radiance, CHR and LightCaptor-C skin care products;
the Beautiful Nutrient collection, a complete line of nourishing makeup that provides advanced nutrient protection
against dryness; and Wonderwear. The Wonderwear collection includes a long-wearing foundation that uses
patented technology, cheek and eyecolor products that use proprietary technology providing long wear, and
Wonderwear lipstick, which uses patented transfer-resistant technology.

The Company sells Revlon Beauty Tools, which include nail and eye grooming tools such as clippers,
scissors, files, tweezers and eye lash curlers. Revlon Beauty Tools are sold individually and in sets under the Revlon
brand name and are the number one brand in the United States mass-market distribution channel.



The Company's skin care products, including moisturizers, are sold under brand names including Eterna 27,
Vitamin C Absolutes, Revlon Absolutes, Almay Kinetin, Almay Milk-Plus, and Ultima Il Glowtion, Ultima Il
CHR, Ultima Il LightCaptor-C and Vital Radiance. In addition, the Company sells skin care products in
international markets under internationally recognized brand names and under various regional brands, including the
Company's premium-priced Jeanne Gatineau. In 2001, the Company launched Almay Kinetin Skincare Advanced
Anti-Aging Series featuring Kinetin, a patented technology.

Personal Care Products. The Company sells a broad line of personal care consumer products, which
complements its core cosmetics lines and enables the Company to meet the consumer's broader beauty care needs. In
the mass-market distribution channel, the Company sells haircare, antiperspirant and other personal care products,
including the Flex and Aquamarine haircare lines throughout the world and the Bozzano and Juvena brands in Brazil;
as well as Colorsilk, Frost & Glow and ColorStay hair coloring lines throughout most of the world; and the
Mitchum, Lady Mitchum and Hi & Dri antiperspirant brands throughout the world. The Company also markets
hypo-allergenic personal care products, including moisturizers and antiperspirants, under the Almay brand. In 2001,
the Company launched its High Dimension hair color, a revolutionary 10-minute home permanent hair color,
compared to many of our competitors’” home permanent hair color which require two to three times as long.

Fragrances. The Company sells a selection of moderately priced and premium-priced fragrances, including
perfumes, eau de toilettes, colognes and body sprays. The Company's portfolio includes fragrances such as Charlie,
Ciara, Fire & Ice and Absolutely Fabulous.

Marketing

The Company markets extensive consumer product lines at a range of retail prices primarily through the mass-
market distribution channel and outside the U.S. also markets select premium lines through demonstrator-assisted
channels. Each line is distinctively positioned and is marketed globally with consistently recognizable logos,
packaging and advertising. The Company's existing product lines are carefully tailored, and new product lines are
developed, to target specific consumer needs as measured by focus groups and other market research techniques.

The Company undertook a comprehensive review of its advertising strategy in late 2000 and early 2001.
This resulted in a shift from the historical use of an in-house advertising division to create and execute advertising to
the use of outside agencies to develop advertising campaigns for a number of the Company’s key new product
launches and to bring new energy to the Revlon and Almay brands, respectively. Additionally in 2002 the
Company will consolidate all of its advertising for the Revlon and Almay brands into a single advertising agency.
The Company believes that this shift to a leading outside agency will increase the effectiveness and relevance of its
worldwide advertising, as well as result in more efficient media placement.

The Company uses print and television advertising and point-of-sale merchandising, including displays and
samples. The Company's marketing emphasizes a uniform global image and product for its portfolio of core brands,
including Revlon, ColorStay, Revion Age Defying, Almay, Ultima 11, Flex, Charlie, and Mitchum. The Company
coordinates advertising campaigns with in-store promotional and other marketing activities. The Company develops
jointly with retailers carefully tailored advertising, point-of-purchase and other focused marketing programs. The
Company uses network and spot television advertising, national cable advertising and print advertising in major
general interest, women's fashion and women's service magazines, as well as coupons, magazine inserts and
point-of-sale testers. The Company also uses cooperative advertising programs with some retailers, supported by
Company-paid or Company-subsidized demonstrators, and coordinated in-store promotions and displays.

The Company also has developed unique marketing materials such as the "Revlon Report," a glossy, color
pamphlet distributed on merchandising units, which highlights seasonal and other fashion and color trends, describes
the Company's products that address those trends and contains coupons, rebate offers and other promotional material to
encourage consumers to try the Company's products. Other marketing materials designed to introduce the Company's
newest products to consumers and encourage trial and purchase include point-of-sale testers on the Company's display
units that provide information about, and permit consumers to test, the Company's products, thereby achieving the
benefits of an in-store demonstrator without the corresponding cost, magazine inserts containing samples of the
Company's newest products, trial-size products and “shade samplers,” which are collections of trial-size products in
different shades. Additionally, in 2001 the Company relaunched its website devoted to the Revlon brand,
www.revlon.com, and launched a new website for its Almay product lineup, www.almay.com. Each of these websites




feature current product and promotional information for the Revlon and Almay brands, respectively, and are updated
regularly to stay current with the Company’s new product launches and other advertising and promotional campaigns.

New Product Development and Research and Development

The Company believes that it is an industry leader in the development of innovative and
technologically-advanced consumer products. The Company's marketing and research and development groups
identify consumer needs and shifts in consumer preferences in order to develop new products, tailor line extensions
and promotions and redesign or reformulate existing products to satisfy such needs or preferences. The Company's
research and development group comprises departments specialized in the technologies critical to the Company's
various product categories, as well as an advanced technology department that promotes inter-departmental,
cross-functional research on a wide range of technologies to develop new and innovative products. The Company
independently develops substantially all of its new products.

As part of the Company’s 2001 strategic plan, one of the Company’s key objectives was to reinvigorate the
Company’s brands by developing a pipeline of innovative new products. In 2001, the Company created one of its
most extensive line-ups of new products since the development and introduction of ColorStay in the mid-1990s,
with major new product launches including: Skinlights skin brighteners, that brightens skin with sheer washes of
color, which created an entirely new category in color cosmetics; Absolutely Fabulous Lipcream, a new premium line
of emollient-rich lip color; and Super Top Speed nail enamel, currently available in 48 shades, containing a patented
speed drying polymer formula which sets in 60 seconds. In 2001, the Company launched Illuminance, an eye shadow
that “brightens up eyes.” Also in 2001, the Company launched Almay Kinetin Skincare Advanced Anti-Aging
Series featuring Kinetin, in a patented technology, and High Dimension hair color, a revolutionary 10-minute home
permanent hair color, compared to many of the Company’s competitors’ home permanent hair color which require
two to three times as long.

The Company believes that its Edison, New Jersey facility is one of the most extensive cosmetics research and
development facilities in the United States. The scientists at the Edison facility are responsible for all of the Company's
new product research worldwide, performing research for new products, ideas, concepts and packaging. The research
and development group at the Edison facility also performs extensive safety and quality tests on the Company's
products, including toxicology, microbiology and package testing. Additionally, quality control testing is performed at
each manufacturing facility.

As of December 31, 2001, the Company employed approximately 160 people in its research and development
activities, including specialists in pharmacology, toxicology, chemistry, microbiology, engineering, biology,
dermatology and quality control. In 2001, 2000 and 1999, the Company spent approximately $24.4 million, $27.3
million and $32.9 million, respectively, on research and development activities.

Manufacturing and Related Operations and Raw Materials

Since late 2000, the Company completed a number of measures related to rationalizing its global
manufacturing capacity, which are designed to substantially reduce costs and increase operating efficiencies. The
Company sold or closed approximately 55% of its manufacturing and distribution facility square footage, including:

e the sale of the Company’s Phoenix, Arizona facility in May 2001 (a portion of which the
Company leased back through the end of 2001);

e the shutdown of the Company’s manufacturing facility in Mississauga, Canada;

» the sale of the Company’s manufacturing facility in Maesteg, Wales (UK) in July 2001; as part of
this sale the Company entered into a long-term supply agreement with the purchaser pursuant to
which the purchaser manufactures and supplies to the Company cosmetics and personal care
products for sale throughout Europe;

» the closure of the Company’s manufacturing facilities in Auckland, New Zealand (which was
completed in late 2000), which manufacturing activities were consolidated into the Company’s
facility in Australia; and

» the sale of the Company’s manufacturing facility in Sdo Paulo, Brazil in July 2001 (which was
completed as part of the sale of the Company’s Colorama brand); as part of this sale the purchaser
manufactures for the Company in Brazil.



In connection with the sale of the Phoenix facility and the closing of the Canadian facility, the Company
consolidated North American manufacturing into its Oxford, North Carolina facility, which consolidation was
completed in late 2001. Revlon Beauty Tools for sale throughout the world are manufactured and/or assembled at the
Company's Irvington, New Jersey facility.

During 2001, cosmetics and personal care products also were produced at the Company's facilities in
Venezuela, Brazil (which was sold as noted above), France and South Africa and personal care products in Mexico.
The Company continually reviews its manufacturing needs against its manufacturing capacity for opportunities to
reduce costs and produce more efficiently.

The Company purchases raw materials and components throughout the world. The Company continuously
pursues reductions in cost of goods through the global sourcing of raw materials and components from qualified
vendors, utilizing its large purchasing capacity to maximize cost savings. The global sourcing of raw materials and
components from accredited vendors also ensures the quality of the raw materials and components. The Company
believes that alternate sources of raw materials and components exist and does not anticipate any significant shortages
of, or difficulty in obtaining, such materials.

Distribution

The Company's products are sold in more than 100 countries across five continents. The Company's
worldwide sales force had approximately 500 people as of December 31, 2001, including a dedicated sales force for
cosmetics, skin care, fragrance and personal care products in the mass-market distribution channel in the U.S. In
addition, the Company utilizes sales representatives and independent distributors to serve specialized markets and
related distribution channels.

United States and Canada. Net sales in the United States and Canada accounted for approximately 68% of
the Company's 2001 net sales, a majority of which were made in the mass-market distribution channel. The Company
also sells a broad range of consumer products to United States Government military exchanges and commissaries. The
Company licenses its trademarks to select manufacturers for products that the Company believes have the potential to
extend the Company's brand names and image. As of December 31, 2001, 11 licenses were in effect relating to 14
product categories to be marketed principally in the mass-market distribution channel. Pursuant to such licenses, the
Company retains strict control over product design and development, product quality, advertising and use of its
trademarks. These licensing arrangements offer opportunities for the Company to generate revenues and cash flow
through royalties.

As part of its strategy to increase consumption of the Company's products at retail, the Company has
increased the number of retail merchandisers who stock and maintain the Company's point of sale retail displays to
insure high selling SKUs are in stock and to insure the optimal presentation of the Company's product in retail
outlets. Additionally, the Company has upgraded the technology available to its sales force to provide real-time
information regarding inventory levels and other relevant information.

The Company also intends to update its retail presence and is evaluating and testing in retail stores a new
merchandising wall that is designed to help drive impulse purchases by consumers. The Company also intends to
update the image of the Revlon brand through the introduction of new graphics and package designs.

International. Net sales outside the United States and Canada accounted for approximately 32% of the
Company's 2001 net sales. The ten largest countries in terms of these sales, which include the United Kingdom,
Mexico, Australia, Brazil, France, South Africa, Venezuela, Hong Kong, Argentina and Italy, accounted for
approximately 25% of the Company's net sales in 2001. The Company distributes its products through drug
stores/chemists, hypermarkets/mass volume retailers and variety stores. The Company also distributes outside the
United States through department stores and specialty stores such as perfumeries. At December 31, 2001, the
Company actively sold its products through wholly-owned subsidiaries established in 20 countries outside of the
United States and through a large number of distributors and licensees elsewhere around the world.



Customers

The Company's principal customers include large mass volume retailers and chain drug stores, including such
well-known retailers as Wal-Mart, Target, Kmart, Walgreen, Rite Aid, CVS, Eckerd, Albertsons Drugs and Longs in
the United States, Boots in the United Kingdom, and Wal-Mart internationally. Wal-Mart and its affiliates worldwide
accounted for approximately 19.9% of the Company's 2001 consolidated net sales, before the EITF Issue 01-9
adjustment. As a result of the Company’s dispositions of certain non-core assets, including certain international
businesses, the Company expects that for future periods a small number of other customers will, in the aggregate,
account for a large portion of the Company’s net sales. Although the Company’s loss of Wal-Mart or one or more
other customers that may account for a significant portion of the Company’s sales, or any significant decrease in sales
to any of these customers, could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition or
results of operations. The Company has no reason to believe that any such loss of customer or decrease in sales will
occur. In January 2002, Kmart Corporation filed a bankruptcy petition for reorganization under Chapter 11 of the U.S.
Bankruptcy Code. Less than 5% of the Company’s 2001 net sales were made to Kmart. The Company plans to
continue doing business with Kmart for the foreseeable future and accordingly, based upon the information currently
available, believes that Kmart’s bankruptcy proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
business, financial condition or results of operations.

Competition

The consumer products business is highly competitive, characterized by vigorous competition throughout the
world. The Company competes on the basis of numerous factors, including brand recognition, product quality,
performance and price and the extent to which consumers are educated on product benefits, each of which have a
marked influence on consumers' choices among competing products and brands.  Advertising, promotion,
merchandising and packaging, and the timing of new product introductions and line extensions, also have a significant
impact on buying decisions, and the structure and quality of the Company’s sales force affect product reception,
in-store position, permanent display space and inventory levels in retail outlets. The Company has experienced declines
in its market shares in the U.S. mass market in various product categories since late 1998 and there can be no assurance
that such declines will not continue. In addition, the Company competes in selected product categories against a
number of multinational companies, some of which are larger and have substantially greater resources than the
Company, and which may therefore have the ability to spend more aggressively on advertising and marketing and have
more flexibility to respond to changing business and economic conditions than the Company. Certain of the
Company’s competitors have increased their spending on discounting and promotional activities in U.S. mass-market
cosmetics. In addition to products sold in the mass-market and demonstrator-assisted distribution channels, the
Company's products also compete with similar products sold door-to-door or through mail order or telemarketing by
representatives of direct sales companies. The Company's principal competitors include L'Oréal S.A., The Procter &
Gamble Company, Unilever N.V. and The Estée Lauder Companies Inc.

Patents, Trademarks and Proprietary Technology

The Company's major trademarks are registered in the United States and in well over 100 other countries, and
the Company considers trademark protection to be very important to its business. Significant trademarks include
Revlon, ColorStay, Revion Age Defying, Skinlights, Absolutely Fabulous, High Dimension, Frost & Glow,
IHluminance, Flex, Cutex (outside the U.S.), Mitchum, Eterna 27, Ultima Il, Almay, Almay Kinetin, Charlie, Jean
Naté, Fire & Ice, Moon Drops, Super Lustrous, Wonderwear and Colorsilk.

The Company utilizes certain proprietary or patented technologies in the formulation or manufacture of a
number of the Company's products, including ColorStay lipcolor and cosmetics, ColorStay hair color, classic Revlon
nail enamel, Skinlights skin brightener, High Dimension hair color, Super Top Speed nail enamel, Revlon Age
Defying foundation and cosmetics, New Complexion makeup, Wonderwear foundation and lipstick, Almay Kinetin
skin care, Time-Off makeup, Amazing Lasting cosmetics, Almay One Coat eye makeup and cosmetics and Vital
Radiance skin care products. The Company also protects certain of its packaging and component concepts through
design patents. The Company considers its proprietary technology and patent protection to be important to its business.



Government Regulation

The Company is subject to regulation by the Federal Trade Commission and the Food and Drug
Administration (the "FDA") in the United States, as well as various other federal, state, local and foreign regulatory
authorities. The Oxford, North Carolina manufacturing facility is registered with the FDA as a drug manufacturing
establishment, permitting the manufacture of cosmetics that contain over-the-counter drug ingredients such as
sunscreens. Compliance with federal, state, local and foreign laws and regulations pertaining to discharge of materials
into the environment, or otherwise relating to the protection of the environment, has not had, and is not anticipated to
have, a material effect upon the capital expenditures, earnings or competitive position of the Company. State and local
regulations in the United States that are designed to protect consumers or the environment have an increasing influence
on the Company’s product claims, contents and packaging.

Industry Segments, Foreign and Domestic Operations

The Company operates in a single segment. Certain geographic, financial and other information of the
Company is set forth in Note 18 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company.

Employees

As of December 31, 2001, the Company employed the equivalent of approximately 6,000 full-time persons.
As of December 31, 2001, approximately 130 of such employees in the United States were covered by collective
bargaining agreements. The Company believes that its employee relations are satisfactory. Although the Company has
experienced minor work stoppages of limited duration in the past in the ordinary course of business, such work
stoppages have not had a material effect on the Company's results of operations or financial condition.

Item 2. Properties

The following table sets forth as of December 31, 2001 the Company's major manufacturing, research and
warehouse/distribution facilities, all of which are owned except where otherwise noted.

Approximate Floor

Location Use Space Sq. Ft.
Oxford, North Carolina..................... Manufacturing, warehousing, distribution and office 1,012,000
Edison, New Jersey........cccooeveenereanens Research and office (leased) 175,000
Irvington, New Jersey......ccccovvvvvevenns Manufacturing, warehousing and office 96,000
Caracas, Venezuela..........ccocoevvvreennnns Manufacturing, distribution and office 145,000
Kempton Park, South Africa.............. Warehousing, distribution and office (leased) 127,000
Canberra, Australia........c..cc.ceevvvrnnnnn. Warehousing, distribution and office 125,000
Isando, South Africa.........cccccevvevenne. Manufacturing, warehousing, distribution and office 94,000

During 2001, Products Corporation sold or closed its facilities in Phoenix, Arizona and Mississauga,
Canada (and consolidated the cosmetics manufacturing operations into the Company’s Oxford, North Carolina
facility), Maesteg, Wales (UK), S&o Paulo, Brazil, and New Zealand (see “Manufacturing and Related Operations
and Raw Materials™). In addition to the facilities described above, the Company owns and leases additional facilities
in various areas throughout the world, including the lease for the Company's executive offices in New York, New York
(346,000 square feet, of which approximately 6,000 square feet were sublet to affiliates of the Company and
approximately 171,000 square feet were sublet to unaffiliated third parties as of December 31, 2001). Management
considers the Company's facilities to be well-maintained and satisfactory for the Company's operations, and believes
that the Company's facilities and third party contractual supplier arrangements provide sufficient capacity for its current
and expected production requirements.



Item 3. Legal Proceedings

The Company is involved in various routine legal proceedings incident to the ordinary course of its business.
The Company believes that the outcome of all pending legal proceedings in the aggregate is unlikely to have a material
adverse effect on the business or consolidated financial condition of the Company.

On April 17, 2000, the plaintiffs in the six purported class actions filed in October and November 1999 by
each of Thomas Comport, Boaz Spitz, Felix Ezeir and Amy Hoffman, Ted Parris, Jerry Krim and Dan Gavish
individually and allegedly on behalf of others similarly situated to them against Revlon, Inc., certain of its present
and former officers and directors and the parent of Revlon, Inc., REV Holdings Inc. (“REV Holdings”), alleging
among other things, violations of Rule 10b-5 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, filed an amended
complaint, which consolidated all of the actions under the caption “In Re Revlon, Inc. Securities Litigation” and
limited the alleged class to security purchasers during the period from October 29, 1997 through October 1, 1998.
In June 2000, the defendants moved to dismiss the amended complaint, which motion was denied in substantial part
in March 2001. The Company believes the allegations contained in the amended complaint are without merit and is
vigorously defending against them.

A purported class action lawsuit was filed on September 27, 2000, in the United States District Court for
the Southern District of New York on behalf of Dan Gavish, Tricia Fontan and Walter Fontan individually and
allegedly on behalf of all others similarly situated who purchased the securities of Revlon, Inc. and REV Holdings
between October 2, 1998 and September 30, 1999 (the "Second Gavish Action™). In November 2001, plaintiffs
amended their complaint. The amended complaint alleges, among other things, that Revlon, Inc., certain of its
present and former officers and directors and REV Holdings violated, among other things, Rule 10b-5 under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. In December 2001, the defendants moved to dismiss the amended complaint. The
Company believes the allegations in the amended complaint are without merit and, if its motion to dismiss is not
granted, intends to vigorously defend against them.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a VVote of Security Holders

No matter was submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered by
this report.
PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

MacAndrews & Forbes Holdings Inc. (“MacAndrews Holdings”), a corporation wholly owned indirectly
through Mafco Holdings Inc. (“Mafco Holdings” and, collectively with MacAndrews Holdings, “MacAndrews &
Forbes™), which is indirectly wholly owned by Ronald O. Perelman, through REV Holdings, beneficially owns (i)
11,650,000 shares of the Class A Common Stock of Revlon, Inc. (representing approximately 57% of the outstanding
shares of Class A Common Stock of Revlon, Inc.), (ii) all of the outstanding 31,250,000 shares of Class B Common
Stock of Revlon, Inc., which together with the shares referenced in clause (i) above represent approximately 83% of the
outstanding shares of Revlon, Inc. common stock, and (iii) all of the outstanding 4,333 shares of Series B Convertible
Preferred Stock of Revlon, Inc. (each of which is entitled to 100 votes and each of which is convertible into 100 shares
of Class A Common Stock, which conversion rights are subject to approval by Revlon, Inc.’s stockholders at its 2002
Annual Meeting of Stockholders). Based on the shares referenced in clauses (i), (ii) and (iii) above, Mr. Perelman
through Mafco Holdings (through REV Holdings) has approximately 97% of the combined voting power of the
outstanding shares of the Company entitled to vote at its 2002 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. The remaining
8,866,135 shares of Revlon, Inc.’s Class A Common Stock outstanding at December 31, 2001 are owned by the public.
As of December 31, 2001, there were 792 holders of record of Revlon, Inc.’s Class A Common Stock. No dividends
were declared or paid during 2001 or 2000. The terms of the 2001 Credit Agreement, the 8 5/8% Notes, the 8 1/8%
Notes, the 9% Notes (each as hereinafter defined) and the 12% Notes currently restrict the ability of Products
Corporation to pay dividends or make distributions to Revlon, Inc. See the Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Company and the Notes thereto.
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The table below shows the Company’s high and low quarterly stock prices for the years ended December 31,
2001 and 2000.

2001 Quarterly Stock Prices (1)

1st 2nd 3rd 4th

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
HIgN. . $ 6.15 $ 7.25 $ 8.95 $ 7.25
LOW. .ttt 4.42 4.34 4.77 5.05

2000 Quarterly Stock Prices (1)

1st 2nd 3rd 4th
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
HIgh. oo $ 1100 $ 9.75 $ 8.125  $ 7.375
LOW...tiiiitieee e 6.8125 6.00 5.875 3.72

(1) Represents the closing price per share on the New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE”), the exchange on
which shares of the Company’s Class A Common Stock are listed. The Company’s symbol is REV.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The Consolidated Statements of Operations Data for each of the years in the five-year period ended December
31, 2001 and the Balance Sheet Data as of December 31, 2001, 2000, 1999, 1998 and 1997 are derived from the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company, which have been audited by KPMG LLP, independent certified
public accountants. The Selected Consolidated Financial Data should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Company and the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements and “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”
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Year Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
(in millions)

Statements of Operations Data (a) (b) (c) (e):
NEL SAIES. ..o $ 13215 $ 14478 $ 1,709.9 $ 21497 $ 21564
Operating iNCOme (10SS).......cvueevrierereereeenen. 16.1 (d) 159 (f) (212.0) (9) 124.7 (h) 214.2 (i)
(Loss) income from continuing operations.... (150.2) (129.7) (370.9) (27.3) 56.6
Basic (loss) income from continuing

operations per common share.................. $ (87 $ (2.49) $ (712) % (052 $ 1.09
Diluted (loss) income from continuing

operations per common share.................. $ (87 $ (2.49) $ (712) % (052 $ 1.08
Weighted average number of

common shares outstanding: (j)

BASIC.....ovvrereeereei s 52.2 52.2 52.1 52.1 52.0
DIULEd. ..o 52.2 52.2 52.1 52.1 52.4
December 31,
2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
(in millions)

Balance Sheet Data (b) (e):
Total ASSELS.....vvvrvrreieer s $ 9976 $ 11018 $ 15589 $ 18310 $ 17576
Long-term debt, including current portion.... 1,643.6 1,563.1 1,772.1 1,660.0 1,425.2
Total stockholders' deficiency..........c.cccvenes (1,282.7) (1,206.7) (1,015.0) (647.7) (458.8)

(@) In November 2001, the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force (the “EITF”) reached consensus on EITF Issue 01-9
entitled, “Accounting for Consideration Given by a Vendor to a Customer or a Reseller of the Vendor’s Products” (the
“Guidelines™), which addresses when sales incentives and discounts should be recognized, as well as where the related
revenues and expenses should be classified in the financial statements. The Company adopted the earlier portion of
these new Guidelines (formerly EITF Issue 00-14) addressing certain sales incentives effective January 1, 2001, and
accordingly, all prior period financial statements reflect the implementation of the earlier portion of the Guidelines.

(b) In September 2001, Revlon, Inc. acquired from Revlon Holdings Inc. (“Holdings”), an affiliate and an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of Mafco Holdings, and contributed to Products Corporation all of the assets and liabilities of
the Charles of the Ritz business. The transaction has been accounted for at historical cost in a manner similar to that of
a pooling of interests and, accordingly, all prior period financials statements presented have been restated as if the
acquisition took place at the beginning of such periods. (See Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

(c) On July 16, 2001, the Company completed the disposition of the Colorama brand in Brazil. Accordingly, the
selected financial data includes the results of operations of the Colorama brand through the date of disposition.

(d) Includes restructuring costs and other, net, and additional consolidation costs associated with the shutdown of the
Phoenix and Canada facilities of $38.1 million and $43.6 million, respectively. (See Note 2 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements).

(e) On March 30, 2000 and May 8, 2000, the Company completed the dispositions of its worldwide professional
products line and the Plusbelle brand in Argentina, respectively. Accordingly, the selected financial data include the
results of operations of the professional products line and the Plusbelle brand through the dates of their respective
dispositions.
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(f) Includes restructuring costs and other, net, and additional consolidation costs associated with the shutdown of the
Phoenix facility of $54.1 million and $4.9 million, respectively. (See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

(9) Includes restructuring costs and other, net of $40.2 million and executive separation costs of $22.0 million. (See
Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

(h) Includes restructuring costs and other, net, aggregating $35.8 million.
(i)Includes restructuring costs and other, net, of $3.6 million.

(1) Represents the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period. (See Note 1 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements).

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
(dollars in millions)

Overview

The Company operates in a single segment and manufactures, markets and sells an extensive array of
cosmetics and skin care, fragrances and personal care products. In addition, the Company has a licensing group.

On March 30, 2000, May 8, 2000, and July 16, 2001 Products Corporation completed the dispositions of its
worldwide professional products line, Plusbelle brand in Argentina and Colorama brand in Brazil, respectively.
Accordingly, the Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements include the results of operations of the professional
products line and the Plusbelle and Colorama brands through the dates of their respective dispositions.

During the first quarter of 2001, to reflect the integration of management reporting responsibilities, the
Company reclassified Canada’s results from its international operations to its United States operations.
Management’s discussion and analysis data reflects this change for all periods presented.

In November 2001, the EITF reached consensus on EITF Issue 01-9, which addresses when sales incentives
and discounts should be recognized, as well as where the related revenues and expenses should be classified in the
financial statements. The Company adopted the earlier portion of these new Guidelines (formerly EITF Issue 00-14)
addressing certain sales incentives effective January 1, 2001, and accordingly, all prior period financial statements
reflect the implementation of the earlier portion of the Guidelines.

In September 2001, Revlon, Inc. acquired from Holdings and contributed to Products Corporation all of the
assets and liabilities of the Charles of the Ritz business. The transaction has been accounted for at historical cost in a
manner similar to that of a pooling of interests and, accordingly, all prior period financials statements presented have
been restated as if the acquisition took place at the beginning of such periods.

Discussion of Critical Accounting Policies:

In the ordinary course of business, the Company has made a number of estimates and assumptions relating to
the reporting of results of operations and financial condition in the preparation of its financial statements in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Actual results could differ significantly
from those estimates under different assumptions and conditions. The Company believes that the following discussion
addresses the Company’s most critical accounting policies, which are those that are most important to the portrayal of
the Company’s financial condition and results and require management’s most difficult, subjective and complex
judgments, often as a result of the need to make estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain.

Sales Returns:
The Company allows customers to return their unsold products when they meet certain Company-

established criteria as outlined in the Company’s trade terms. The Company regularly reviews and revises when
deemed necessary its estimates of sales returns based primarily upon actual returns, planned product
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discontinuances, and promotional sales, which would permit customers to return items based upon the Company’s
trade terms. The Company records estimated sales returns as a reduction to sales, cost of sales and accounts
receivable and an increase to inventory. Cost of sales includes the cost of refurbishment of returned products.
Returned products which are recorded as inventories are valued based upon expected realizablity. The physical
condition and marketability of the returned products are the major factors considered by the Company in estimating
realizable value. Actual returns, as well as realized values on returned products, may differ significantly, either
favorably or unfavorably, from our estimates if factors such as economic conditions, customer inventory levels or
competitive conditions differ from our expectations.

Trade Support Costs:

In order to support the retail trade, the Company has various performance-based arrangements with retailers
to reimburse them for all or a portion of their promotional activities related to the Company’s products. The
Company regularly reviews and revises, when deemed necessary, estimates of costs to the Company for these
promotions based on estimates of what has been incurred by the retailers. Actual costs incurred by the Company
may differ significantly if factors such as the level and success of the retailers’ programs or other conditions differ
from our expectations.

Inventories:

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market value. Cost is principally determined by the first-in,
first-out method. The Company records adjustments to the value of inventory based upon its forecasted plans to sell its
inventories. The physical condition (e.g., age and quality) of the inventories is also considered in establishing its
valuation. These adjustments are estimates, which could vary significantly, either favorably or unfavorably, from actual
requirements if future economic conditions, customer inventory levels or competitive conditions differ from our
expectations.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Other Assets:

Property, plant and equipment is recorded at cost and is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of such assets. Changes in circumstances such as technological advances, changes to the Company’s
business model or changes in the Company’s capital strategy can result in the actual useful lives differing from the
Company’s estimates. In those cases where the Company determines that the useful life of property, plant and
equipment should be shortened, the Company would depreciate the net book value in excess of the salvage value, over
its revised remaining useful life thereby increasing depreciation expense. Factors such as changes in the planned use of
fixtures or software or closing of facilities could result in shortened useful lives.

Long-lived assets, including fixed assets and intangibles other than goodwill, are reviewed by the Company
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of any such asset may
not be recoverable. The estimate of cash flow is based upon, among other things, certain assumptions about expected
future operating performance. The Company’s estimates of undiscounted cash flow may differ from actual cash flow
due to, among other things, technological changes, economic conditions, changes to its business model or changes in its
operating performance. If the sum of the undiscounted cash flows (excluding interest) is less than the carrying value,
the Company recognizes an impairment loss, measured as the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair
value of the asset.

Pension Benefits:

The Company sponsors pension and other retirement plans in various forms covering substantially all
employees who meet eligibility requirements. Several statistical and other factors which attempt to anticipate future
events are used in calculating the expense and liability related to the plans. These factors include assumptions about
the discount rate, expected return on plan assets and rate of future compensation increases as determined by the
Company, within certain guidelines. In addition, the Company’s actuarial consultants also use subjective factors such
as withdrawal and mortality rates to estimate these factors. The actuarial assumptions used by the Company may differ
materially from actual results due to changing market and economic conditions, higher or lower withdrawal rates or
longer or shorter life spans of participants. These differences may result in a significant impact to the amount of
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pension expense recorded by the Company. Due to decreases in interest rates and declines in the income of assets in
the plans, it is expected that the pension expense for 2002 will be significantly higher than in recent years.

Results of Operations

In order to provide a more meaningful comparison of results from operations, the Company’s discussion is
presented on an ongoing operations basis. The following table sets forth certain summary unaudited data for the
Company for each of the last three years reconciling the Company’s actual as reported results to the ongoing
operations, after giving effect to the following: (i) the disposition of the worldwide professional products line, and
the Plusbelle and Colorama brands, assuming such transactions occurred on January 1, 1999; (ii) the elimination of
restructuring costs in the period incurred; and (iii) the elimination of additional costs associated with the closing of
the Phoenix and Canada facilities that were included in cost of sales and selling, general and administrative expenses
(“SG&A”) and executive severance costs that were included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the
period incurred (after giving effect thereto, the “Ongoing Operations™”). The adjustments are based upon available
information and certain assumptions that our management believes are reasonable and do not represent pro forma
adjustments prepared in accordance with Regulation S-X. The summary unaudited data for the Ongoing Operations
does not purport to represent the results of operations or our financial position that actually would have occurred had
the foregoing transactions referred to in (i) above been consummated on January 1, 1999.

Year Ended Decenmber 31, 2001: Product line,
brands and Restructuring
facilities costs and Ongoing
As reported sold other, net operations
NEL SALES. ...ttt $ 13215 $ (164) $ - $ 1,305.1
L0155 00 ] O 777.3 (6.5) 382 809.0
Selling, general and administrative eXpenses...........c.wene. 7231 ©.1 (5.4 708.6
Restructuring costs and other, Net............cocoveereeneerereneenas 381 - (38.1) -
Year Ended December 31, 2000: Product line,
brands and Restructuring
facilities costs and Ongoing
As reported sold other, net operations
NEL SAIES......oocvverirerectee ettt enens $ 14478 % 1441 $ - $ 1,303.7
Gross profit 8735 (77.8) 4.9 800.6
Selling, general and administrative eXpenses...........cweue. 8035 (72.2) - 731.3
Restructuring costs and other, Net..........ccovvveeereererreereenes 54.1 - (54.0) -
Year Ended December 31, 1999: Product line,
brands and Restructuring
facilities costs and Ongoing
As reported sold other, net operations
NEL SAIES......oocvvrerrerecrer ettt enens $ 1,709 $ (4411) 3 - $ 1,268.8
GrOSS PIOfit......oovececereereeseeesreesee s essesss s sssss s seens 983.6 (261.3) - 722.3
Selling, general and administrative eXpenses...........wene. 1,155.4 (231.8) (22.0) 901.6
Restructuring costs and other, Net.........cccovvveeereereereereenes 40.2 (3.9 (36.3) -
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Year ended December 31, 2001 compared with year ended December 31, 2000
Net sales

Net sales were $1,321.5 and $1,447.8 for 2001 and 2000, respectively, a decrease of $126.3, or 8.7% on a
reported basis (a decrease of 6.0% on a constant U.S. dollar basis). The decline in consolidated net sales for year ended
2001 as compared with the year ended 2000 is primarily due to the sale of the worldwide professional products line and
the Plusbelle brand in Argentina in the first and third quarters of 2000, respectively, and the Colorama brand in Brazil
in July of 2001.

Net sales of the Ongoing Operations were $1,305.1 and $1,303.7 for 2001 and 2000, respectively (an increase
of 2.6% on a constant U.S. dollar basis).

United States and Canada. Net sales in the United States and Canada were $901.0 for 2001 compared with
$895.8 for 2000, an increase of $5.2, or 0.6%. Net sales of the Company’s Ongoing Operations in the United States
and Canada were $901.0 for 2001, compared with $860.1 for 2000, an increase of $40.9, or 4.8%. The increase for
2001 of 4.8%, was driven primarily by lower sales returns and allowances of $55.7 as a result of the Company’s
revised trade terms, which was partially offset by reduced sales volume of $14.8. This volume decline is net of
$14.0 of increased sales in the fourth quarter of 2001 resulting from the decision by major U.S. retail customers to
shift planned plan-o-gram timing for 2002 new products.

International. Net sales in the Company’s international operations were $420.5 for the 2001, compared with
$552.0 for 2000, a decrease of $131.5, or 23.8% on a reported basis (a decrease of 17.7% on a constant U.S. dollar
basis). The decline for year ended 2001 as compared with the year ended 2000 is primarily due to the sale of the
worldwide professional products line and the Plusbelle brand in Argentina in 2000, respectively, and the Colorama
brand in Brazil in July of 2001.

Net sales in the Company’s international Ongoing Operations (“Ongoing International Operations”) were
$404.1 and $443.6 for 2001 and 2000, respectively, a decrease of $39.5, or 8.9%, on a reported basis (a decrease of
2.4% on a constant U.S. dollar basis).

Ongoing International Operations sales are divided by the Company into three geographic regions. In
Europe and Africa, which comprises Europe, the Middle East and Africa, net sales decreased by 8.8% on a reported
basis to $160.2 for 2001, as compared with 2000 (a decrease of 1.6% on a constant U.S. dollar basis). In Latin
America, which comprises Mexico, Central America, South America and Puerto Rico, net sales decreased by 7.4%
on a reported basis to $131.9 for 2001, as compared with 2000 (a decrease of 2.1% on a constant U.S. dollar basis).
In the Far East, net sales decreased by 10.8% on a reported basis to $112.0 for 2001, as compared with 2000 (a
decrease of 3.9% on a constant U.S. dollar basis). Net sales in the Company’s international operations may be
adversely affected by weak economic conditions, political uncertainties, adverse currency fluctuations, and
competitive activities.

The decrease in net sales for 2001, as compared to 2000, for Ongoing International Operations on a
comparable currency basis, was primarily due to the increased competitive activity in Japan, Hong Kong and
Australia (which factor the Company estimates contributed to an approximately 1.9% reduction in net sales), a
reduction in sales volume in certain tourist related markets in Latin America (which factor the Company estimates
contributed to an approximately 0.9% reduction in net sales), the conversion of an operation to a distributor in 2001
(which factor the Company estimates contributed to an approximately 0.9% reduction in net sales) and difficulties in
the economy and increased sales returns in the Company’s Argentine operation (which factor the Company
estimates contributed to an approximately 1.4% reduction in net sales), offset by increased new products in China,
Brazil, South Africa and Mexico (which factor the Company estimates contributed to an approximately 3.1%
increase in net sales).
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Gross profit

Gross profit was $777.3 for 2001, compared with $873.5 for 2000. As a percentage of net sales, gross
profit margins were 58.8% for 2001 compared with 60.3% for 2000. The decline in gross profit and gross profit
margin in 2001 compared to 2000 is due to $38.2 ($6.1 of which represents increased depreciation recorded for the
Phoenix facility — See Note 2) and $4.9 of additional consolidation costs associated with the shutdown of the
Phoenix and Canada facilities in 2001 and 2000, respectively. This decline is partially offset by the improvement in
sales returns and allowances and the dispositions of lower margin businesses. Gross profit and gross profit margin
for Ongoing Operations were $809.0 and 62.0%, respectively, in 2001 compared with gross profit and gross profit
margin of $800.6 and 61.4% in 2000. The increase in gross profit margin for 2001 is primarily related to the
improvement in sales returns and allowances versus 2000.

SG&A expenses

SG&A expenses were $723.1for 2001, compared with $803.5 for 2000. SG&A expenses for the Ongoing
Operations, which excludes $5.4 of additional consolidation costs associated with the shutdown of the Phoenix and
Canada facilities in 2001, were $708.6 for 2001, compared with $731.3 for 2000. The decrease in SG&A expenses
for our Ongoing Operations for 2001, as compared to the comparable 2000 period, is due primarily to the reduction
of departmental general and administrative expenses from $332.1 in 2000 to $283.0 for 2001 as a result of the
Company’s restructuring efforts, partially offset by an increase in brand support expenses from $332.9 for the 2000
to $350.7 for 2001.

Restructuring costs

In the first quarter of 2000, the Company recorded a charge of $9.5 relating to the 1999 restructuring
program that began in the fourth quarter of 1999. The Company continued to implement the 1999 restructuring
program during the second quarter of 2000 during which it recorded a charge of $5.1.

During the third quarter of 2000, the Company continued to re-evaluate its organizational structure. As
part of this re-evaluation, the Company initiated a new restructuring program in line with the original restructuring
plan developed in late 1998, designed to improve profitability by reducing personnel and consolidating
manufacturing facilities. The Company recorded a charge of $13.7 in the third quarter of 2000 for programs begun
in such quarter, as well as for the expanded scope of programs previously commenced. The 2000 restructuring
program focused on the Company’s plans to close its manufacturing operations in Phoenix, Arizona and
Mississauga, Canada and to consolidate its cosmetics production into its plant in Oxford, North Carolina. The 2000
restructuring program also includes the remaining obligation for excess leased real estate in the Company’s
headquarters, consolidation costs associated with the Company closing its facility in New Zealand, and the
elimination of several domestic and international executive and operational positions, each of which were effected to
reduce and streamline corporate overhead costs. In the fourth quarter of 2000, the Company recorded a charge of
$25.8 related to the 2000 restructuring program, principally for additional employee severance and other personnel
benefits and to consolidate worldwide operations.

In the first, second, third and fourth quarters of 2001, the Company recorded charges of $14.6, $7.9, $3.0
and $12.6, respectively, related to the 2000 restructuring program, principally for additional employee severance and
other personnel benefits, relocation and other costs related to the consolidation of worldwide operations. The charge
in the fourth quarter of 2001 also was for an adjustment to previous estimates of approximately $6.6.

The Company anticipates annualized savings of approximately $25 to $30 relating to the restructuring
charges recorded during 2001.

Other expenses (income)
Interest expense was $140.5 for 2001 compared with $144.5 for 2000. The decrease in interest expense for

2001, as compared to 2000, is primarily due to the repayment of borrowings under the 1997 Credit Agreement with
the net proceeds from the disposition of the worldwide professional products line, the Plusbelle brand in Argentina

F-17



and the Colorama brand in Brazil and by lower interest rates under the Credit Agreement, partially offset by interest
on the 12% Notes (which were issued in November 2001).

Sale of product line, brands and facilities, net

Described below are the principal sales of certain brands and facilities entered into by Products
Corporations during 2001:

In December 2001, Products Corporation sold a facility in Puerto Rico for approximately $4. In connection
with such disposition, the Company recorded a pre-tax and after-tax gain on the sale of $3.1 in the fourth quarter of
2001.

In July 2001, Products Corporation completed the disposition of the Colorama brand of cosmetics and hair
care products, as well as Products Corporation’s manufacturing facility located in Sdo Paulo, Brazil, for
approximately $57. Products Corporation used $22 of the net proceeds, after transaction costs and retained
liabilities, to permanently reduce commitments under the 1997 Credit Agreement. In connection with such
disposition, the Company recognized a pre-tax and after-tax loss of $6.7.

In July 2001, Products Corporation completed the disposition of its subsidiary that owned and operated its
manufacturing facility in Maesteg, Wales (UK), including all production equipment. As part of this sale, Products
Corporation entered into a long-term supply agreement with the purchaser pursuant to which the purchaser
manufactures and supplies to Products Corporation cosmetics and personal care products for sale throughout
Europe. The purchase price was approximately $20.0, $10.0 of which was received on the closing date and $10.0 is
to be received over a six-year period, a portion of which is contingent upon certain future events. In connection with
such disposition, the Company recognized a pre-tax and after-tax loss of $8.6.

In May 2001, Products Corporation sold its Phoenix, Arizona facility for approximately $7 and leased it
back through the end of 2001. After recognition of increased depreciation in the first quarter of 2001, the Company
recorded a loss on the sale of $3.7 in the second quarter of 2001, which is included in SG&A expenses.

In April 2001, Products Corporation sold land in Minami Aoyama near Tokyo, Japan and related rights for
the construction of a building on such land (the “Aoyama Property”) for approximately $28. In connection with
such disposition, the Company recognized a pre-tax and after-tax loss of $0.8 during the second quarter of 2001.
Provision for income taxes

The provision for income taxes was $4.1 for 2001 compared with $8.6 for 2000. The decrease in the
provision for income taxes for 2001, as compared 2000, was attributable to adjustments to certain deferred tax assets
and higher taxes associated with the worldwide professional products line in the first quarter of 2000 and lower
taxable income in 2001 in certain markets outside the United States.

Extraordinary item

The extraordinary loss of $3.6 (net of taxes) in 2001 resulted primarily from the write-off of financing costs
in connection with the 2001 Refinancing Transactions.

Year ended December 31, 2000 compared with year ended December 31, 1999
Net sales

Net sales were $1,447.8 and $1,709.9 for 2000 and 1999, respectively, a decrease of $262.1, or 15.3% on a
reported basis (a decrease of 12.8% on a constant U.S. dollar basis). The decline in consolidated net sales for the year
2000 as compared with 1999 is primarily due to the sale of the worldwide professional products line and the Plusbelle

brand in Argentina.

Net sales of the Ongoing Operations were $1,303.7 and $1,268.8 for 2000 and 1999, respectively, an increase
of $34.9, or 2.8% on a reported basis (an increase of 4.9% on a constant U.S. dollar basis).
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United States and Canada. Net sales in the United States and Canada were $895.8 for 2000 compared with
$954.8 for 1999, a decrease of $59.0, or 6.2%. Net sales of the Company’s Ongoing Operations in the United States
and Canada were $860.1 for 2000 compared with $796.2 for 1999, an increase of $63.9, or 8.0%. The increase in
net sales is primarily due to a decline in sales returns and allowances for 2000 of $174.2. This decline was partially
offset by $110.3 of lower shipments due to (i) a reduction of overall U.S. customer inventories, and (ii) reduced
consumer demand for the Company’s cosmetics due in part to fewer new product introductions in 2000 compared to
1999.

International. Net sales in the Company’s international operations were $552.0 for 2000, compared with
$755.1 for 1999, a decrease of $203.1, or 26.9% on a reported basis (a decrease of 22.1% on a constant U.S. dollar
basis). The decrease was primarily due to the sale of the worldwide professional products line and the Plusbelle brand
in Argentina.

Net sales of the Company’s Ongoing International Operations were $443.6 and $472.6 for 2000 and 1999,
respectively, a decrease of $29.0, or 6.1%, on a reported basis (a decrease of 0.9% on a constant U.S. dollar basis).

Ongoing International Operations sales are divided by the Company into three geographic regions. In
Europe and Africa, which comprises Europe, the Middle East and Africa, net sales decreased by 9.2% on a reported
basis to $175.7 for 2000, as compared with 1999 (an increase of 0.2% on a constant U.S. dollar basis). In Latin
America, which comprises Mexico, Central America, South America and Puerto Rico, net sales increased by 3.4%
on a reported basis to $142.4 for 2000, as compared with 1999 (a increase of 3.8% on a constant U.S. dollar basis).
In the Far East, net sales decreased by 11.2% on a reported basis to $125.5 for 2000, as compared with 1999 (a
decrease of 7.2% on a constant U.S. dollar basis). Net sales in the Company’s international operations may be
adversely affected by weak economic conditions, political and economic uncertainties, adverse currency
fluctuations, and competitive activities.

The decrease in net sales for 2000, as compared to 1999 for Ongoing International Operations on a
comparable currency basis, was primarily due to a reduction in sales volume in Japan, Hong Kong and France due to
the exit of certain product lines (which factor the Company estimates contributed to approximately 2.9% of the
decrease in net sales on a constant U.S. dollar basis), offset by increased new product and promotional activity in
South Africa, Mexico, Brazil, Argentina and Italy.

Gross profit

Gross profit was $873.5 for 2000, compared with $983.6 for 1999. As a percentage of net sales, gross
profit margins were 60.3% for 2000 compared with 57.5% for 1999. Gross profit and gross profit margin for the
Ongoing Operations, which excludes $4.9 of additional costs associated with the consolidation of worldwide
operations, were $800.6 and 61.4%, respectively, in 2000 compared with gross profit and gross profit margin of
$722.3 and 56.9%, respectively, in 1999. The increase in gross profit margin for 2000 is primarily related to the
improvement in sales returns and allowances versus 1999. This improvement was partially offset by a 4.4%
increase in manufacturing costs as a percentage of net shipments due to lower shipments in the U.S. as discussed
above.

SG&A expenses

SG&A expenses were $803.5 for 2000, compared with $1,155.4 for 1999. As a percentage of net sales,
SG&A expenses were 55.5% for 2000 compared with 67.6% for 1999. SG&A expenses for the Ongoing
Operations, which excludes $22 of separation costs of various executives terminated in 1999, were $731.3 in 2000,
or 56.1% percent of net sales, compared with $901.6 or 71.1% of net sales in 1999. The decrease in SG&A
expenses as a percentage of net sales during 2000 primarily reflects reduced brand support as a percentage of net
sales from 33.8% in 1999 to 25.5% in 2000 and a decline in departmental and other SG&A expenses of $67.1 or
16.9 % primarily due to the favorable impact of the Company’s restructuring efforts.
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Restructuring costs and other, net

In late 1998, the Company developed a strategy to reduce overall costs and streamline operations. To
execute against this strategy, the Company began to develop a restructuring plan and executed the plan in several
phases, which has resulted in several restructuring charges being recorded.

In the fourth quarter of 1998, the Company began to execute the 1998 restructuring program which was
designed to realign and reduce personnel, exit excess leased real estate, realign and consolidate regional activities,
reconfigure certain manufacturing operations and exit certain product lines. During the nine-month period ended
September 30, 1999, the Company continued to execute the 1998 restructuring program and recorded an additional
net charge of $20.5 principally for employee severance and other personnel benefits and obligations for excess
leased real estate primarily in the United States. Additionally, in 1999, the Company exited a non-core business for
which it recorded a charge of $1.6, which was included in restructuring costs and other, net.

In the fourth quarter of 1999, the Company continued to restructure its organization and began a new
program in line with its original restructuring plan developed in late 1998, principally for additional employee
severance and other personnel benefits and to restructure certain operations outside the United States, including
certain operations in Japan, resulting in a charge of $18.1. Additionally, during the fourth quarter of 1999 the
Company recorded a charge of $22.0 for executive separation costs to SG&A related to this new program. In the
first quarter of 2000, the Company recorded a charge of $9.5 relating to the 1999 restructuring program that began in
the fourth quarter of 1999. The Company continued to implement the 1999 restructuring program during the second
quarter of 2000 during which it recorded a charge of $5.1.

During the third quarter of 2000, the Company continued to re-evaluate its organizational structure. As
part of this re-evaluation, the Company initiated a new restructuring program in line with the original restructuring
plan developed in late 1998, designed to improve profitability by reducing personnel and consolidating
manufacturing facilities. The Company recorded a charge of $13.7 in the third quarter of 2000 for programs begun
in such quarter, as well as the expanded scope of programs previously commenced. The 2000 restructuring program
focused on the Company’s plans to close its manufacturing operations in Phoenix, Arizona and Mississauga, Canada
and to consolidate its cosmetics production into its plant in Oxford, North Carolina. The 2000 restructuring program
also includes the remaining obligation for excess leased real estate in the Company’s headquarters, consolidation
costs associated with the Company closing its facility in New Zealand, and the elimination of several domestic and
international executive and operational positions, each of which were effected to reduce and streamline corporate
overhead costs. In the fourth quarter of 2000, the Company recorded a charge of $25.8 related to the 2000
restructuring program, principally for additional employee severance and other personnel benefits and to consolidate
worldwide operations.

Other expenses (income)

Interest expense was $144.5 for 2000 compared with $147.9 for 1999. The decrease in interest expense for
2000 as compared with 1999 is primarily due to the repayment of borrowings under the 1997 Credit Agreement with
the net proceeds from the disposition of the worldwide professional product line and the Plusbelle brand in
Argentina, partially offset by higher interest rates under the 1997 Credit Agreement.

Foreign currency losses (gains), net, were $1.6 for 2000 compared with $(0.5) for 1999. Foreign currency
losses, net for 2000, consisted primarily of losses in certain markets in Latin America.

Sale of product line, brands and facilities, net
On May 8, 2000, Products Corporation completed the disposition of the Plusbelle brand in Argentina. In
connection with the disposition, the Company recognized a pre-tax and after-tax loss of $4.8 (See Note 3 to the

Consolidated Financial Statements).

On March 30, 2000, Products Corporation completed the disposition of its worldwide professional products
line, including professional hair care for use in and resale by professional salons, ethnic hair and personal care
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products, Natural Honey skin care and certain regional toiletries brands. In connection with the disposition, the
Company recognized a pre-tax and after-tax gain of $14.8 (See Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

Provision for income taxes

The provision for income taxes was $8.6 for 2000 compared with $9.1 for 1999. The decrease for 2000
compared with 1999 was primarily attributable to lower taxable income in 2000 in certain markets outside the
United States.

Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources

Net cash used for operating activities was $86.5, $84.0 and $81.8 for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
The slight increase in net cash used for operating activities for 2001 compared to 2000 resulted primarily from a
higher net loss and changes in working capital, partially offset by lower purchases of permanent displays. The slight
increase in net cash used for operating activities for 2000 compared with 1999 resulted primarily from changes in
working capital, partially offset by a lower net loss and lower purchases of permanent displays.

Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities was $87.2, $322.1 and $(40.7) for 2001, 2000 and 1999,
respectively. Net cash provided by investing activities for 2001 consisted of net proceeds from the sale of the
Company’s Colorama brand in Brazil, the Company’s subsidiary in Maesteg, Wales (UK), the Aoyama Property in
Japan, the Phoenix facility and a facility in Puerto Rico, partially offset by capital expenditures. Net cash provided by
investing activities for 2000 consisted of proceeds from the sale of the Company’s worldwide professional products
line and the Plusbelle brand in Argentina, partially offset by cash used for capital expenditures. Net cash used for
investing activities in 1999 related principally to capital expenditures. Net cash used for investing activities for
2001, 2000 and 1999 included capital expenditures of $15.1, $19.0 and $42.3, respectively. Investing activities in
1999 included substantial upgrades to the Company’s management information systems.

Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities was $46.3, $(203.7) and $117.5 for 2001, 2000 and 1999,
respectively. Net cash provided by financing activities for 2001 included cash drawn under the 2001 and 1997 Credit
Agreements and proceeds from the issuance of the 12% Notes, partially offset by the repayment of borrowings under
the 1997 Credit Agreement (as hereinafter defined) with the net proceeds from the disposition of the Colorama brand in
Brazil, and subsequently with proceeds from the issuance of the 12% Notes and proceeds from the 2001 Credit
Agreement and payment of debt issuance costs in connection with the issuance of the 12% Notes and the 2001 Credit
Agreement (as hereinafter defined). Net cash used for financing activities for 2000 included repayments of borrowings
under the Credit Agreement with the net proceeds from the disposition of the worldwide professional products line and
the Plusbelle brand in Argentina and the repayment of Products Corporation’s Japanese yen-denominated credit
agreement (the “Yen Credit Agreement”), partially offset by cash drawn under the 1997 Credit Agreement. Net cash
provided by financing activities for 1999 included cash drawn under the 1997 Credit Agreement, partially offset by
repayments of borrowings under the Credit Agreement, redemption of the Products Corporation’s 9 %% Senior
Notes due 1999 and repayments under the Yen Credit Agreement.

On November 26, 2001, Products Corporation issued and sold $363 in aggregate principal amount of 12%
Notes in a private placement, receiving gross proceeds of $350.5. Products Corporation used the proceeds from the
12% Notes and borrowings under the 2001 Credit Agreement to repay outstanding indebtedness under Products
Corporation’s 1997 Credit Agreement and to pay fees and expenses incurred in connection with the 2001
Refinancing Transactions, and the balance is available for general corporate purposes. On or before February 25,
2002, Products Corporation expects to file a registration statement with the Commission with respect to the
Exchange Offer.

On November 30, 2001, Products Corporation entered into the 2001 Credit Agreement with a syndicate of
lenders, whose individual members change from time to time, which agreement amended and restated the credit
agreement entered into by Products Corporation in May 1997 (as amended, the “1997 Credit Agreement”; the 2001
Credit Agreement and the 1997 Credit Agreement are sometimes referred to as the “Credit Agreement”), and which
matures on May 30, 2005. As of December 31, 2001, the 2001 Credit Agreement provided up to $250.0, which is
comprised of a $117.9 term loan facility (the “Term Loan Facility”) and a $132.1 multi-currency revolving credit
facility (the “Multi-Currency Facility”). At December 31, 2001, the Term Loan Facility was fully drawn and $103.5
was available under the Multi-Currency Facility, including the letters of credit. The 2001 Credit Agreement
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contains minimum EBITDA levels for the four consecutive quarters ending March 31, 2002 of $180, June 30, 2002
through September 30, 2002 of $185, December 31, 2002 through September 30, 2003 of $210, December 31, 2003
through September 30, 2004 of $230 and December 31, 2004 and thereafter of $250, as well as leverage ratio and
capital expenditure covenants and, negative covenants consistent with the 1997 Credit Agreement with certain
exceptions. The Credit Facilities (other than loans in foreign currencies) bear interest as of December 31, 2001 at a
rate equal to, at Products Corporation’s option, either (A) the Alternate Base Rate plus 3.75% (which was 4.75% at
December 31, 2001); or (B) the Eurodollar Rate plus 4.75% (which was 3.00% at December 31, 2001), which
margins are higher than those under the 1997 Credit Agreement. Loans in foreign currencies bear interest in certain
limited circumstances or if mutually acceptable to Products Corporation and the relevant foreign lenders at the Local
Rate and otherwise at the Eurocurrency Rate, in each case plus 4.75% (which was 3.49% at December 31, 2001).
Products Corporation pays a commitment fee of 0.75% of the average daily unused portion of the Multi-Currency
Facility. Under the Multi-Currency Facility, the Company pays (i) to foreign lenders a fronting fee of 0.25% per
annum on the aggregate principal amount of specified Local Loans (which fee is retained by the foreign lenders out
of the portion of the Applicable Margin payable to such foreign lender), (ii) to foreign lenders an administrative fee
of 0.25% per annum on the aggregate principal amount of specified Local Loans, (iii) to the multi-currency lenders a
letter of credit commission equal to (a) the Applicable Margin for Eurodollar Rate loans (adjusted for the term that
the letter of credit is outstanding) times (b) the aggregate undrawn face amount of letters of credit and (c) to the
issuing lender a letter of credit fronting fee of 0.25% per annum of the aggregate undrawn face amount of letters of
credit (which fee is a portion of the Applicable Margin).

The Company's principal sources of funds are expected to be cash flow generated from operations (before
interest), cash on hand and available borrowings under the Multi-Currency Facility of the 2001 Credit Agreement.
The Credit Agreement, Products Corporation’s 12% Notes, Products Corporation’s 8 5/8% Notes due 2008 (the “8
5/8% Notes™), Products Corporation’s 8 1/8% Notes due 2006 (the “8 1/8% Notes™) and Products Corporation’s 9%
Notes due 2006 (the “9% Notes™) contain certain provisions that by their terms limit Products Corporation’s and/or
its subsidiaries' ability to, among other things, incur additional debt. The Company's principal uses of funds are
expected to be the payment of operating expenses, working capital, purchases of permanent displays and capital
expenditure requirements, expenses in connection with the Company’s restructuring programs referred to above and
debt service payments.

The Company estimates that cash payments related to the restructuring programs referred to in Note 2 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements and executive separation costs will be $20 to $25 in 2002. Pursuant to a tax
sharing agreement, Revlon, Inc. may be required to make tax sharing payments to Mafco Holdings as if Revlon, Inc.
were filing separate income tax returns, except that no payments are required by Revlon, Inc. if and to the extent that
Products Corporation is prohibited under the Credit Agreement from making tax sharing payments to Revlon, Inc.
The Credit Agreement prohibits Products Corporation from making any tax sharing payments other than in respect
of state and local income taxes. Revlon, Inc. currently anticipates that, as a result of net operating tax losses and
prohibitions under the Credit Agreement, no cash federal tax payments or cash payments in lieu of federal taxes
pursuant to the tax sharing agreement will be required for 2002.

Products Corporation enters into forward foreign exchange contracts and option contracts from time to time

to hedge certain cash flows denominated in foreign currencies. There were no forward foreign exchange or option
contracts outstanding at December 31, 2001.
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The Company expects that cash flows from operations before interest, cash on hand and available
borrowings under the Multi-Currency Facility of the 2001 Credit Agreement will be sufficient to enable the
Company to meet its anticipated cash requirements during 2002 on a consolidated basis, including for debt service
and expenses in connection with the Company’s restructuring programs. However, there can be no assurance that
the combination of cash flow from operations, cash on hand and available borrowings under the Multi-Currency
Facility of the 2001 Credit Agreement will be sufficient to meet the Company's cash requirements on a consolidated
basis. Additionally, in the event of a decrease in demand for its products or reduced sales, such development, if
significant, could reduce the Company’s cash flow from operations and could adversely affect the Company’s
ability to achieve certain financial covenants under the 2001 Credit Agreement, including the minimum EBITDA
covenant, and in such event the Company could be required to take measures, including reducing discretionary
spending. If the Company is unable to satisfy such cash requirements, the Company could be required to adopt one
or more alternatives, such as reducing or delaying purchases of permanent displays, reducing or delaying capital
expenditures, delaying or revising restructuring programs, restructuring indebtedness, selling assets or operations, or
seeking capital contributions or loans from affiliates of the Company or issuing additional shares of capital stock of
Revlon, Inc. Products Corporation has received a commitment from an affiliate that is prepared to provide, if
necessary, additional financial support to Products Corporation of up to $40 on appropriate terms through December
31, 2003. There can be no assurance that any of such actions could be effected, that they would enable the
Company to continue to satisfy its capital requirements or that they would be permitted under the terms of the
Company's various debt instruments then in effect. Revlon, Inc., as a holding company, will be dependent on the
earnings and cash flow of, and dividends and distributions from, Products Corporation to pay its expenses and to pay
any cash dividend or distribution on Revlon, Inc.’s Class A Common Stock that may be authorized by the Board of
Directors of Revlon, Inc. The terms of the Credit Agreement, the 12% Notes, the 8 5/8% Notes, the 8 1/8% Notes
and the 9% Notes generally restrict Products Corporation from paying dividends or making distributions, except that
Products Corporation is permitted to pay dividends and make distributions to Revlon, Inc., among other things, to
enable Revlon, Inc. to pay expenses incidental to being a public holding company, including, among other things,
professional fees such as legal and accounting, regulatory fees such as Commission filing fees and other
miscellaneous expenses related to being a public holding company and, subject to certain limitations, to pay
dividends or make distributions in certain circumstances to finance the purchase by Revlon, Inc. of its Class A
Common Stock in connection with the delivery of such Class A Common Stock to grantees under the Revlon, Inc.
Amended and Restated 1996 Stock Plan (the “Amended Stock Plan”).

The Company is currently developing and testing a new design for its permanent display units and, subject
to a number of factors including results from tests, the Company currently plans to begin installing them at certain
customers’ doors during 2002. If we proceed with such installation, we may need to accelerate the amortization of
our existing display units beginning in 2002. The scope of any display unit replacements has not yet been
determined and, therefore, the amount of additional amortization cannot be precisely calculated. However, we
estimate if we proceed with the installation of new displays that additional amortization will be in the range of $12
to $18 during 2002. The Company estimates that purchases of permanent displays for 2002 will be $45 to $60.

Additionally, the Company is evaluating its management information systems to determine if the current
system should be replaced with an Enterprise Resource Planning (“ERP”) System intended to provide benefits to the
Company in excess of the related purchase and implementation costs. If we determine to implement the ERP
System, certain existing information systems would be amortized on an accelerated basis. Based upon the estimated
time required to implement an ERP System, the Company currently estimates that it would record additional
amortization of its current information system in the range of $15 to $25 during 2002 if it proceeds with the
implementation of an ERP System. The Company estimates that capital expenditures for 2002 will be $15 to $25.

In the first quarter of 2002, the Company expects to record a charge of approximately $6 related to
separation costs for certain former senior executives of the Company.
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Disclosures about Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The SEC has encouraged all public companies to aggregate all contractual commitments and commercial
obligations that affect financial condition and liquidity as of December 31, 2001. To respond to this, the Company

has included the following table:

Payments Due by Period
(dollars in millions)
Contractual Obligations Less than 1
Total year 1-3 years 4-5years | After 5 years
Long-term Debt $1,643.6 $1.3 $492.8 $499.6 $649.9
Capital Lease Obligations Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Operating Leases 67.1 26.1 23.1 7.0 10.9
Unconditional Purchase 194.5 (a) 52.8 69.5 41.8 30.4
Obligations
Other Long-term Obligations 33.4 (b) 16.2 11.5 15 4.2
Total Contractual Cash $1,938.6 $96.4 $596.9 $549.9 $695.4
Obligations

(@) Includes primarily $145.5 relating to fixed annual purchase commitments over the eight-year term of the supply
agreement which the Company entered into in connection with the sale of its manufacturing facility in Maesteg,
Wales (UK), $13.4 relating to fixed purchase commitments under an agreement which the Company entered
into in connection with the sale of the Company’s manufacturing facility in Sdo Paulo, Brazil, and the balance
of $35.6 consists of other fixed purchase commitments for finished goods, raw materials and components.

(b) Such amounts exclude severance and other contractual commitments related to restructuring, which are
discussed under “Restructuring Costs”.

Euro Conversion

As part of the European Economic and Monetary Union, a single currency (the “Euro”) has replaced the
national currencies of the principal European countries (other than the United Kingdom) in which the Company
conducts business and manufacturing. The conversion rates between the Euro and the participating nations’
currencies were fixed as of January 1, 1999, with the participating national currencies being removed from
circulation between January 1, 2002 and June 30, 2002 and replaced by Euro notes and coinage. Under the
regulations governing the transition to a single currency, there is a “no compulsion, no prohibition” rule, which
states that no one can be prevented from using the Euro after January 1, 2002 and no one is obliged to use the Euro
before July 2002. In keeping with this rule, the Company expects to begin using the Euro for invoicing and
payments by the end of the second quarter of 2002. Based upon the information currently available, the Company
does not expect that the transition to the Euro will have a material adverse effect on the business or consolidated
financial condition of the Company.

Effect of New Accounting Standards

In November of 2001, the EITF reached consensus on the Guidelines, the second portion of which
(formerly EITF Issue 00-25) addresses vendor income statement characterization of consideration to a purchaser of
the vendor’s products or services, including the classification of slotting fees, cooperative advertising arrangements
and buy-downs. Certain promotional payments that are currently classified in SG&A expenses will be classified as a
reduction of net sales. The impact of the adoption of the second portion of the Guidelines on the consolidated
financial statements will reduce both net sales and SG&A expenses by equal and offsetting amounts of $43.9 in
2001, $38.4 in 2000 and $80.1 in 1999, respectively. The adoption will not have any impact on the Company’s
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reported operating income or net loss. The Company has adopted the second portion of the Guidelines effective
January 1, 2002.

In July 2001, the FASB issued Statement No. 141, Business Combinations, and Statement No. 142,
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. Statement 141 requires that the purchase method of accounting be used for
all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 as well as all purchase method business combinations
completed after June 30, 2001. Statement 141 also specifies criteria that must be met in order for intangible assets
acquired in a purchase method business combination to be recognized and reported apart from goodwill. Statement
142 will require that goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives no longer be amortized, but instead
tested for impairment at least annually in accordance with the provisions of Statement 142. Statement 142 will also
require that intangible assets with definite useful lives be amortized over their respective estimated useful lives to
their estimated residual values, and reviewed for impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. The Company adopted the provisions of Statement 141 immediately
and Statement 142 effective January 1, 2002.

As of January 1, 2002, the Company expects to have unamortized goodwill in the amount of approximately
$186, and unamortized identifiable intangible assets in the amount of approximately $13. Amortization expense
related to goodwill was $7.1 for the year ended December 31, 2001. Any transitional impairment losses will be
required to be recognized as the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle. The Company has made a
preliminary estimate of the impact of these Statements and has determined that these Statements will not have a
significant effect from impairment on its financial statements.

In August 2001, the FASB issued Statement No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.
Statement 143 requires recording the fair market value of an asset retirement obligation as a liability in the period in
which a legal obligation associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets is incurred. The Statement also
requires recording the contra asset to the initial obligation as an increase to the carrying amount of the related long-
lived asset and depreciation of that cost over the life of the asset. The liability is then increased at the end of each
period to reflect the passage of time and changes in the initial fair value measurement. The Company is required to
adopt the provisions of Statement 143 effective January 1, 2003 and has not yet determined the extent of its impact,
if any.

In October 2001, the FASB issued Statement No. 144, Accounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets. Statement 144 addresses financial accounting and reporting for the impairment or disposal of long-
lived assets. The Statement also extends the reporting requirements to report separately as discontinued operations,
components of an entity that have either been disposed of or classified as held for sale. The Company has adopted
the provisions of Statement 144 effective January 1, 2002 and such adoption did not have a significant effect on its
financial statements.

Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001, as well as other public
documents and statements of the Company, contain forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties.
The Company’s actual results may differ materially from those discussed in such forward-looking statements. Such
statements include, without limitation, the Company’s expectations and estimates (whether qualitative or
quantitative) as to: the introduction of new products; the Company’s plans to update its retail presence, evaluate, test
and install new display walls (and the Company’s estimates of the costs of such new displays, the effects of such
plans on the accelerated amortization of existing displays and the estimated amount of such amortization) and the
Company’s plans to update the image of the Revlon brand through the introduction of new graphics and package
designs; its future financial performance; the effect on sales of political and/or economic conditions, adverse
currency fluctuations and competitive activities; the possible implementation of a new ERP System, the costs and
benefits of such system and the effects of the adoption of such system on the accelerated amortization of existing
information systems if the Company proceeds with such system; restructuring activities, restructuring costs, the
timing of such payments and annual savings and other benefits from such activities; the charges, the cash cost and
the savings resulting from plant shutdowns, dispositions and outsourcing; the effects of revised trade terms for its
U.S. customers, including reduced returns; cash flow from operations, cash on hand and availability of borrowings
under the 2001 Credit Agreement, the sufficiency of such funds to satisfy the Company’s cash requirements in 2002,
and the availability of funds from capital contributions or loans from affiliates of the Company and the sale of
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additional shares of Revlon, Inc.; uses of funds, including for the purchases of permanent displays, capital
expenditures (and the Company’s estimates of the amounts of such expenses) and restructuring costs (and the
Company’s estimates of the amounts of such costs); the availability of raw materials and components and, with
respect to Europe, products, including that the Company's facilities and third party contractual supplier arrangements
will provide sufficient capacity for the Company’s current and expected production requirements; matters
concerning market-risk sensitive instruments; the effects of transition to the Euro; the effects of the adoption of
certain accounting principles, including the Company’s estimates of the amounts of unamortized goodwill and
identifiable intangible assets; and the effects of the loss of one or more customers, including, without limitation,
Wal-Mart, and the status of the Company’s relationship with its customers. Statements that are not historical facts,
including statements about the Company’s beliefs and expectations, are forward-looking statements. Forward-
looking statements can be identified by, among other things, the use of forward-looking language, such as
“believes,” “expects,” “estimates,” “projects,” “forecast,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “seeks,” “plans,” “scheduled to,”
“anticipates” or “intends” or the negative of those terms, or other variations of those terms or comparable language,
or by discussions of strategy or intentions. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made, and
except for the Company’s ongoing obligations to disclose material information under the U.S. federal securities
laws, the Company undertakes no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result
of new information, future events or otherwise. Investors are advised, however, to consult any additional
disclosures the Company makes in its Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Annual Report on Form 10-K and Current
Reports on Form 8-K to the Commission (which, among other places, can be found on the Commission’s website at
http://www.sec.gov), as well as on the Company’s website at www.revloninc.com. The information available from
time to time on such website shall not be deemed incorporated by reference into this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
A number of important factors could cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-
looking statement. In addition to factors that may be described in the Company’s filings with the Commission,
including this filing, the following factors, among others, could cause the Company’s actual results to differ
materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statements made by the Company: (i) difficulties or delays
in developing and introducing new products or failure of customers to accept new product offerings; (ii) difficulties
or delays or unanticipated costs associated with the Company’s test and possible implementation of new display
walls and new graphics and package designs; (iii) changes in consumer preferences, including reduced consumer
demand for the Company’s color cosmetics and other current products; (iv) effects of and changes in political and/or
economic conditions, including inflation and monetary conditions, and in trade, monetary, fiscal and tax policies in
international markets; (v) actions by competitors, including business combinations, technological breakthroughs,
new product offerings, promotional spending and marketing and promotional successes, including increases in
market share; (vi) unanticipated costs or difficulties or delays in completing projects associated with the Company’s
strategic plan, including in connection with the implementation of a new ERP System; (vii) difficulties, delays or
unanticipated costs or less than expected savings and other benefits resulting from the Company’s restructuring
activities; (viii) difficulties or delays in implementing, higher than expected charges and cash costs or lower than
expected savings from the shutdown, disposition, outsourcing and consolidation of manufacturing operations; (ix)
difficulties or delays in achieving the intended results of the revised trade terms, including, without limitation, lower
returns or unexpected consequences from the revised trade terms including the possible effect on sales; (x) lower
than expected cash flow from operations, the inability to secure capital contributions or loans from affiliates of the
Company or sell additional shares of Revlon, Inc. or the unavailability of funds under the 2001 Credit Agreement;
(xi) higher than expected operating expenses, working capital expenses, permanent display costs, capital
expenditures, restructuring costs or debt service payments; (xii) difficulties or delays in sourcing raw materials or
components, and with respect to Europe, products; (xiii) interest rate or foreign exchange rate changes affecting the
Company and its market sensitive financial instruments; (xiv) difficulties, delays or unanticipated costs associated
with the transition to the Euro; (xv) unanticipated effects of the Company’s adoption of certain new accounting
standards; and (xvi) combinations among significant customers or the loss, insolvency or failure to pay debts by a
significant customer or customers. Factors other than those listed above could cause the Company’s results to differ
materially from expected results. This discussion is provided as permitted by the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995.

” LIS LI LIS LLINT LT3

Inflation

In general, costs are affected by inflation and the effects of inflation may be experienced by the Company in
future periods. Management believes, however, that such effects have not been material to the Company during the
past three years in the United States or foreign non-hyperinflationary countries. The Company operates in certain
countries around the world, such as Argentina, Brazil, Venezuela and Mexico that have experienced hyperinflation. In
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hyperinflationary foreign countries, the Company attempts to mitigate the effects of inflation by increasing prices in
line with inflation, where possible, and efficiently managing its working capital levels.

Subsequent Events

In February 2002, Products Corporation completed the disposition of its subsidiaries that operated its
marketing, sales and distribution business in Belgium, the Netherlands and Luxembourg (“Benelux”). As part of
this sale, Products Corporation entered into a long-term distribution agreement with the purchaser pursuant to which
the purchaser distributes the Company’s products in Benelux. The purchase price consisted principally of the
assumption of certain liabilities and deferred contingent purchase price of up to approximately $3.3 to be received
over approximately a seven-year period. In connection with the disposition, the Company does not anticipate a
significant gain or loss.

Effective February 14, 2002, Jeffrey M. Nugent, the Company's former President and Chief Executive
Officer, resigned from employment with the Company. On February 19, 2002, the Company announced its
appointment of Jack L. Stahl as its President and Chief Executive Officer.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Interest Rate Sensitivity

The Company has exposure to changing interest rates, primarily in the United States. The Company’s
policy is to manage interest rate risk through the use of a combination of fixed and floating rate debt. The Company
from time to time makes use of derivative financial instruments to adjust its fixed and floating rate ratio. There were
no such derivative financial instruments outstanding at December 31, 2001. The table below provides information
about the Company’s indebtedness that is sensitive to changes in interest rates. The table presents cash flows with
respect to principal on indebtedness and related weighted average interest rates by expected maturity dates.
Weighted average variable rates are based on implied forward rates in the yield curve at December 31, 2001. The
information is presented in U.S. dollar equivalents, which is the Company’s reporting currency.

Exchange Rate Sensitivity

The Company manufactures and sells its products in a number of countries throughout the world and, as a
result, is exposed to movements in foreign currency exchange rates. In addition, a portion of the Company’s
borrowings are denominated in foreign currencies, which are also subject to market risk associated with exchange
rate movement. The Company from time to time hedges major foreign currency cash exposures generally through
foreign exchange forward and option contracts. The contracts are entered into with major financial institutions to
minimize counterparty risk. These contracts generally have a duration of less than twelve months and are primarily
against the U.S. dollar. In addition, the Company enters into foreign currency swaps to hedge intercompany
financing transactions.

The Company does not hold or issue financial instruments for trading purposes. There were no derivative
instruments outstanding as of December 31, 2001.
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As referred to above, on November 26, 2001 Products Corporation issued and sold the 12% Notes and on
November 30, 2001 refinanced its 1997 Credit Agreement.

BExpected maturity date for year ended Decentber 31, Fair Value
Dec. 31,
2002 2003 2004 2006 2006 Thereafter  Total 2001

Debt (US dollar equivalent in milliorns)

Short-termvariable rate (Various currencies).. $175 $ 75 $ 175
Average interest rate (a) 5%

Long-termfixed rate (SUS) $3508 $HP6 $ 6499 1,500.3 976.2
AVETaQR INEXESE IAE ....covvvevevevevvvesvessserenns 20%  86% 86%

Long-termvariable rate (BUS)..........uvueveeeeneen 179 1179 179
Average interest rate ().....eeuereeeessseereeennns 9.9%

Long-termvariable rate (various currencies).. 13 13 13
Average interest rate (a) vvveeeseeeeeeessseereeennns 9.4%

B Lo17: Ko = o (OO 75 $ - 0§ - HM00 HP6 $ 6499 $16370 $11129

(8) Weighted average variable rates are based upon inrplied forward rates fromthe yield curves at Decenber 31, 2001

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Reference is made to the Index on page F-1 of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and the
Notes thereto contained herein.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
Not applicable.

PART 111
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Information concerning Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant is contained in Revlon, Inc.’s
Proxy Statement for the 2002 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which will be mailed to stockholders on or before
April 29, 2002 and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information with respect to Executive Compensation is contained in Revlon, Inc.’s Proxy Statement for the
2002 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which will be mailed to stockholders on or before April 29, 2002 and is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

Information with respect to Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management is
contained in Revlon, Inc.’s Proxy Statement for the 2002 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which will be mailed to
stockholders on or before April 29, 2002 and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Information with respect to Certain Relationships and Related Transactions is contained in Revlon, Inc.’s
Proxy Statement for the 2002 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which will be mailed to stockholders on or before
April 29, 2002 and is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

Item 14. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K

(a) List of documents filed as part of this Report:

(1) Consolidated Financial Statements and Independent Auditors’ Report included herein:
See Index on page F-1
(2) Financial Statement Schedule:
See Index on page F-1
All other schedules are omitted as they are inapplicable or the required information is furnished in the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company or the Notes thereto.
(3) List of Exhibits:

EXHIBIT NO.

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

DESCRIPTION

Certificate of Incorporation and By-laws.

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Revlon, Inc. dated March 4, 1996
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Revlon, Inc.
for the quarterly period ended March 31, 1996).

Amended and Restated By-laws of Revlon, Inc., dated as of June 30, 2001 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Revlon, Inc. for the quarterly
period ended June 30, 2001 (the "Revlon 2001 Second Quarter Form 10-Q")).

Certificate of the Designations, Powers, Preferences and Rights of Series B Convertible
Preferred Stock of Revlon, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Registration
Statement on Form S-8 of Revlon, Inc. filed with the Commission on October 11, 2001, File
No. 333-71378).

Instruments defining the right of security holders, including indentures.

Indenture, dated as of November 26, 2001, among Products Corporation, the Guarantors party
thereto, including Revlon, Inc., as parent guarantor, and Wilmington Trust Company, as trustee,
relating to the 12% Senior Secured Notes due 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to
the Current Report on Form 8-K of Products Corporation filed with the Commission on
November 30, 2001 (the "Products Corporation November 2001 Form 8-K")).

Revlon Pledge Agreement, dated as of November 30, 2001, between Revlon, Inc., as pledgor, in
favor of Wilmington Trust Company, as note collateral agent (the "Note Collateral Agent")
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Products
Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2001 (the "Products Corporation 2001 Form
10-K™)).

Company Pledge Agreement (Domestic), dated as of November 30, 2001, between Products
Corporation, as pledgor, in favor of Wilmington Trust Company, as Note Collateral Agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Products Corporation 2001 Form 10-K).
Subsidiary Pledge Agreement (Domestic), dated as of November 30, 2001, between RIROS

Corporation, as pledgor, in favor of Wilmington Trust Company, as Note Collateral Agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the Products Corporation 2001 Form 10-K).

Subsidiary Pledge Agreement (Domestic), dated as of November 30, 2001, between Revlon
International Corporation, as pledgor, in favor of Wilmington Trust Company, as Note
Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the Products Corporation 2001
Form 10-K).

Subsidiary Pledge Agreement (Domestic), dated as of November 30, 2001, between PPl Two
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EXHIBIT NO.

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

411

4.12

4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

4.19

DESCRIPTION

Corporation, as pledgor, in favor of Wilmington Trust Company, as Note Collateral Agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to the Products Corporation 2001 Form 10-K).

Company Pledge Agreement (International), dated as of November 30, 2001, between Products
Corporation, as pledgor, in favor of Wilmington Trust Company, as Note Collateral Agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to the Products Corporation 2001 Form 10-K).

Subsidiary Pledge Agreement (International), dated as of November 30, 2001, between RIROS
Corporation, as pledgor, in favor of Wilmington Trust Company, as Note Collateral Agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 to the Products Corporation 2001 Form 10-K).

Subsidiary Pledge Agreement (International), dated as of November 30, 2001, between Revlon
International Corporation, as pledgor, in favor of Wilmington Trust Company, as Note
Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 to the Products Corporation 2001
Form 10-K).

Subsidiary Pledge Agreement (International), dated as of November 30, 2001, between PPI
Two Corporation, as pledgor, in favor of Wilmington Trust Company, as Note Collateral Agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.10 to the Products Corporation 2001 Form 10-K).

Company Security Agreement, dated as of November 30, 2001, between Products Corporation,
as grantor, in favor of Wilmington Trust Company, as Note Collateral Agent (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.11 to the Products Corporation 2001 Form 10-K).

Subsidiary Security Agreement, dated as of November 30, 2001, among Almay, Inc.,
Carrington Parfums Ltd., Charles of the Ritz Group Ltd., Charles Revson Inc., Cosmetics &
More, Inc., North America Revsale Inc., Pacific Finance & Development Corp., PPl Two
Corporation, Prestige Fragrances, Ltd., Revlon Consumer Corp., Revlon Government Sales,
Inc., Revlon International Corporation, Revlon Products Corp., Revlon Real Estate Corporation,
RIROS Corporation, RIROS Group Inc. and RIT Inc., each as grantor, in favor of Wilmington
Trust Company, as Note Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.12 to the
Products Corporation 2001 Form 10-K).

Company Copyright Security Agreement, dated as of November 30, 2001, between Products
Corporation, as grantor, in favor of Wilmington Trust Company, as Note Collateral Agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.13 to the Products Corporation 2001 Form 10-K).

Company Patent Security Agreement, dated as of November 30, 2001, between Products
Corporation, as grantor, in favor of Wilmington Trust Company, as Note Collateral Agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.14 to the Products Corporation 2001 Form 10-K).

Company Trademark Security Agreement, dated as of November 30, 2001, between Products
Corporation, as grantor, in favor of Wilmington Trust Company, as Note Collateral Agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.15 to the Products Corporation 2001 Form 10-K).

Subsidiary Trademark Security Agreement, dated as of November 30, 2001, between Charles
Revson Inc., as grantor, in favor of Wilmington Trust Company, as Note Collateral Agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.16 to the Products Corporation 2001 Form 10-K).

Subsidiary Trademark Security Agreement, dated as of November 30, 2001, between Charles of
the Ritz Group, Ltd., as grantor, in favor of Wilmington Trust Company, as Note Collateral
Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.17 to the Products Corporation 2001 Form 10-K).

Deed of Trust, Assignment of Rents and Leases and Security Agreement, dated as of November
30, 2001, between Products Corporation and First American Title Insurance Company for the
use and benefit of Wilmington Trust Company, as Note Collateral Agent (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.18 to the Products Corporation 2001 Form 10-K).

Amended and Restated Collateral Agency Agreement, dated as of May 30, 1997, and further
amended and restated as of November 30, 2001, between Products Corporation, JPMorgan
Chase Bank, as bank agent and as administrative agent, and Wilmington Trust Company, as
trustee and as Note Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.19 to the Products
Corporation 2001 Form 10-K).
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EXHIBIT NO.

4.20

4.21

4.22

4.23

4.24

4.25

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

DESCRIPTION

Indenture, dated as of February 1, 1998, between Revlon Escrow Corp. ("Revlon Escrow") and
U.S. Bank Trust National Association (formerly known as First Trust National Association), as
Trustee, relating to the 8 1/8% Senior Notes due 2006 (the "8 1/8% Senior Notes
Indenture™)(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1
of Products Corporation filed with the Commission on March 12, 1998, File No. 333-47875 (the
"Products Corporation 1998 Form S-1")).

Indenture, dated as of February 1, 1998, between Revlon Escrow and U.S. Bank Trust National
Association (formerly known as First Trust National Association), as Trustee, relating to the 8
5/8% Senior Subordinated Notes Due 2008 (the "8 5/8% Senior Subordinated Notes
Indenture™)(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Products Corporation 1998 Form
S-1).

First Supplemental Indenture, dated April 1, 1998, among Products Corporation, Revlon
Escrow, and the Trustee, amending the 8 1/8% Senior Notes Indenture (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Products Corporation 1998 Form S-1).

First Supplemental Indenture, dated March 4, 1998, among Products Corporation, Revlon
Escrow, and the Trustee, amending the 8 5/8% Senior Subordinated Notes Indenture
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the Products Corporation 1998 Form S-1).

Indenture, dated as of November 6, 1998, between Products Corporation and U.S. Bank Trust
National Association, as Trustee, relating to Products Corporation's 9% Senior Notes due 2006
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.13 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended September 30, 1998 of Revlon, Inc.).

Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of November 30, 2001, among
Products Corporation, the subsidiaries of Products Corporation parties thereto, the lenders
parties thereto, the Co-Agents parties thereto, Citibank, N.A., as documentation agent, Lehman
Commercial Paper Inc., as syndication agent, J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., as sole arranger and
bookrunner, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, as administrative agent (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 to the Products Corporation November 2001 Form 8-K).

Material Contracts.

Asset Transfer Agreement, dated as of June 24, 1992, among Holdings, National Health Care
Group, Inc., Charles of the Ritz Group Ltd., Products Corporation and Revlon, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Amendment No. 1 to the Revlon, Inc. Registration
Statement on Form S-1 filed with the Commission on June 29, 1992, File No. 33-47100).

Tax Sharing Agreement, entered into as of June 24, 1992, among Mafco Holdings, Revlon, Inc.,
Products Corporation and certain subsidiaries of Products Corporation as amended and restated
as of January 1, 2001 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Products Corporation
2001 Form 10-K).

Employment Agreement, dated as of November 2, 1999, between Products Corporation and
Jeffrey M. Nugent (the "Nugent Employment Agreement")(incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.10 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999 of Revlon,
Inc. (the "Revlon 1999 Form 10-K")).

Amendment, dated June 15, 2001, to the Nugent Employment Agreement dated as of November
2, 1999 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Revlon 2001 Second Quarter Form
10-Q).

Employment Agreement, amended and restated as of May 9, 2000, between Products
Corporation and Douglas H. Greeff (the "Greeff Employment Agreement™)(incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.22 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended
June 30, 2000 of Revlon, Inc.).

Amendment dated June 18, 2001 to the Greeff Employment Agreement (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Products Corporation 2001 Form 10-K).
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EXHIBIT NO.

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

21.

*21.1

23.

*23.1

24,

*24.1
*24.2
*24.3

DESCRIPTION

Employment Agreement, effective as of August 1, 2001, between Products Corporation and
Paul E. Shapiro (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Products Corporation 2001
Form 10-K).

Revlon Executive Bonus Plan (Amended and Restated as of June 18, 2001) (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Products Corporation 2001 Form 10-K).

Amended and Restated Revlon Pension Equalization Plan, amended and restated as of
December 14, 1998 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the Annual Report on Form
10-K for year ended December 31, 1998 of Revlon, Inc.).

Executive Supplemental Medical Expense Plan Summary dated July 1991 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 of Revlon, Inc. filed with
the Commission on May 22, 1992, File No. 33-47100).

Benefit Plans Assumption Agreement, dated as of July 1, 1992, by and among Holdings,
Revlon, Inc. and Products Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to the
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1992 of Products Corporation).
Revlon Amended and Restated Executive Deferred Compensation Plan dated as of August 6,
1999 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.27 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of
Revlon, Inc. for the quarterly period ended September 30, 1999).

Revlon Executive Severance Policy effective January 1, 1996 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.23 to the Amendment No. 3 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 of Revlon,
Inc. filed with the Commission on February 5, 1996, File No. 33-99558).

Revlon, Inc. Third Amended and Restated 1996 Stock Plan (amended and restated as of May
10, 2000) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the Revlon 2001 Second Quarter Form
10-Q).

Purchase Agreement, dated as of February 18, 2000, by and among Revlon, Inc., Products
Corporation, REMEA 2 B.V., Revlon Europe, Middle East and Africa, Ltd., Revlon
International Corporation, Europeenne de Produits de Beaute S.A., Deutsche Revion GmbH &
Co. K.G.,, Revlon Canada, Inc., Revlon de Argentina, S.A.l.C., Revlon South Africa
(Proprietary) Limited, Revlon (Suisse) S.A., Revlon Overseas Corporation C.A., CEIL
-Comercial, Exportadora, Industrial Ltda., Revlon Manufacturing Ltd., Revlon Belgium N.V.,
Revlon (Chile) S.A., Revlon (Hong Kong) Limited, Revlon, S.A., Revlon Nederland B.V.,
Revlon New Zealand Limited, European Beauty Products S.p.A. and Beauty Care Professional
Products Luxembourg, S.a.r.l. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Revlon 1999
Form 10-K).

Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of July 31, 2001 by and between Holdings and Revlon,
Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Products Corporation 2001 Form 10-K).

Subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries of Revlon, Inc.
Consents of Experts and Counsel.
Consent of KPMG LLP.

Powers of Attorney.

Power of Attorney executed by Ronald O. Perelman.
Power of Attorney executed by Donald G. Drapkin.
Power of Attorney executed by Howard Gittis.
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EXHIBIT NO. DESCRIPTION

*24.4 Power of Attorney executed by Edward J. Landau.
*24.5 Power of Attorney executed by Meyer Feldberg.

*24.6 Power of Attorney executed by Vernon E. Jordan, Jr.
*24.7 Power of Attorney executed by Jerry W. Levin.

*24.8 Power of Attorney executed by Linda Gosden Robinson.
*24.9 Power of Attorney executed by Terry Semel.

*24.10 Power of Attorney executed by Martha Stewart.

* Filed herewith.
(b) Reports on Form 8-K.
Form 8-K filed on November 30, 2001 to report the issuance by Products Corporation of $363 million in

principal amount of its 12% Notes in a private placement and the completion of the refinancing of the 1997 Credit
Agreement by entering into the 2001 Credit Agreement.
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REVLON, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Revlon, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Revlon, Inc. and its subsidiaries
as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
stockholders’ deficiency and comprehensive loss and cash flows for each of the years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2001. In connection with our audits of the consolidated
financial statements we have also audited the financial statement schedule as listed on the index on
page F-1. These consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Revlon, Inc. and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and
2000 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year
period ended December 31, 2001, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when
considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents
fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

KPMG LLP

New York, New York
February 25, 2002
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REVLON, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(dollars in millions, except per share data)

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equiValents............ccocvvveeercnierie s
Marketable SECUNILIES.......ecvieeiee e

Trade receivables, less allowances of $15.4

and $16.1, respectively.. ..o
INVENTOTIES. ...ttt
Prepaid expenses and Other..........cccoevvveiieieeecre s

Total CUMTENE ASSELS.....eivvivreeieecere e

Property, plant and equipment, Net.........ccccevvererevenie s
OLNEE BSSBLS...e.vivietiiteete sttt sbe e

INtangible @sSets, NEL.........ccvveieiire e
TOtAl @SSELS... .ot

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIENCY

Current liabilities:

Short-term borrowings - third parties...........ccoovvevviveiererescnienens
ACCOUNES PAYADIE. ..o e
Accrued expenses and Other.........cccoevvreireeerere e

Total current Habilities.........coovvvriirini

Long-term debt - third Parties ..........ccccvevvierieeierere e
Long-term debt - affiliates.........cceveveriieiecicece e,
Other long-term Habilities..........cccovviviveiieicerc e

Stockholders' deficiency:

Preferred stock, par value $.01 per share; 20,000,000
shares authorized, 546 shares of Series A Preferred Stock
issued and outStANdiNG.........cccevvriereeesieee e
Preferred stock, par value $.01 per share; 20,000,000
shares authorized, 4,333 shares of Series B Convertible
Preferred Stock issued and outstanding.........c..cceevevvevvererienn.
Class B Common Stock, par value $.01 per share; 200,000,000
shares authorized, 31,250,000 issued and outstanding...........
Class A Common Stock, par value $.01 per share; 350,000,000
shares authorized, 20,516,135 and 20,115,935 issued and
outstanding, reSPECtiVElY........ccovvvvriviiverierercs e
Capital defiCIENCY.....ccoviiiiiecr e
Accumulated deficit since June 24, 1992..........ccccevvivieniiinienenenns
Accumulated other comprehensive 10SS..........cccocvvvvveveereicnenenan
Total stockholders' defiCienCy.........ccovvvvevivvivvivice e
Total liabilities and stockholders' deficiency..........cc.ccevvuenne,

$

$

December 31,

December 31,

2001 2000
1033  $ 56.3

2.2 -
203.9 220.5
157.9 184.8
45.6 66.1
512.9 527.7
142.8 221.7
143.4 146.3
198.5 206.1
9976 $ 1,018
175  $ 30.7
87.0 86.3
281.3 310.7
385.8 4277
1,619.5 1,539.0
24.1 24.1
250.9 217.7
54.6 54.6
0.3 0.3
0.2 0.2
(201.3) (210.3)
(1,075.4) (921.7)
(61.1) (29.8)
(1,282.7) (1,106.7)
9976 $  1,101.8

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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REVLON, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(dollars in millions, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
N SAIES. ..ottt ettt et e et e et e e e e e e e reree s $ 13215 $ 14478  $ 1,709.9
COSt OF SAIES......ceiiiecicre e 544.2 574.3 726.3
GrOSS PrOfit.....cveiiiiicc 777.3 873.5 983.6
Selling, general and administrative XpPeNnSes...........ccoverererieserieneanes 723.1 803.5 1,155.4
Restructuring costs and Other, Net...........cccovviiiiiiniiniiisese e 38.1 54.1 40.2
Operating iNCOME (10SS).....cvvvvirririerierieriesieieieie e 16.1 15.9 (212.0)
Other expenses (income):
INEEIEST EXPENSE. ..e.vieieeiete ettt ettt ettt srenreens 140.5 144.5 147.9
INEErESE INCOME......iiiiiiiiiice e (3.9) (2.1) (2.8)
Amortization of debt iSSUANCE COSTS.........errererereriiieceresieneies 6.2 5.6 4.3
Foreign currency 10sses (gains), Net........ccocvvvvevierenerierierieieeianens 2.2 1.6 (0.5)
Loss (gain) on sale of product line, brands and facilities, net......... 144 (10.8) 0.9
MiSCEllan@OUS, NBL.......cccveieieieere e 2.7 (1.8) -
Other eXPenSES, NEL.......ccivererirereseee e 162.1 137.0 149.8
Loss before income taxes and extraordinary item..........ccocovvvvevnivinnnns (146.0) (121.1) (361.8)
Provision for iNCOME taXES..........coervrriireireisesee s 4.1 8.6 9.1
Loss before extraordinary item...........ccooeveiriniiniinininesesene e (150.1) (129.7) (370.9)
Extraordinary item - early extinguishment of debt, net of tax.............. (3.6) - -
INBE TOSS. ...ttt $ (153.7) $ (129.7) $ (370.9)
Basic and diluted loss per common share:
Loss before extraordinary iteM...........cccovrereeieneivreinseieseeseeens $ (2.87) $ (2.49) $ (7.12)
EXtraordinary it€mS...........cucvivienerieieiesiesess s (0.07) - -
Net [0SS per COMMON Share.........ccooevreeiieerieeree e $ (2.94) $ (2.49) $ (7.12)
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:
Basic and dilULEd..........ccvveeieeeee ettt 52,199,349 52,166,980 52,073,558

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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REVLON, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIENCY AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
(dollars in millions)

Accumulated

Other Total
Preferred Common Capital Accumulated Comprehensive  Stockholders'
Stock Stock Deficiency Deficit Loss (a) Deficiency
Balance, January 1, 1999........cccccecvivvniennrereneeeeeenns $ 546 $ 05 $ (209.1) $ (421.1) $ (726) $ (647.7)
Issuance of common stock.. 0.1 0.1
Net distribution from affiliate.............ccccorevinnnne. (2.0) (c) (1.0)
Comprehensive loss:
NEE H0SS. ... (370.9) (370.9)
Adjustment for minimum
pension liability........c.cccccovviennnnnn 27.6 27.6
Revaluation of marketable securities........... (0.8) (0.8)
Currency translation adjustment................. (22.3) 22.3
Total comprehensive 10SS..........cceeiireeneninicenne (366.4)
Balance, December 31, 1999............ccoovvvmvvinrvrsreennns 54.6 0.5 (210.0) (792.0) (68.1) (1,015.0)
Issuance of common stock...... 11 11
Net distribution from affiliate............c.coovvvevriennne. 1.4) (c) (1.4)
Comprehensive loss:
NEEH0SS. ..t (129.7) (129.7)
Adjustment for minimum
pension liability.... 13 1.3
Loss on marketable securities.... 3.8 (b) 3.8
Currency translation adjustment................... 33.2 (b) 33.2
Total comprehensive 10SS..........cceevveeveeerineennne (91.4)
Balance, December 31, 2000..........ccccocvrvrererverenennnnns 54.6 0.5 (210.3) (921.7) (29.8) (1,106.7)
Net distribution from affiliate............c.ccovvvevriennne. (2.0) (c) (1.0)
Capital contribution from indirect parent............... 10.0 10.0
Comprehensive loss:
NEE 0SS ... (153.7) (153.7)
Adjustment for minimum
pension liability..........c.cccvnenenne (42.5) (42.5)
Revaluation of forward currency contracts.. 0.1 0.1
Currency translation adjustment................... 11.1 (b) 11.1
Total comprehensive loss (185.0)
Balance, December 31, 2001..........ccccocvvvrvereriereneinnnnns $ 546 $ 05 $ (201.3) $ (1,075.4) $ (61.1) $ (1,282.7)

(a) Accumulated other comprehensive loss includes unrealized gains on revaluations of forward currency contracts of $0.1 for 2001,

unrealized losses on marketable securities of $3.8 for 1999, cumulative net translation losses of $15.1, $26.2 and $59.4 for 2001, 2000
and 1999, respectively, and adjustments for the minimum pension liability of $46.1, $3.6 and $4.9 for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

(b) The currency translation adjustment as of December 31, 2001 and December 31, 2000 includes a reclassification adjustment of $7.1

and $48.3, respectively, for realized lossses on foreign currency adjustments associated primarily with the sale of the Colorama brand
in Brazil and the sale of the Company's worldwide professional products line and for marketable securities, respectively. Accumulated

other comprehensive loss as of December 31, 2000 also includes $3.8 in realized losses on marketable securities.
(c) Represents net distributions in capital from the Charles of the Ritz business (See Note 15).

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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REVLON, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(dollars in millions)

Year Ended December 31,

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 2001 2000 1999

NELIOSS .ttt be e are s $ (153.7) $ (129.7) $ (370.9)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash
(used for) provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization............ccceoceeerereinienie e 1151 126.9 126.1
EXraordinary ieMS........ccoierereiire et 3.6 - -
Gain on sale of marketable SECUFItIes...........ccoivereieiiiiiiccee e (2.2) - -
Loss (gain) on sale of certain assets, net 144 (13.2) 1.6
Change in assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions and dispositions:
Decrease in trade receivables..........ccoooveiiiniiiiniiene e 5.9 29.1 187.2
Decrease (increase) in iNVENLOFIES. .......ccccorererrererienieiee e e 10.2 32.8 (22.3)
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and
Other CUITeNt @SSELS.......coviveeieerieiecre e (2.3) 18.8 12.6
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 4.4 (21.0) 10.8
(Decrease) increase in accrued expenses and other
current liabilities.......c.ocoeeveicieieiccc e (42.5) (80.7) 20.5
Purchase of permanent displays (44.0) (51.4) (66.5)
Other, net . 4.6 4.4 19.1
Net cash used for operatlng actlvmes ........................................................ (86.5) (84.0) (81.8)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Capital eXPENAITUIES......c.viiieier et (15.1) (19.0) (42.3)
Acquisition of technology rights............ccocooiiiiiiiii e - (3.0) -
Proceeds from the sale of certain assets..........cccoovrireneieieiine e 102.3 344.1 1.6
Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities.............cccveevreeennnne. 87.2 322.1 (40.7)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net (decrease) increase in short-term borrowings - third parties............... (11.3) 2.7) 12.3
Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt - third parties.................... 698.5 339.1 574.5
Repayment of long-term debt - third parties...........c.ccoovevvvivieiiiiiiiniieiinns (614.0) (538.7) (464.9)
Net proceeds from issuance of common StOCK..........ccoceeeveriiniiieiiiiiesienas - - 0.1
Net distribution from affiliate (1.0) 1.4) (1.0)
Proceeds from the issuance of debt - affiliates..............ccccoeeririnnciinnns - - 67.1
Repayment of debt - affiliates...........cccoceveviiciiiiicie e - - (67.1)
Payment of debt issuance COStS.........ccccourirerieiriinennne (25.9) - (3.5)
Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities . 46.3 (203.7) 117.5
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equwalents... - (3.5) (4.3)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents.............c.cc.c...... 47.0 30.9 (9.3)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period..........ccccccooviiiennns 56.3 254 34.7
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period........c...cccevvvveeicecrevennnan, $ 1033 $ 563 $ 25.4
Supplemental schedule of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the period for:
INEEIESE ..ottt ettt $ 1346 3 1413  $ 146.1
Income taxes, net of refunds..........oceeeeveeiei i 34 4.7 8.2
Supplemental schedule of noncash financing activities:
Noncash capital contribution from indirect parent pursuant to the
amended tax sharing agreement..........ccocooeveerenevenese s $ 100 $ - $ -
Issuance of COMMON SLOCK...........ccovviriiiiiiiiiiirirrceeeee e - 11 -
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REVLON, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLI DATED FI NANCI AL STATEMENTS

(dollars in millions, except per share data)
1. Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentation:

Revlon, Inc. (and together with its subsidiaries, the “Company”) conducts its business
exclusively through its direct subsidiary, Revlon Consumer Products Corporation and its
subsidiaries (“Products Corporation”). The Company manufactures and sells an extensive array of
cosmetics and skin care, fragrances and personal care products. Prior to March 30, 2000, the
Company sold professional products for use in and resale by professional salons. On March 30,
2000, the Company sold its professional products line and on May 8, 2000 sold the Plusbelle brand
in Argentina. On July 16, 2001 the Company sold the Colorama brand in Brazil. (See Note 3). The
Company’s principal customers include large mass volume retailers and chain drug stores, as well
as certain department stores and other specialty stores, such as perfumeries. The Company also
sells consumer products to United States military exchanges and commissaries and has a licensing

group.

Unless the context otherwise requires, all references to the Company mean Revlon, Inc.
and its subsidiaries. Revlon, Inc., as a public holding company, has no business operations of its
own and its only material asset has been all of the outstanding capital stock of Products
Corporation. As such, its net (loss) income has historically consisted predominantly of its equity in
the net (loss) income of Products Corporation and in 2001, 2000 and 1999 included approximately
$2.6, $1.7 and $1.2, respectively, in expenses incidental to being a public holding company.

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company after
elimination of all material intercompany balances and transactions. Further, the Company has
made a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting of assets and liabilities, the
disclosure of liabilities and the reporting of revenues and expenses to prepare these financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

The Company is an indirect majority owned subsidiary of MacAndrews & Forbes Holdings
Inc. (“MacAndrews Holdings”), a corporation wholly owned indirectly through Mafco Holdings
Inc. (“Mafco Holdings” and, together with MacAndrews Holdings, “MacAndrews & Forbes”) by
Ronald O. Perelman.

In Novenber 2001, the FASB Enmerging |ssues Task Force (the
“EITF”) reached consensus on EITF Issue 01-9 entitled,
“Accounting for Consideration Gven by a Vendor to a Custoner
or a Reseller of the Vendor’s Products” (the *“Cuidelines”),
whi ch addresses when sales incentives and discounts should be
recogni zed, as well as where the related revenues and expenses
should be classified in the financial statenents. The Conpany
adopted the earlier portion of these new Guidelines (fornerly
EITF Issue 00-14) addressing certain sales incentives
effective January 1, 2001, and accordingly, all prior period
financial statements reflect the inplenmentation of the earlier
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portion of the Quidelines. The inpact on net sales, gross
profit and selling, general and admnistrative expenses
(“SG&A”) as a result of adopting the earlier portion of these
new Qui delines was $46.8, $67.2 and $67.2 and $154.5, $193.5
and $193.5 in 2000 and 1999, respectively. The Conpany
adopted the second portion of the Guidelines (fornmerly EITF
| ssue 00-25) effective January 1, 2002. (See Note 19).

Ef fective Septenber 2001, Revl on, Inc. acquired from
Hol di ngs (as hereinafter defined) all the assets and liabilities
of the Charles of the Ritz brand (which Revlon, Inc. contributed
to Products Corporation). (See Note 15).

Certain anounts in the prior year financial statenents have
been reclassified to conformto the current year’s presentation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash equivalents (primarily investments in time deposits, which have original maturities of
three months or less) are carried at cost, which approximates fair value. Approximately $15.3 and
$22.2 was restricted and supported short-term borrowings at December 31, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. (See Note 8).

Inventories:

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market value. Cost is principally determined
by the first-in, first-out method.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Other Assets:

Property, plant and equipment is recorded at cost and is depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives of such assets as follows: land improvements, 20 to 40 years;
buildings and improvements, 5 to 45 years; machinery and equipment, 3 to 17 years; and office
furniture and fixtures and capitalized software, 2 to 12 years. Leasehold improvements are
amortized over their estimated useful lives or the terms of the leases, whichever is shorter. Repairs
and maintenance are charged to operations as incurred, and expenditures for additions and
improvements are capitalized.

Long-lived assets, including fixed assets and intangibles other than goodwill, are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
an asset may not be recoverable. If events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable, the Company estimates the undiscounted future cash
flows (excluding interest) resulting from the use of the asset and its ultimate disposition. If the
sum of the undiscounted cash flows (excluding interest) is less than the carrying value, the
Company recognizes an impairment loss, measured as the amount by which the carrying value
exceeds the fair value of the asset.

At the beginning of the fourth quarter in 2000, the Company decided to consolidate its
manufacturing facility in Phoenix, Arizona into its manufacturing facility in Oxford, North

F-41



Carolina, which was completed in late 2001. As a result, the Company depreciated the net book
value of the facility in excess of its estimated salvage value over its remaining useful life.

Included in other assets are permanent displays amounting to approximately $91.8 and
$111.6 (net of amortization of $62.6 and $68.3) as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively,
which are amortized over 3 to 5 years. In addition, the Company has included in other assets
charges related to the issuance of its debt instruments amounting to approximately $33.3 and $19.0
(net of amortization of $6.2 and $5.6) as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively, which are
amortized over the terms of the related debt instruments.

Intangible Assets Related to Businesses Acquired:

I nt angi bl e assets related to businesses acquired principally
represent goodwill, the majority of which has been anortized on a
straight-line basis over 40 years. The Conpany eval uates, when
circunstances warrant, the recoverability of its intangible
assets on the basis of undiscounted cash flow projections. Wen
inpairnment is indicated, the Conpany wites down recorded anounts
of goodwill to the estimted anount of undiscounted cash fl ows.
Accurul at ed anorti zation aggregated $117.1 and $110.0 at Decenber
31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Revenue Recognition:

The Conpany recogni zes net sal es upon shi pnent of
nmer chandi se. Net sales is conprised of gross revenues | ess
expected returns, trade discounts and custoner allowances, which
i ncl ude costs associated with off-invoice mark-downs and ot her
price reductions, as well as coupons. These incentive costs are
recogni zed at the later of the date on which the Conpany
recogni zes the related revenue or the date on which the Conpany
offers the incentive. The Conpany records sales returns as a
reduction to sales, cost of sales and accounts receivable and an
increase to inventory. Cost of sales includes the cost of
refurbi shnment of returned products. Additionally, cost of sales
reflects the costs associated with free products, buy-one-get-one
free, trial-size itens, gift-wth-purchase and other types of
i ncentives. These incentive costs are recognized on the | ater of
the date the Conpany recogni zes the rel ated revenue or the date
on which the Conpany offers the incentive. The Conpany adopted
the second portion of EITF Issue 01-9 (fornerly EITF I ssue 00-25)
effective January 1, 2002. (See Note 19).
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Income Taxes:

Income taxes are calculated using the liability method in accordance with the provisions of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.”

Revlon, Inc., for federal income tax purposes, is included in the affiliated group of which
Mafco Holdings is the common parent, and Revlon, Inc.’s federal taxable income and loss is
included in such group’s consolidated tax return filed by Mafco Holdings. Revlon, Inc. also may
be included in certain state and local tax returns of Mafco Holdings or its subsidiaries. For all
periods presented, federal, state and local income taxes are provided as if the Company filed its
own income tax returns. On June 24, 1992, Revlon Holdings Inc. (“Holdings”), an affiliate and
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Mafco Holdings, the Company and certain of its subsidiaries
and Mafco Holdings entered into a tax sharing agreement, which is described in Notes 12 and 15.

Pension and Other Postretirement and Postemployment Benefits:

The Company sponsors pension and other retirement plans in various forms covering
substantially all employees who meet eligibility requirements. For plans in the United States, the
minimum amount required pursuant to the Employee Retirement Income Security Act, as
amended, is contributed annually. Various subsidiaries outside the United States have retirement
plans under which funds are deposited with trustees or reserves are provided.

The Company accounts for benefits such as severance, disability and health insurance
provided to former employees prior to their retirement when it is probable that a liability has been
incurred and the amount of such liability can be reasonably estimated.

Research and Development:

Research and development expenditures are expensed as incurred. The amounts charged
against earnings in 2001, 2000 and 1999 were $24.4, $27.3 and $32.9, respectively.

Foreign Currency Translation:

Assets and liabilities of foreign operations are generally translated into United States
dollars at the rates of exchange in effect at the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are
generally translated at the weighted average exchange rates prevailing during each period
presented. Gains and losses resulting from foreign currency transactions are included in the results
of operations. Gains and losses resulting from translation of financial statements of foreign
subsidiaries and branches operating in non-hyperinflationary economies are recorded as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive loss until either sale or upon complete or
substantially complete liquidation by the Company of its investment in a foreign entity. Foreign
subsidiaries and branches operating in hyperinflationary economies translate non-monetary assets
and liabilities at historical rates and include translation adjustments in the results of operations.

Sale of Subsidiary Stock:

The Company recognizes gains and losses on sales of subsidiary stock in its Consolidated
Statements of Operations.
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Basic and Diluted (Loss) Income per Common Share and Classes of Stock:

The basic (loss) incone per conmon share has been conputed
based upon the wei ghted average nunber of shares of common stock
out st andi ng during each of the periods presented. Diluted (Il oss)
i ncone per conmmon share has been conputed based upon the wei ghted
average nunber of shares of common stock outstanding. The
Conmpany’s outstanding stock options and restricted stock
represent the only potential dilutive commobn stock outstanding.
The nunber of shares used in the cal culation of basic and dil uted
| oss per commopn share was the sane in each period presented, as
it does not include any increnental shares that would have been
outstanding assumng the exercise of stock options or the
i ssuance of restricted stock because the effect of those
i ncrenmental shares woul d have been antidilutive. For each period
presented, the amount of loss used in the calculation of diluted
| oss per common share was the sane as the anount of |oss used in
the cal cul ation of basic | oss per common share.

The Revlon, Inc. Class A Common Stock, par value $.01 per share (the “Class A
Common Stock™) and the Revlon, Inc. Class B Common Stock, par value $.01 per share (the
“Class B Common Stock™) (collectively with the Class A Common Stock, the “Common Stock”),
vote as a single class on all matters, except as otherwise required by law, with each share of
Class A Common Stock entitling its holder to one vote and each share of the Class B Common
Stock entitling its holder to ten votes. All of the shares of Class B Common Stock are owned by
REV Holdings Inc. (“REV Holdings”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Mafco Holdings.
Mafco Holdings beneficially owns shares of Common Stock having approximately 97.3% of the
combined voting power of the outstanding shares of Common Stock. The holders of the
Company’s two classes of common stock are entitled to share equally in the earnings of the
Company from dividends, when and if declared by the Board. Each outstanding share of Class B
Common Stock is convertible into one share of Class A Common Stock.

The Company designated 1,000 shares of Preferred Stock as the Series A Preferred Stock, of which 546
shares are outstanding and held by REV Holdings. The holder of Series A Preferred Stock is not entitled to receive
any dividends. The Series A Preferred Stock is entitled to a liquidation preference of $100,000 per share before any
distribution is made to the holders of Common Stock. The holder of the Series A Preferred Stock does not have any
voting rights, except as required by law. The Series A Preferred Stock may be redeemed at any time by the
Company, at its option, for $100,000 per share. However, the terms of Products Corporation’s various debt
agreements currently restrict Revlon, Inc.’s ability to effect such redemption by generally restricting the amount of
dividends or distributions Products Corporation can pay to Revlon, Inc.

The Conpany designated 4,333 shares of Preferred Stock as
the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (the “Series B Preferred
Stock”), all of which are outstanding and held by REV Hol di ngs.
The Series B Preferred Stock is entitled to receive dividends if
t he Conpany decl ares or pays any dividends on the Conpany’ s O ass
A Common Stock in an anmount per share of Series B Preferred Stock
as if the shares of Series B Preferred Stock had been converted
into the Conmpany’s Class A Common Stock entitled to such
di vi dend. The Series B Preferred Stock is entitled to a
l'i qui dati on preference of $720.0554 per share plus the anount of
decl ared but unpaid dividends as of the date of any I|iquidation,
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di ssolution or wi nding up of the Conpany before any distributions
are made to the holders of Common Stock. Each of the outstanding
4,333 shares of Series B Preferred Stock of Revlon, Inc. is
entitled to 100 votes and is convertible into 100 shares of C ass
A Conmmon St ock. Such conversion rights are subject to approval
by Revlon, Inc.’s stockholders at its 2002 Annual Meeting of
St ockhol ders. At its option, the Conpany nmay redeem the Series B
Preferred Stock at any tinme at |east 30 days after stockhol der
approval of the conversion rights for $720.0554 per share.
However, the terns of Products Corporation’s various debt
agreenents currently restrict Revlon, Inc.’s ability to effect
such redenption by generally restricting the amount of dividends
or distributions Products Corporation can pay to Revlon, Inc.

St ock- Based Conpensati on:

SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” encourages, but does not
require companies to record compensation cost for stock-based employee compensation plans at
fair value. The Company has chosen to account for stock-based compensation plans using the
intrinsic value method prescribed in Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations including FASB
Interpretation No. 44, “Accounting for Certain Transactions Involving Stock Compensation, an
Interpretation of APB No. 25” issued in March 2000. Accordingly, compensation cost for stock
options issued to employees is measured as the excess, if any, of the quoted market price of the
Company’s stock at the date of the grant over the amount an employee must pay to acquire the
stock. (See Note 14).

Derivative Financial Instruments:

On January 1, 2001, the Conpany adopted SFAS 133,
“Accounting for Derivative Instrunments and Hedgi ng Activities,”
as anended. The standard requires the recognition of al
derivative instrunments on the bal ance sheet as either assets or
liabilities neasured at fair value. Changes in fair value are
recogni zed i mredi ately in earnings unless the derivatives qualify
as hedges of future cash flows. For derivatives qualifying as
hedges of future cash flows, the effective portion of changes in
fair value is recorded as a conponent of O her Conprehensive
I nconme and recogni zed i n earnings when the hedged transaction is
recogni zed in earnings. Any ineffective portion (representing
the extent that the change in fair value of the hedges does not
conpletely offset the change in the anticipated net paynents
bei ng hedged) is recognized in earnings as it occurs. There was
no cumul ative effect recogni zed for adopting this accounting
change.

The Conpany formally designates and docunents each financi al
instrunment as a hedge of a specific underlying exposure as well
as the risk managenent objectives and strategies for entering
into the hedge transaction upon inception. The Conpany al so
formal |y assesses upon inception and quarterly thereafter whether
the financial instrunents used in hedging transactions are
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effective in offsetting changes in the fair value or cash flows
of the hedged itens.

The Conpany uses derivative financial instrunents, primarily
forward foreign exchange contracts, to reduce the exposure of
adverse effects of fluctuating foreign currency exchange rates.
These contracts, which have been designhated as cash fl ow hedges,
were entered into primarily to hedge anticipated inventory
purchases and certain interconpany paynents denom nated in
foreign currencies, which have maturities of |ess than one year.
The unrecogni zed i ncone (loss) on the revaluation of forward
currency contracts is recognized in cost of sales upon expiration
of the contract. Throughout 2001, the Conpany entered into these
contracts with a counterparty that is a major financial
institution, and accordingly the Conpany believes that the risk
of counterparty nonperformance is renote. There were no
derivative financial instrunments outstanding at Decenber 31
2001.

The anmount of the hedges’ ineffectiveness as of Decenber 31,
2001 recorded in the Consolidated Statenents of Operations was
not significant.

Advertising and Promotion:

Costs associated with advertising and promotion are expensed in the year incurred. Television advertising
production costs are expensed the first time the advertising takes place. Advertising and promotion expenses were
$272.9, $268.7 and $352.2 for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

The Company has various arrangements with customers to reimburse them for a portion of their advertising
costs, which provide advertising benefits to the Company. Additionally, from time to time the Company may pay fees
to customers in order to expand or maintain shelf space for its products. The costs that the Company incurs for
“cooperative” advertising programs, end cap replacement, shelf replacement costs and slotting fees are expensed as
incurred and are currently included in SG&A expenses on the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations. The
Company adopted the second portion of EITF Issue 01-9 (formerly EITF Issue 00-25) effective January 1, 2002. (See

Note 19).

Distribution Costs:

Costs, such as freight and handling costs, associated with distribution are expensed within SG&A when
incurred. Distribution costs were $65.9, $78.4 and $102.9 for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

2. Restructuring Costs and O her, Net

In late 1998, the Conpany devel oped a strategy to reduce
overall costs and streanline operations. To execute against this
strategy, the Conpany began to develop a restructuring plan and
executed the plan in several phases, which has resulted in
several restructuring charges being recorded.

In the fourth quarter of 1998, the Conpany began to execute
the 1998 restructuring programwhich was designed to realign and
reduce personnel, exit excess |eased real estate, realign and
consolidate regional activities, reconfigure certain
manuf acturi ng operations and exit certain product lines. During
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the nine-nonth period ended Septenber 30, 1999, the Conpany
continued to execute the 1998 restructuring program and recorded
an additional net charge of $20.5 principally for enpl oyee
severance and ot her personnel benefits and obligations for excess
| eased real estate primarily in the United States. Additionally,
in 1999, the Conpany exited a non-core business for which it
recorded a charge of $1.6, which was included in restructuring
costs and ot her, net.

In the fourth quarter of 1999, the Conpany continued to
restructure its organization and began a new programin line with
its original restructuring plan developed in |ate 1998,
principally for additional enployee severance and ot her personnel
benefits and to restructure certain operations outside the United
States, including certain operations in Japan, resulting in a
charge of $18.1. Additionally, during the fourth quarter of 1999
t he Conpany recorded a charge of $22.0 to S&A for executive
separation costs related to this new program In the first
guarter of 2000, the Conpany recorded a charge of $9.5 relating
to the 1999 restructuring programthat began in the fourth
quarter of 1999. The Conpany continued to inplenent the 1999
restructuring programduring the second quarter of 2000 during
which it recorded a charge of $5.1.

During the third quarter of 2000, the Conpany continued to
re-evaluate its organi zational structure. As part of this re-
eval uation, the Conpany initiated a new restructuring program
inline with the original restructuring plan developed in late
1998, designed to inprove profitability by reducing personnel
and consolidating manufacturing facilities. The Conpany
recorded a charge of $13.7 in the third quarter of 2000 for
progranms begun in such quarter, as well as for the expanded

scope  of progr ans previ ously comenced. The 2000
restructuring program focused on the Conmpany’s plans to close
its mnufacturing operations in Phoenix, Arizona and
M ssi ssauga, Canada and to consolidate its cosnetics

production into its plant in Oxford, North Carolina. The 2000
restructuring program also includes the remaining obligation
for excess |leased real estate in the Conpany’s headquarters,
consolidation costs associated with the Conpany closing its
facility in New Zealand, and the elimnation of several
donestic and i nt ernati onal executive and oper at i onal
positions, each of which were effected to reduce and
streanm i ne corporate overhead costs. In the fourth quarter of
2000, the Conpany recorded a charge of $25.8 related to the
2000 restructuring program principally for addi ti onal
enpl oyee severance and other personnel benefits and to
consol i date worl dwi de operati ons.

In the first, second, third and fourth quarters of 2001, the
Conmpany recorded charges of $14.6, $7.9, $3.0 and $12.6,
respectively, related to the 2000 restructuring program
principally for additional enployee severance and ot her personnel
benefits, relocation and other costs related to the consolidation
of worl dwi de operations. The charge in the fourth quarter of 2001
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al so
$6. 6.

was for an adjustnent to previous estimates of approxi mately

In connection with the 1999 restructuring program
and the 2000 restructuring program termnation benefits for
403 enployees and 2,188 enployees, respectively, were
included in the Conpany’s restructuring charges of which 394
and 2,009 enpl oyees have been term nated as of Decenber 31,
2001. The remaini ng enpl oyees from the 2000 restructuring
program are expected to be termnated wthin one year from
the date of their notification.
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Details of the activity described above during 2001, 2000
and 1999 are as foll ows:

Balance Balance
Beginning Utilized, Net End
of Year Expenses, Net Cash Noncash of Year
2001
Employee severance and other
personnel benefits...........ccoocveveriennnne, $ 286 % 2715 $ (410 $ - $ 15.1
RelOCAtIoN. ... - 38 (3.8) - -
Leases and equipment write-offs................. 5.9 5.6 (4.0 0.2) 74
Other obligations.........ccococeueeerrvnereceeeen, 15 1.2 (2.4) - 0.3
$ 360 $ 381 $ (612 $ (01 $ 22.8
2000
Employee severance and other
personnel benefits...........ccecvcieriennnnn, $ 246 % 46 $ (395 $ (11 3 28.6
RElOCALION. ... - - - - -
Leases and equipment write-offs................... 7.6 6.9 (3.9) (5.2 5.9
Other obligations...........coceereeerrrereveecenennnnn: 1.8 2.6 (2.9) - 15
$ 340 % 541 $ (458 $ (63 $ 36.0
1999
Employee severance and other
personnel benefits.........c...cocvevvcverninnen. $ 249 % 3B3 $ (356 $ - $ 24.6
RElOCALION. ... - - - - -
Leases and equipment write-offs................... 121 15 (4.6) 1.9 7.6
Other obligations.........ccococoeveerrnnenecieeeen, - 18 - - 18
Other ...t s - 1.6 (1.6) - -
$ 370 % 402 $ (418 $__ (14 S 34.0

In connection with the 2000 restructuring program in the
begi nning of the fourth quarter of 2000, the Conpany decided to
consolidate its manufacturing facility in Phoenix, Arizona into
its manufacturing facility in Oxford, North Carolina. The plan
was to relocate substantially all of the Phoenix equipnment to the
Oxford facility and conmence production there over a period of
approxi mately nine nonths which would all ow the Conpany to fully
staff the Oxford facility and to produce enough inventory through
a conbination of production in the Phoenix and Oxford facilities
to meet supply chain demand as the Phoenix facility production
lines were dismantl ed, noved across the country, and placed into
service at the Oxford facility. Substantially all production at
the Phoenix facility ceased by June 30, 2001, and the facility
was sold. The useful life of the facility and production assets
whi ch woul d not be relocated to the Oxford facility was shortened
at the time the decision was nade to the nine-nonth period in
whi ch the Phoenix facility would continue production. The
Conmpany began depreciating the net book val ue of the Phoeni x
facility and production equi prment in excess of its estinmated
sal vage val ue over the estinmated nine-nonth useful life. This
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resulted in the recognition of increased depreciation throug
June 30, 2001 of $6.1, which is included in cost of sales.
to the sale of the Phoenix facility in the second quarter of
2001, there was no additional increased depreciation charged
subsequent to June 30, 2001.

As of Decenber 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, the unpaid bal ance
enses
any’s
Consol i dated Bal ance Sheets. The remaining balance at
onnel

of the restructuring costs are included in accrued exp
and other and other long-term liabilities in the Conp

Decenber 31, 2001 for enployee severance and ot her pers

h
Due

benefits of $15.1 are expected to be paid by the end of

2002, | ease and equi pnent obligations of $7.4 are exp
to be paid by the end of 2008 and ot her obligations of
are expected to be paid by the end of 2002.
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3. Dispositions

Descri bed below are the principal sales of a product |ine,
certain brands and facilities entered into by Products
Cor porations during 2001 and 2000:

On March 30, 2000, Products Corporation conpleted the
di sposition of its worldw de professional products 1line,
including professional hair care for use in and resale by
prof essional salons, ethnic hair and personal care products,
Natural Honey skin care and certain regional toiletries
brands, for $315 in cash, before adjustments, plus $10 in
purchase price payable in the future, contingent upon the
purchasers’ achievenent of certain rates of return on their
i nvest nent . The disposition involved the sale of certain of
Products Corporation’s subsidiaries throughout the world
devoted to the professional products line, as well as assets
dedi cated exclusively or primarily to the lines being
di sposed. The worldw de professional products I|ine was
purchased by a conpany forned by CVC Capital Partners, the
Col omer famly and other investors, led by Carlos Coloner, a
former manager of the line that was sold, followng arns’ -
| ength negotiation of the ternms of the purchase agreenent,
i ncl udi ng t he determ nation of t he amount of t he
consi derati on. In connection wth the disposition, the
Conmpany recognized a pre-tax and after-tax gain of $13.4,
$14.8 of which was recorded in 2000 and $1.4 of additional
costs was recorded in the fourth quarter of 2001.
Approxi mately $150.3 of the Net Proceeds (as defined in the
Credit Agreenment) were used to reduce the aggregate conm tnent
under the 1997 Credit Agreenent (as hereinafter defined).

Oh May 8, 2000, Products Corporation conpleted the
di sposition of the Plusbelle brand in Argentina for $46.2 in
cash. Approxi mately $20.7 of the Net Proceeds were used to
reduce the aggregate commtnent under the 1997 Credit
Agr eenent . In connection with the disposition, the Conpany
recogni zed a pre-tax and after-tax | oss of $4.8.

In April 2001, Products Corporation sold land in Minami Aoyama near Tokyo, Japan and
related rights for the construction of a building on such land (the “Aoyama Property”) for
approximately $28. In connection with such disposition, the Company recognized a pre-tax and
after-tax loss of $0.8 during the second quarter of 2001.

In May 2001, Products Corporation sold its Phoenix, Arizona
facility for approximately $7 and |eased it back through the
end of 2001. After recognition of increased depreciation in
the first quarter of 2001, the Conpany recorded a |oss on the
sale of $3.7 in the second quarter of 2001, which is included
in SGRA expenses.

In July 2001, Products Corporation completed the disposition of the Colorama brand of cosmetics and hair
care products as well as Products Corporation’s manufacturing facility located in S&o Paulo, Brazil, for
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approximately $57. Products Corporation used $22 of the net proceeds, after transaction costs and retained
liabilities, to permanently reduce commitments under the 1997 Credit Agreement. In connection with such
disposition, the Company recognized a pre-tax and after-tax loss of $6.7.

In July 2001, Products Corporation conpleted the disposition of its
subsidiary that owned and operated its manufacturing facility in
Maest eg, Wales (UK), including all production equipnent. As part
of this sale, Products Corporation entered into a long-term
supply agreenent wth the purchaser pursuant to which the
purchaser manufactures and supplies to Products Corporation
cosnetics and personal care products for sale throughout Europe.
The purchase price was approxinmately $20.0, $10.0 of which was
received on the closing date and $10.0 is to be received over a
si x-year period, a portion of which is contingent upon certain
future events. In connection with such disposition, the Conpany
recogni zed a pre-tax and after-tax | oss of $8.6.

I n Decenber 2001, Products Corporation sold a facility in
Puerto Rico for approximately $4. In connection with such
di sposition, the Conpany recorded a pre-tax and after-tax gain on
the sale of $3.1 in the fourth quarter of 2001.
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The following represents summary unaudited pro forma information of the Company’s results of operations,
which excludes the results of operations of the Colorama brand, the worldwide professional products line and the
Plusbelle brand in Argentina as if the transactions occurred January 1, 2000.

Year Ended December 31,

2001 2000
NEE SAIES.....eeececicie et $ 1,305.1 $ 1,303.7
OpPerating iNCOIME ........ccuiiririeieie ettt 18.7 10.3

4. Inventories
December 31,

2001 2000
Raw materials and SUPPIIES.........ccvveiviiiiicicc e, $ 449 $ 56.2
W OTK-IN-PIOCESS. .. eveierireerieiiiesiestesiesseereeseesiesresresreeneeseeneeseeseenes 10.1 9.4
FINIShed go0dS......cciieiececeece e 102.9 119.2
$ 157.9 $ 184.8

5. Prepaid Expenses and Other
December 31,

2001 2000
Prepaid EXPENSES. ......cicvieiieeeresiee ettt $ 224 $ 22.8
Asset held for Sale.........covvvivviieie e, 34 29.0
L1 1 R 19.8 14.3
$ 45.6 $ 66.1

In the fourth quarter of 2000, Products Corporation listed the Aoyama Property for sale.
The Company recorded a charge, included in selling, general and administrative expenses, of
approximately $9.4 to reduce the net book value of the asset held for sale to its estimated net
realizable value of ¥3.3 billion. (See Note 3).

6. Property, Plant and Equipment, Net
December 31,

2001 2000

Land and iMProVEMENTS..........coeveiireiieieiee e $ 2.4 $ 13.5
Buildings and improvements.............ccoeverireeiene e 79.8 129.3
Machinery and eqQUIPMENT..........c.ccoiiiiriienineeeee e 112.5 179.2
Office furniture and fixtures and capitalized software...............c.c..... 108.8 107.0
Leasehold IMPrOVEMENTS. ........coeiiiiiireeieie e 18.3 22.7
CONSLIUCLION=-IN-PrOGIESS. .. ccuveeieertertertesieetieeeee e seesbe s sieseeeesee e 10.5 11.2
332.3 462.9

Accumulated depreciation...........ccccevevineiinieiice e (189.5) (241.2)
$ 142.8 $ 221.7

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 was $36.8,
$42.4 and $45.9, respectively.
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7. Accrued Expenses and Other
December 31,

2001 2000

Advertising and promotional costs and accrual for sales returns............ $ 129.8 $ 121.8
Compensation and related benefits..........cccccvvvvvinie s 61.6 70.5
INEEIEST. .. 40.2 39.9
Taxes, other than federal iNCOME taXES........covvereirereiinerce e 55 5.6
RESIIUCTUNING COSES.....vivieieriisiesie st eee et nre s 18.9 32.2
OBNET .ttt 25.3 40.7

$ 281.3 $ 310.7

8. Short-term Borrowings

Products Corporation had outstanding short-term bank borrowings (excluding borrowings
under the Credit Agreement (as hereinafter defined)) aggregating $17.5 and $30.7 at December 31,
2001 and 2000, respectively. Interest rates on amounts borrowed under such short-term lines at
December 31, 2001 and 2000 ranged from 3.0% to 5.6% and from 5.5% to 10.3%, respectively,
excluding Latin American countries in which the Company had outstanding borrowings of
approximately $1.2 and $4.9 at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Compensating
balances at December 31, 2001 and 2000 were approximately $15.3 and $22.2, respectively.
Interest rates on compensating balances at December 31, 2001 and 2000 ranged from 2.1% to 4.0%
and 1.5% to 6.5%, respectively.

9. Long-term Debt
December 31,

2001 2000
Credit faCilities (2)......ovvveireiiiicireee e $ 119.2 $ 389.7
8 1/8% Senior Notes due 2006 (D).......ccccvvivrvereereriern e, 249.6 249.5
9% Senior Notes due 2006 (C).....evevrrrerreeiereerieseseeeesieseeseeseeseeseeseenees 250.0 250.0
8 5/8% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2008 (d).........ccccvcvvvrvereervenennn 649.9 649.8
12% Senior Secured Notes due 2005 (£)....vcvvrrreereereriereseseerieseeseenens 350.8 -
Advances from Holdings (f)......cccooviivininiiiiieec v 24.1 24.1

1,643.6 1,563.1

LSS CUITENT POITION. .....cveveiviviiceicscreiee et

$ 1,643.6 $ 1,563.1

(a) On Novenber 30, 2001, Products Corporation entered into
t he Second Anmended and Restated Credit Agreenent (the “2001
Credit Agreenent”) with a syndicate of |enders, whose individual
menbers change fromtine to time, which agreenent anended and
restated the credit agreenent entered into by Products
Corporation in May 1997 (the “1997 Credit Agreenent”; the 2001
Credit Agreenent and the 1997 Credit Agreenent are sonetines
referred to as the “Credit Agreenent”). OnNovember 26, 2001, prior to closing on
the 2001 Credit Agreement, Products Corporation issued and sold in a private placement $363 in aggregate principal
amount of 12% Senior Secured Notes due 2005 (the "12% Notes") at a price of 96.569%, receiving gross proceeds
of $350.5 (see footnote (e) below) (the issuance of the 12% Notes and the 2001 Credit Agreement are referred to
herein as the “2001 Refinancing Transactions™). Products Corporation used the proceeds from the 12% Notes and
borrowings under the 2001 Credit Agreement to repay Out st andi ng i ndebt edness under
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Products Corporation’s 1997 Credit Agreenent and to pay fees and
expenses incurred in connection with the 2001 Refi nancing
Transactions, and the balance is avail able for general corporate
pur poses.

The 2001 Credit Agreement provides up to $250.0 and consists of a $117.9 term loan facility (the “Term
Loan Facility”) and a $132.1 multi-currency revolving credit facility (the “Multi-Currency Facility™) (the Term Loan
Facility and the Multi-Currency Facility being referred as the “Credit Facilities”). The Mul ti - Currency
Facility is available (i) to Products Corporation in revolving
credit l|oans denomnated in US. dollars, (ii) to Products
Corporation in standby and comerci al letters of credit
denominated in US. dollars up to $50.0, $27.3 of which was
i ssued but undrawn at Decenber 31, 2001 and (iii) to Products
Corporation and «certain of its international subsidiaries
designated from tinme to tinme in revolving credit |oans and
bankers’ acceptances denomnated in US. dollars and other
currencies (the “Local Loans”). At Decenber 31, 2001 and 2000,
the Conpany had $117.9 and $106.2, respectively, outstanding
under the Term Loan Facility, $28.6 ($27.3 of which was issued
but undrawn letters of «credit) and $221.2, respectively,
outstanding under the Milti-Currency Facility, $0 and $62. 3,
respectively, outstanding under the revolving acquisition
facility and $0 and $22.6, respectively, of issued but undrawn
|l etters of credit under the special standby letter of credit
facility (which latter two facilities were available under the
1997 Credit Agreenent, but have been elimnated in the 2001
Credit Agreenent).

The Credit Facilities (other than loans in foreign
currenci es) bear interest as of Decenber 31, 2001 at a rate equal
to, at Products Corporation’s option, either (A the Alternate
Base Rate plus 3.75% or (B) the Eurodollar Rate plus 4.75%
Loans in foreign currencies bear interest in certain limted
circunstances or if nutually acceptable to Products Corporation
and the relevant foreign lenders at the Local Rate and ot herw se
at the Eurocurrency Rate, in each case plus 4.75% Product s
Corporation pays to those |lenders having nulti-currency
commtnments a conmtment fee of 0.75% of the average daily unused
portion of the Milti-Currency Facility, which fee is payable
quarterly in arrears. Under the Milti-Currency Facility,
Products Corporation pays (i) to foreign lenders a fronting fee
of 0.25% per annum on the aggregate principal anount of specified
Local Loans (which fee is retained by the foreign |enders out of
the portion of the Applicable Margin payable to such foreign
| ender), (ii) to foreign lenders an admnistrative fee of 0.25%
per annum on the aggregate principal anount of specified Local
Loans, (iii) to the multi-currency lenders a letter of credit
commi ssion equal to (a) the Applicable Margin for Eurodollar Rate
| oans (adjusted for the term that the letter of <credit is
outstanding) tinmes (b) the aggregate undrawn face anount of
|l etters of credit and (c) to the issuing lender a letter of
credit fronting fee of 0.25% per annum of the aggregate undrawn
face anount of letters of credit (which fee is a portion of the
Applicable Margin). Products Corporation also paid certain
facility and other fees to the | enders and agents upon cl osing of

F-55



the 2001 Credit Agreenent. Prior to the termnation date of the
2001 Credit Facilities, on each Novenber 30 (comrenci ng Novenber
30, 2002) Products Corporation shall repay $1.25 in aggregate

princi pal anmount of the Term Loan Facility. In addition, prior
to its termnation, the commtnents under the Credit Facilities
will be reduced by: (i) the net proceeds in excess of $10.0 each

year received during such year from sales of assets by Products
Corporation or any of its subsidiaries (and in excess of an
additional $15.0 in the aggregate during the termw th respect to
certain specified dispositions), subject to certain limted
exceptions, (ii) certain proceeds from the sales of collateral
security granted to the lenders, and (iii) the net proceeds from
the issuance by Products Corporation or any of its subsidiaries
of certain additional debt. The 2001 Credit Agreenment wl]l
termnate on May 30, 2005. The wei ghted average interest rates
on the Term Loan Facility, the Milti-Currency Facility and the
revolving acquisition facility (which Jlatter facility was
available under the 1997 Credit Agreenent, but has been
elimnated in the 2001 Credit Agreenent) were 7.75% and 8. 49% at
Decenber 31, 2001, respectively, 10.2% 9.7% and 10.3% at
Decenber 31, 2000, respectively, and 9.9% 8.1% and 9.8% at
Decenber 31, 1999, respectively.

The Credit Facilities are supported by guarantees from
Revlon, 1Inc. and, subject to certain limted exceptions, the
donmestic subsidiaries of Products Corporation. The obligations
of Products Corporation under the Credit Facilities and the
obl i gati ons under the aforenentioned guarantees are secured, on a
first-priority basis (and therefore entitled to paynment out of
the proceeds on any sale of the followng collateral before the
12% Not es, which are secured on a second-priority basis), subject
to certain |imted exceptions, primarily by (i) a nortgage on
Products Corporation’s facility in Oxford, North Carolina; (ii)
the capital stock of Products Corporation and its donestic
subsidiaries and 66% of the capital stock of Product s
Corporation’s and its donestic subsidiaries’ first-tier foreign
subsidiaries; (iii) donestic intellectual property and certain
other donmestic intangibles of Products Corporation and its
donestic subsidiaries; (iv) donestic i nventory, accounts
recei vabl e, equi pnent and certain investnent property of Products
Corporation and its donmestic subsidiaries; and (v) the assets of
certain foreign subsidiary borrowers under the Milti-Currency
Facility (to support their borrowngs only). The Credit
Agreenent provides that the liens on the stock and property
referred to above may be shared from time to tinme, subject to
certain limtations, on a first-priority basis, wth specified
types of other obligations incurred or guaranteed by Products
Corporation, such as interest rate hedging obligations and
working capital lines, and on a second-priority basis wth
Products Corporation’s obligations under the 12% Not es.

The Credit Agreenent contains various material restrictive
covenants prohibiting Products Corporation from (i) incurring
addi ti onal indebtedness or guarantees, with certain exceptions,
(ii) making dividend, tax sharing and other paynents or loans to
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Revlion, 1Inc. or other affiliates, wth certain exceptions,

i ncluding anong others, permtting Products Corporation to pay
di vidends and nmake distributions to Revlon, Inc., anong other
things, to enable Revlon, Inc. to pay expenses incidental to
being a public holding conpany, including, anong other things

prof essional fees such as |legal and accounting, regulatory fees
such as Comm ssion filing fees and other m scell aneous expenses
related to being a public holding conmpany, and, subject to
certain limtations, to pay dividends or neke distributions in
certain circunstances to finance the purchase by Revlon, Inc. of

its Cdass A Common Stock in connection with the delivery of such
commopn stock to grantees under the Revlon, Inc. Anended and
Restated 1996 Stock Plan (the “Amended Stock Plan”), (iii)

creating liens or other encunbrances on Products Corporation s or
its domestic subsidiaries’ assets or revenues, granting negative
pl edges or selling or transferring any of Products Corporation’s
or its donestic subsidiaries’ assets except in the ordinary
course of business, all subject to certain I[imted exceptions,

i ncl udi ng anong others, permtting Products Corporation to create
liens to secure Products Corporations’ obligations under the 12%
Notes, (iv) wth certain exceptions, engaging in nerger or

acquisition transactions, (v) prepayi ng i ndebt edness and
nodifying the ternms of certain indebtedness and specified
material contractual obligations, subject to certain limted

exceptions, (vi) making investnents, subject to certain limted
exceptions, and (vii) entering into transactions with affiliates
of Products Corporation other than upon terns no |ess favorable
to Products Corporation or its subsidiaries than it would obtain
in an arns’ -length transaction. In addition to the foregoing, the
Credit Agreenent contains financial covenants requiring Products
Corporation to maintain specified cunulative EBITDA |evels,
limting the | everage ratio of Products Corporation, and limting
t he anbunt of capital expenditures.

The events of default under the Credit Agreenent include a
Change of Control (as defined in the Credit Agreenent) of
Products Corporation and other customary events of default for
such types of agreenents.

Upon entering into the 2001 Credit Agreement, the Company recorded an extraordinary
charge of $3.6 for associated costs. (See Note 20).

In May 1997, Products Corporation entered into the 1997
Credit Agreenent (as subsequently anmended) with a syndicate of
| enders, whose individual nenbers changed fromtinme to tine. The
1997 Credit Agreenment included, anong other things, (i) atermto
May 2002, and (ii) an original credit facilities conprised of
five senior secured facilities: two termloan facilities, a
mul ti-currency facility, a revolving acquisition facility, which
was al so avail able for general corporate purposes, and a speci al
standby letter of credit facility. The wei ghted average interest
rates on the termloan facilities, nulti-currency facility and
acquisition facility were 10.2% 9.7% and 10. 3% per annum
respectively, at Decenber 31, 2000.
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(b) The 8 1/8% Notes due 2006 (the “8 1/8% Notes”) are senior unsecured obligations of
Products Corporation and rank pari passu in right of payment with all existing and future Senior
Debt (as defined in the indenture relating to the 8 1/8% Notes (the “8 1/8% Notes Indenture”)) of
Products Corporation, including the 12% Notes, 9% Notes and the indebtedness under the Credit
Agreement, and are senior to the 8 5/8% Notes and to all future subordinated indebtedness of
Products Corporation. The 8 1/8% Notes are effectively subordinated to the outstanding
indebtedness and other liabilities of Products Corporation’s subsidiaries. Interest is payable on
February 1 and August 1.

The 8 1/8% Notes nay be redeened at the option of Products
Corporation in whole or fromtine to tine in part at any tinme on
or after February 1, 2002 at the redenption prices set forth in
the 8 1/8% Notes Indenture plus accrued and unpaid interest, if
any, to the date of redenption.

Upon a Change of Control (as defined in the 8 1/8% Notes
| ndenture), Products Corporation will have the option to redeem
the 8 1/8% Notes in whole at a redenption price equal to the
princi pal anount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if
any, thereon to the date of redenption plus the Applicable
Premium (as defined in the 8 1/8% Notes |ndenture) and, subject
to certain conditions, each holder of the 8 1/8% Notes will have
the right to require Products Corporation to repurchase all or a
portion of such holder’'s 8 1/8% Notes at a price equal to 101% of
the principal anount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest,
if any, thereon to the date of repurchase.

The 8 1/8% Notes Indenture contains covenants that, anong
other things, limt (i) the issuance of additional debt and
redeemabl e stock by Products Corporation, (ii) the incurrence of
liens, (iii) the issuance of debt and preferred stock by Products
Corporation’s subsidiaries, (iv) the paynent of dividends on
capital stock of Products Corporation and its subsidiaries and
the redenption of capital stock of Products Corporation and
certain subordinated obligations, (v) the sale of assets and
subsidiary stock, (vi) transactions with affiliates and (vii)
consolidations, nergers and transfers of all or substantially all
Products Corporation s assets. The 8 1/8% Notes Indenture also
prohi bits certain restrictions on di stributions from
subsi di ari es. All  of these Ilimtations and prohibitions,
however, are subject to a nunber of inportant qualifications.

(c) The 9% Senior Notes due 2006 (the “9% Notes”) are senior unsecured obligations of
Products Corporation and rank pari passu in right of payment with all existing and future Senior
Debt (as defined in the indenture relating to the 9% Notes (the “9% Notes Indenture”)) of
Products Corporation, including the 12% Notes, 8 1/8% Notes and the indebtedness under the
Credit Agreement, and are senior to the 8 5/8% Notes and to all future subordinated indebtedness
of Products Corporation. The 9% Notes are effectively subordinated to outstanding indebtedness
and other liabilities of Products Corporation’s subsidiaries. Interest is payable on May 1 and
November 1.
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The 9% Notes may be redeened at the option of Products
Corporation in whole or fromtine to tine in part at any tinme on
or after Novenber 1, 2002 at the redenption prices set forth in
the 9% Notes Indenture plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any,
to the date of redenption. In addition, at any time prior to
Novenber 1, 2001, Products Corporation nay redeem up to 35% of
the aggregate principal anmount of the 9% Notes originally issued
at a redenption price of 109% of the principal anmount thereof,
plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, thereon to the date
fixed for redenption, wth, and to the extent Products
Cor poration receives, the net cash proceeds of one or nore Public
Equity O ferings (as defined in the 9% Notes | ndenture), provided
that at |east $162.5 aggregate principal amount of the 9% Notes
remai ns outstanding i medi ately after the occurrence of each such
redenpti on.

Upon a Change in Control (as defined in the 9% Notes

| ndenture), Products Corporation will have the option to redeem
the 9% Notes in whole at a redenption price equal to the
princi pal anmount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if

any, thereon to the date of redenption plus the Applicable
Premium (as defined in the 9% Notes Indenture) and, subject to
certain conditions, each holder of the 9% Notes wll have the
right to require Products Corporation to repurchase all or a
portion of such holder’s 9% Notes at a price equal to 101% of the
princi pal anmount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if
any, thereon to the date of repurchase.

The 9% Notes | ndenture contains covenants that, anong other

things, limt (i) the issuance of additional debt and
redeemabl e stock by Products Corporation, (ii) the incurrence
of liens, (iii) the issuance of debt and preferred stock by

Products Corporation’s subsidiaries, (iv) the paynent of
di vidends on capital stock of Products Corporation and its
subsidiaries and the redenption of capital stock of Products
Cor poration and certain subordi nated obligations, (v) the sale
of assets and subsidiary stock, (vi) transactions wth
affiliates and (vii) consolidations, nmergers and transfers of
all or substantially all Products Corporation’s assets. The
9% Notes Indenture also prohibits certain restrictions on
distributions fromsubsidiaries. Al of these I[imtations and
prohi bitions, however, are subject to a nunber of inportant
qualifications.

(d) The 8 5/8% Notes due 2008 (the “8 5/8% Notes™) are general unsecured obligations of
Products Corporation and are (i) subordinate in right of payment to all existing and future Senior
Debt (as defined in the indenture relating to the 8 5/8% Notes (the “8 5/8% Notes Indenture”)) of
Products Corporation, including the 12% Notes, 9% Notes, the 8 1/8% Notes and the
indebtedness under the Credit Agreement, (ii) pari passu in right of payment with all future
senior subordinated debt, if any, of Products Corporation and (iii) senior in right of payment to
all future subordinated debt, if any, of Products Corporation. The 8 5/8% Notes are effectively
subordinated to the outstanding indebtedness and other liabilities of Products Corporation’s
subsidiaries. Interest is payable on February 1 and August 1.
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The 8 5/8% Notes nmay be redeened at the option of Products
Corporation in whole or fromtine to tine in part at any tinme on
or after February 1, 2003 at the redenption prices set forth in
the 8 5/8% Notes Indenture plus accrued and unpaid interest, if
any, to the date of redenption.

Upon a Change of Control (as defined in the 8 5/8% Notes
| ndenture), Products Corporation will have the option to redeem
the 8 5/8% Notes in whole at a redenption price equal to the
principal anmount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if
any, thereon to the date of redenption plus the Applicable
Premium (as defined in the 8 5/8% Notes |Indenture) and, subject
to certain conditions, each holder of the 8 5/8% Notes will have
the right to require Products Corporation to repurchase all or a
portion of such holder’'s 8 5/8% Notes at a price equal to 101% of
the principal anount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest,
if any, thereon to the date of repurchase.

The 8 5/8% Notes Indenture contains covenants that, anong
other things, limt (i) the issuance of additional debt and
redeemabl e stock by Products Corporation, (ii) the incurrence of
liens, (iii) the issuance of debt and preferred stock by Products
Corporation’s subsidiaries, (iv) the paynent of dividends on
capital stock of Products Corporation and its subsidiaries and
the redenption of capital stock of Products Corporation, (v) the
sale of assets and subsidiary stock, (vi) transactions wth
affiliates, (vii) consolidations, nergers and transfers of all or
substantially all of Products Corporation’s assets and (viii) the
i ssuance of additional subordinated debt that is senior in right
of payment to the 8 5/8% Notes. The 8 5/8% Notes Indenture also
prohi bits certain restrictions on di stributions from
subsi di ari es. All  of these Ilimtations and prohibitions,
however, are subject to a nunber of inportant qualifications.

(e) On November 26, 2001, prior to closing on the 2001 Credit Agreement, Products
Corporation issued and sold $363.0 in principal amount of 12% Notes in a private placement at a
price of 96.569%, receiving gross proceeds of $350.5. The effective interest rate on the 12% Notes
is 13.125%. On November 26, 2001, the proceeds of the 12% Notes were put into an escrow
account held by Wilmington Trust Company, which proceeds were released to Products
Corporation on November 30, 2001 upon satisfaction of certain conditions, principally Products
Corporation’s closing of the 2001 Credit Agreement, which occurred on November 30, 2001.
Products Corporation used the proceeds from the 12% Notes and borrowings under the 2001 Credit
Agreement to repay outstanding indebtedness under Products Corporation’s 1997 Credit
Agreement and to pay fees and expenses incurred in connection with the 2001 Refinancing
Transactions, and the balance is available for general corporate purposes. On or before February
25, 2002, Products Corporation expects to file a registration statement with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) with respect to an offer to exchange the 12% Notes for
registered notes with substantially the same terms (the “Exchange Offer”).

The 12% Notes were issued pursuant to an Indenture, dated as of November 26, 2001 (the "12% Notes

Indenture™), among Products Corporation, the guarantors party thereto, including Revlon, Inc. as parent guarantor,
and Wilmington Trust Company, as trustee. The 12% Not es are supported by guarantees
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from Revlon, Inc. and, subject to certain limited exceptions, Products Corporation's domestic subsidiaries. The
obligations of Products Corporation under the 12% Notes and the obligations under the aforementioned guarantees
are secured,ona second-priority basis, subject to certain limted
exceptions, primarily by (i) amortgage onProducts Corporation's facility in Oxford, North
Carolina; (ii) the capital stock of Products Corporation and its domestic subsidiaries and 66% of the capital stock of
Products Corporation's and its domestic subsidiaries’ first-tier foreign subsidiaries; (iii) domestic intellectual
property and certain other domestic intangibles of Products Corporation and its domestic subsidiaries; and (iv)
domestic inventory, accounts receivable, equipment and certain investment property of Products Corporation and its
domestic subsidiaries. Such liens are subjectto certain |imtations, which anong

other things, |imt the ability of holders of second-priority
liens from exercising any renmedi es against the collateral while
the Credit Agreement or any other first-priority lien remains in
effect.

The 12% Notesar € seni or secured obligations of Products
Corporation and rank pari passu in right of paynment with al
exi sting and future Senior Debt (as defined in 12% Not es
| ndenture) including the 8 1/8% Notes, the 9% Notes and the
i ndebt edness under the Credit Agreenent, and are senior to the 8
5/ 8% Notesand all future subordi nated i ndebtedness of Products
Corporation. The 12% Notes are effectively subordinated to the
out st andi ng i ndebt edness and other liabilities of Products
Corporation’s subsidiaries.  The12% Notes mature on December 1, 2005.
Interest is payable on June 1 and Decenber 1, begi nning June 1,
2002.

The 12% Notes may be redeened at the option of Products
Corporation in whole or in part at any tinme at a redenption price
equal to the principal anmount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid
interest, if any to the date of redenption, plus the Applicable
Premium (as defined in the 12% Notes | ndenture).

Upon a Change in Control (as defined in the 12% Notes
| ndenture), subject to certain conditions, each holder of the 12%
Notes will have the right to require Products Corporation to
repurchase all or a portion of such holder’s 12% Notes at a price
equal to 101% of the principal amunt thereof, plus accrued and
unpaid interest, if any, thereon to the date of repurchase.

The 12% Not es I ndenture contains covenants that, anong ot her

things, limt (i) the issuance of additional debt and
redeemabl e stock by Products Corporation, (ii) the incurrence
of liens, (iii) the issuance of debt and preferred stock by

Products Corporation’s subsidiaries, (iv) the paynent of
di vidends on capital stock of Products Corporation and its
subsidiaries and the redenption of capital stock of Products
Cor poration and certain subordi nated obligations, (v) the sale
of assets and subsidiary stock, (vi) transactions wth
affiliates and (vii) consolidations, nmergers and transfers of
all or substantially all Products Corporation’s assets. The
12% Notes Indenture also prohibits certain restrictions on
di stributions fromsubsidiaries. Al of these limtations and
prohi bitions, however, are subject to a nunber of inportant
qual i fications.
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The 12% Notes Indenture, 8 1/8% Notes Indenture, the 8 5/8% Notes Indenture and the
9% Notes Indenture contain customary events of default for debt instruments of such type.

(f) During 1992, Holdings made an advance of $25.0 to Products Corporation, evidenced
by subordinated noninterest-bearing demand notes. The notes were subsequently adjusted by
offsets and additional amounts loaned by Holdings to Products Corporation. In 1998,
approximately $6.8 due to Products Corporation from Holdings was offset against the notes
payable to Holdings. At December 31, 2001, the balance of $24.1 is evidenced by
noninterest-bearing promissory notes payable to Holdings that are subordinated to Products
Corporation’s obligations under the Credit Agreement.

(9) Products Corporation borrows funds from its affiliates from time to time to supplement
its working capital borrowings. No such borrowings were outstanding as of December 31, 2001
and 2000. The interest rates for such borrowings are more favorable to Products Corporation than
interest rates under the Credit Agreement. The amount of interest paid by Products Corporation for
such borrowings for 2001, 2000 and 1999 was nil, nil and $0.5, respectively.

The aggregate amounts of long-term debt maturities (at December 31, 2001), in the years
2002 through 2006 are nil, nil, nil, $494.1 and $499.6, respectively, and $649.9 thereafter.

The Company expects that cash flows from operations before interest, cash on hand and
available borrowings under the Multi-Currency Facility of the 2001 Credit Agreement will be
sufficient to enable the Company to meet its anticipated cash requirements during 2002 on a
consolidated basis, including for debt service and expenses in connection with the Company’s
restructuring programs. However, there can be no assurance that the combination of cash flow
from operations, cash on hand and available borrowings under the Multi-Currency Facility of the
2001 Credit Agreement will be sufficient to meet the Company's cash requirements on a
consolidated basis. Additionally, in the event of a decrease in demand for its products or reduced
sales, such development, if significant, could reduce the Company’s cash flow from operations
and could adversely affect the Company’s ability to achieve certain financial covenants under the
2001 Credit Agreement, including the minimum EBITDA covenant, and in such event the
Company could be required to take measures, including reducing discretionary spending. If the
Company is unable to satisfy such cash requirements, the Company could be required to adopt one
or more alternatives, such as reducing or delaying purchases of permanent displays, reducing or
delaying capital expenditures, delaying or revising restructuring programs, restructuring
indebtedness, selling assets or operations, or seeking capital contributions or loans from affiliates
of the Company or issuing additional shares of capital stock of Revlon, Inc. Products Corporation
has received a commitment from an affiliate that is prepared to provide, if necessary, additional
financial support to Products Corporation of up to $40 on appropriate terms through December 31,
2003. There can be no assurance that any of such actions could be effected, that they would
enable the Company to continue to satisfy its capital requirements or that they would be
permitted under the terms of the Company’s various debt instruments then in effect. Revlon, Inc.,
as a holding company, will be dependent on the earnings and cash flow of, and dividends and
distributions from, Products Corporation to pay its expenses and to pay any cash dividend or
distribution on Revlon, Inc.’s Class A Common Stock that may be authorized by the Board of
Directors of Revlon, Inc. The terms of the Credit Agreement, the 12% Notes, the 8 5/8% Notes,
the 8 1/8% Notes and the 9% Notes generally restrict Products Corporation from paying
dividends or making distributions, except that Products Corporation is permitted to pay
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dividends and make distributions to Revlon, Inc., among other things, to enable Revlon, Inc. to
pay expenses incidental to being a public holding company, including, among other things,
professional fees such as legal and accounting, regulatory fees such as Commission filing fees
and other miscellaneous expenses related to being a public holding company and, subject to
certain limitations, to pay dividends or make distributions in certain circumstances to finance the
purchase by Revlon, Inc. of its Class A Common Stock in connection with the delivery of such
Class A Common Stock to grantees under the Amended Stock Plan.
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10. Guarantor Condensed Consolidating Financial Data

The 12% Notes are jointly and severally, fully and unconditionally guaranteed by the
domestic subsidiaries of Products Corporation that guarantee Products Corporation’s 2001 Credit
Agreement (the “Guarantor Subsidiaries”, with Products Corporation’s subsidiaries that do not
guarantee the 12% Notes being the “Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries”). The Supplemental Guarantor
Condensed Consolidating Financials Data presented below presents the balance sheets, statements
of operations and statements of cash flow data (i) for Products Corporation and the Guarantor
Subsidiaries and the Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis (which is derived from
Products Corporation’s historical reported financial information); (ii) for Products Corporation as
the “Parent Company”, alone (accounting for its Guarantor Subsidiaries and the Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries on an equity basis under which the investments are recorded by each entity owning a
portion of another entity at cost, adjusted for the applicable share of the subsidiary’s cumulative
results of operations, capital contributions and distributions, and other equity changes); (iii) for the
Guarantor Subsidiaries alone; and (iv) for the Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries alone. Additionally,
Products Corporation’s 12% Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Revlon, Inc. The
balance sheet, statement of operations and statement of cash flow for Revlon, Inc. have not been
included in the accompanying Supplemental Guarantor Condensed Consolidating Financial Data
as such information is not materially different than those of Products Corporation.

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets
As of December 31, 2001
(dollars in millions)

Non-
Parent Guarantor Guarantor
ASSETS Consolidated Eliminations Company Subsidiaries Subsidiaries
CUITENE @SSELS.....ocvviiciiic s $ 517.9 $ - $ 294.9 $ 28.2 $ 194.8
Intercompany receivables............cccocuvrnniiiiisie - (1,404.5) 769.1 387.1 248.3
Investment in SUDSIIArIES..........ccoeirirreincec e - 1775 (148.3) (28.5) 0.7)
Property, plant and equipment, Net...........coceoevrirreinirirnnens 142.8 - 131.1 3.3 8.4
Other @SSELS........cuviiiiiiiii 132.2 - 69.5 6.7 56.0
Intangible aSSEtS, NEL..........ccvveiririiierieiseeee e 198.5 - 161.9 3.4 33.2
TOtal BSSELS......veviiiriciii $ 9914 $_ (1,227.0) $_ 12782 $ 400.2 $ 540.0
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER'S DEFICIENCY

Current liabilities...........cccovvvviiiiiiic s $ 385.7 $ - $ 2575 $ 21.2 $ 107.0
Intercompany payables...........cccooieininiinienee e - (1,404.5) 425.5 560.7 418.3
Long-term debt........cooiiiiiiice s 1,643.6 - 1,642.2 - 1.4

Other long-term liabilities. ..........ccoeveiiiiieienneieieins 250.9 - 241.8 9.1 -
Total liabilities. ..o 2,280.2 (1,404.5) 2,567.0 591.0 526.7
Stockholder's defiCienCy .........ccccoevvrieniiniinicceees (1,288.8) 177.5 (1,288.8) (190.8) 13.3
Total liabilities and stockholder's deficiency...........cc.c........ $ 9914 $_ (1,227.0) $ 12782 $ 400.2 $ 540.0
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations
For the Year Ended December 31, 2001
(dollars in millions)

Non-
Parent Guarantor Guarantor
Consolidated Eliminations Company Subsidiaries Subsidiaries
Net sales 1,3215 $ (132.9) $ 834.4 $ 158.6 $ 461.4
Cost of sales 544.2 (132.9) 323.8 1215 231.8
Gross profit 777.3 - 510.6 37.1 229.6
Selling, general and administrative expenses.... 720.5 - 466.4 39.0 215.1
Restructuring costs and other, Net...........cccovvviieiiiniineeis 38.1 - 25.4 1.4 11.3
Operating income (loss) 18.7 - 18.8 (3.3) 3.2
Other expenses (income):
INtErest EXPENSE, NEL.......cvvveieiitirieist sttt 137.8 - 132.4 16 3.8
Loss (gain) on sale of product line, brands and facilities, net....... 14.4 - - (0.4) 14.8
MiSCEIlANEOUS, NEL........c.cuiuiireiiiitiieice e 111 - (17.0) (12.7) 40.8
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries.... - (102.4) 51.9 49.0 1.5
Other expenses, net 163.3 (102.4) 167.3 375 60.9
Loss before income taxes and extraordinary item..............cccccevivevnines (144.6) 102.4 (148.5) (40.8) (57.7)
Provision for iINCOME taxes...........ccouovriiiiceiieiireec e 4.0 - 0.1 2.6 1.3
Loss before extraordinary item...........cccuvvriniiceine s (148.6) 102.4 (148.6) (43.4) (59.0)
Extraordinary item - early extinguishment of debt, net of tax............. (3.6) - (3.6) - -
NELIOSS......oiiiiiii $ (1522) % 102.4 $ (152.2) $ (43.4) $ (59.0)
Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flow
For the Year Ended December 31, 2001
(dollars in millions)
Non-
Parent Guarantor Guarantor
Consolidated Eliminations Company Subsidiaries Subsidiaries
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net cash (used for) provided by operating activities.................cc.c..... $ (86.5) $ (1.0) $ (45.1) $ 11.6 $ (52.0)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Capital eXPENItUTES........coviviiiiieieieieii s (15.1) - (13.0) 1.7) (0.4)
Proceeds from the sale of certain assets..............ccccoceerrrncniinnn, 102.3 - 6.7 56.8 38.8
Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities.............c.cccecereens 87.2 - (6.3) 55.1 38.4
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net (decrease) increase in short-term borrowings - third parties......... (11.3) - - 1.6 (12.9)
Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt - third parties. 698.5 - 657.5 229 18.1
Repayment of long-term debt - third parties (614.0) - (520.3) (31.3) (62.4)
Intercompany dividends and net change in intercompany obligation: - 1.0 (14.5) (52.7) 66.2
Net distribution from affiliate (1.0) - (1.0) - -
Payment of debt issuance costs.... (25.9) - (25.9) - -
Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities...............ccccc.... 46.3 1.0 95.8 (59.5) 9.0
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents.. - - - - -
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents. 47.0 - 44.4 7.2 (4.6)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period...........cc.coc.... 56.3 - 10.7 2.9 42.7
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period............c.c.coovrrnnnnn. $ 103.3 $ - $ 55.1 $ 10.1 $ 38.1
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets
As of December 31, 2000
(dollars in millions)

Non-
Parent Guarantor Guarantor
ASSETS Consolidated Eliminations Company Subsidiaries Subsidiaries
Current assets, $ 530.1 $ - $ 249.6 $ 134 $ 267.1
Intercompany receivables... - (1,084.4) 859.1 25.1 200.2
Investment in subsidiaries - 186.7 (111.6) (79.0) 3.9
Property, plant and equipment, net 221.7 - 160.8 1.3 59.6
Other assets 146.3 0.1) 72.3 4.7 69.4
Intangible assets, net... 206.1 - 169.1 4.3 32.7
Total assets $  1,104.2 $  (897.8) $  1,399.3 $ (30.2) % 632.9
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER'S DEFICIENCY
Current Habilities..........covvvveririeeiriccecereeeee s $ 427.7 $ 0.4 $ 277.0 $ 12.3 $ 138.0
Intercompany payable - (1,084.4) 509.3 144.5 430.6
Long-term debt........... 1,563.1 - 1,504.5 8.9 49.7
Other long-term liabilities.. 217.7 - 212.8 - 4.9
Total liabilities 2,208.5 (1,084.0) 2,503.6 165.7 623.2
Stockholder's deficiency .... (1,104.3) 186.2 (1,104.3) (195.9) 9.7
Total liabilities and stockholder's deficiency... $ 1,104.2 $ (897.8) $  1,399.3 $ (30.2) $ 632.9
Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations
For the Year Ended December 31, 2000
(dollars in millions)
Non-
Parent Guarantor Guarantor
Consolidated Eliminations Company Subsidiaries Subsidiaries
Net sales. 1,447.8 $ (157.6) $ 795.3 $ 152.8 $ 657.3
Cost of sales. 574.3 (157.6) 288.8 116.3 326.8
Gross profit 873.5 - 506.5 36.5 330.5
Selling, general and administrative expenses.. 801.8 - 415.7 71.2 314.9
Restructuring costs and Other, NEL...........c.cccrrrrerirnercenrneee s 54.1 - 19.8 1.4 329
Operating income (loss) 17.6 - 71.0 (36.1) (17.3)
Other expenses (income):
Interest expense, net.... 142.4 - 119.6 12.3 105
Loss (gain) on sale of product line, brands and facilities, net (10.8) - (118.7) (4.9 112.8
Miscellaneous, net. 5.4 - (2.5) (31.6) 39.5
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries. - (412.8) 224.9 186.7 1.2
Other expenses, net 137.0 (412.8) 223.3 162.5 164.0
L 0SS DEfOre iNCOME tAXES ........euvreireiieisireeiee e (119.4) 412.8 (152.3) (198.6) (181.3)
Provision for income taxes.... 8.6 - (24.3) 26.6 6.3
INBE 0SS, $ (1280) % 412.8 $ (128.0) $ (225.2) $ (187.6)
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flow

For the Year Ended December 31, 2000

(dollars in millions)

Non-
Parent Guarantor Guarantor
Consolidated Eliminations Company Subsidiaries Subsidiaries
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net cash (used for) provided by operating activities..........c.c.cooeevninnnns $ (84.0) - $ 79.9 $ (40.1) $ (123.8)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Capital expenditures (19.0) - (12.9) (1.1) (5.0)
Acquisition of technology rights... (3.0) - (3.0) - -
Proceeds from the sale of certain assets 344.1 - 180.9 64.9 98.3
Net cash provided by investing activities.... 322.1 - 165.0 63.8 93.3
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net (decrease) increase in short-term borrowings - third parties. (2.7) - - 0.1 (2.8)
Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt - third parties 339.1 - 286.7 16.1 36.3
Repayment of long-term debt - third parties..........c.c.coceeevnnicinnicnnns (538.7) - (428.6) (15.8) (94.3)
Intercompany dividends and net change in intercompany obligations...... - - (78.0) (26.8) 104.8
Net distribution from affiliate............cccoeoiriiiniiic e (1.4) - (1.4) - -
Net cash (used for) provided by financing activities. (203.7) - (221.3) (26.4) 44.0
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents.... (3.5) - - (0.1) (3.4)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents. 30.9 - 23.6 (2.8) 10.1
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period.. 25.4 - (12.8) 5.7 32.5
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 56.3 - $ 10.8 $ 2.9 $ 42.6
Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999
(dollars in millions)
Non-
Parent Guarantor Guarantor
Consolidated Eliminations Company Subsidiaries Subsidiaries
NEESAIES......oocviiiiiiici $ 1,709.9 $ (176.4) $ 748.3 $ 166.1 $ 971.9
Cost of sales 726.3 (176.4) 322.6 1314 448.7
Gross profit... 983.6 - 425.7 34.7 523.2
Selling, general and administrative expenses. 1,154.2 - 580.5 78.7 495.0
Restructuring costs and other, net 40.2 - 23.2 0.1 16.9
Operating (I0SS) INCOME........cuuimeriririreerireeeiseeee et eseeees (210.8) - (178.0) (44.1) 11.3
Other expenses (income):
Interest expense, net 145.1 - 122.5 5.0 17.6
Loss on sale of product line, brands and facilities, net. 0.9 - 0.9 - -
Miscellaneous, net. 3.8 - 9.2 (54.7) 67.7
Equity in earnings of subsidiarie: - (162.2) 86.3 77.2 (1.3)
Other expenses, net..... 149.8 (162.2) 200.5 27.5 84.0
L0SS bEfOre iNCOME tAXES ......veuuvririirceireiriseise et (360.6) 162.2 (378.5) (71.6) (72.7)
Provision for iNCOME tAXES..........cuueuiemiiiriireisiiee e 9.1 - (8.8) 75 10.4
NEEIOSS. ..o $ (369.7) % 162.2 $ (369.7) $ (79.1) $ (83.1)
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flow
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999
(dollars in millions)

Non-
Parent Guarantor Guarantor
Consolidated Eliminations Company Subsidiaries Subsidiaries
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net cash (used for) provided by operating activities................cccovveririnnns $ (81.7) $ - $ (30.4) $ 5.7 $ (57.0)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Capital EXPENAITUIES. ........c.eueieieeeieeeicce s (42.3) - (24.7) 0.2) (17.4)
Proceeds from the sale of certain assets.. 1.6 - 1.6 - -
Net cash used for investing aCtiVities...........coovrrrieeiennnrns e (40.7) - (23.1) (0.2) (17.4)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net increase in short-term borrowings - third parties.............ccccooeeveninee. 12.3 - - 12.3
Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt - third parties.... . 574.5 - 392.7 32.7 149.1
Repayment of long-term debt - third parties............c.cccoereevrinninniininns (464.9) - (388.8) (37.2) (38.9)
Intercompany dividends and net change in intercompany obligations....... - 51.9 (1.8) (50.1)
Net distribution from affiliate............cocooriiiinnnrrc s (1.0 - (1.0) - -
Proceeds from the issuance of debt - affiliates.. 67.1 - 67.1
Repayment of debt - affiliates..........ccoerriiiriri s (67.1) - (67.1)
Payment Of debt iSSUANCE COSES..........c.eurururiririrerieciceeisree s (3.5) - (3.5) - -
Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities................. 117.4 - 51.3 (6.3) 72.4
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents. . (4.3) - (0.1) (4.2)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents............c.cocoeriviecicninnn (9.3) - (2.2) 0.9) (6.2)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period.... 34.7 - (10.6) 6.7 38.6
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period............ccoevererrrirerrrinins $ 25.4 $ - $ (12.8) $ 5.8 $ 32.4

11. Financial Instruments

The fair value of the Company’s long-term debt is based on the quoted market prices for
the same issues or on the current rates offered to the Company for debt of the same remaining
maturities. The estimated fair value of long-term debt at December 31, 2001 and 2000 was
approximately $524.1 and $393.6 less than the carrying values of $1,643.6 and $1,563.1,
respectively.

Products Corporation also maintains standby and trade letters of credit with certain banks
for various corporate purposes under which Products Corporation is obligated, of which
approximately $27.3 and $23.1 (including amounts available under credit agreements in effect at
that time) were maintained at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Included in these
amounts are $10.1 and $14.2, respectively, in standby letters of credit, which support Products
Corporation’s self-insurance programs. The estimated liability under such programs is accrued by
Products Corporation.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities, trade

receivables, notes receivable, accounts payable and short-term borrowings approximate their fair
values.
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12. Income Taxes

In June 1992, Holdings, Revlon, Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries, and Mafco Holdings
entered into a tax sharing agreement (as subsequently amended, the “Tax Sharing Agreement”),
pursuant to which Mafco Holdings has agreed to indemnify Revlon, Inc. against federal, state or
local income tax liabilities of the consolidated or combined group of which Mafco Holdings (or a
subsidiary of Mafco Holdings other than Revlon, Inc. or its subsidiaries) is the common parent for
taxable periods beginning on or after January 1, 1992 during which Revlon, Inc. or a subsidiary of
Revlon, Inc. is a member of such group. Pursuant to the Tax Sharing Agreement, for all taxable
periods beginning on or after January 1, 1992, Revlon, Inc. will pay to Holdings, amounts equal to
the taxes that Revlon, Inc. would otherwise have to pay if it were to file separate federal, state or
local income tax returns (including any amounts determined to be due as a result of a
redetermination arising from an audit or otherwise of the consolidated or combined tax liability
relating to any such period which is attributable to Revlon, Inc.), except that Revlon, Inc. will not
be entitled to carry back any losses to taxable periods ending prior to January 1, 1992. No
payments are required by Revlon, Inc. if and to the extent Products Corporation is prohibited under
the Credit Agreement from making tax sharing payments to Revlon, Inc. The Credit Agreement
prohibits Products Corporation from making such tax sharing payments other than in respect of
state and local income taxes. Since the payments to be made under the Tax Sharing Agreement
will be determined by the amount of taxes that Revlon, Inc. would otherwise have to pay if it were
to file separate federal, state or local income tax returns, the Tax Sharing Agreement will benefit
Mafco Holdings to the extent Mafco Holdings can offset the taxable income generated by Revlon,
Inc. against losses and tax credits generated by Mafco Holdings and its other subsidiaries. The Tax
Sharing Agreement was amended, effective as of January 1, 2001, to eliminate a contingent
payment to Revlon, Inc. under certain circumstances in return for a $10 note with interest at 12%
and interest and principal payable by Mafco Holdings on December 31, 2005. As a result of net
operating tax losses and prohibitions under the Credit Agreement there were no federal tax
payments or payments in lieu of taxes pursuant to the Tax Sharing Agreement for 2001, 2000 or
1999. The Company has a liability of $0.9 to Holdings in respect of federal taxes for 1997 under
the Tax Sharing Agreement.

Pursuant to the asset transfer agreement referred to in Note 15, Products Corporation
assumed all tax liabilities of Holdings other than (i) certain income tax liabilities arising prior to
January 1, 1992 to the extent such liabilities exceeded reserves on Holdings’ books as of January 1,
1992 or were not of the nature reserved for and (ii) other tax liabilities to the extent such liabilities
are related to the business and assets retained by Holdings.

F-69



The Company’s loss before income taxes and the applicable provision (benefit) for income
taxes are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

Loss before income taxes: 2001 2000 1999
DOMESTIC.....civvveretetcteteee ettt et bbb, $ (796) $ 47.4) $ (289.1)
FOT@IGN. ...t (66.4) (73.7) (72.7)

$ (146.0) $ (121.1) 3 (361.8)
Provision for income taxes:
FRURTAL ...ttt $ - $ - $ -
State and 10Cal..........cccooeiiiiiiiice e 0.4 0.4 0.4
FOT@IGN. ...t 3.7 8.2 8.7
$ 41 $ 86 $ 9.1
CUITENL. ..ttt sttt st e $ 77 $ 85 $ 14.7
DETEITEA. . .ecivii e, - 0.8 3.3
Benefits of operating loss carryforwards.............cccceceeuenene (3.6) (1.9) (8.8)
Carryforward utilization applied to goodwill..................... - 0.7 -
Effect of enacted change of tax rates..........ccccoovvviieicnenn. - 0.5 (0.1)
$ 41  $ 86 $ 9.1

The effective tax rate on loss before income taxes is reconciled to the applicable statutory
federal income tax rate as follows:
Year Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999

Statutory federal incOme tax rate.........ccoceeeriereiennieneseinene (35.0) % (35.0) % (35.0) %
State and local taxes, net of federal income tax benefit............. 0.2 0.2 0.1
Foreign and U.S. tax effects attributable to

operations outside the U.S..........ccooeiiiienineineneceeee, 0.6 19 1.9
Nondeductible amortization eXPense..........cccceveeeeneiecenenennen, 15 2.0 1.0
Change in valuation allowance...........ccccevvvvevreseeseesnseeeeenns 29.0 10.7 34.6
Sale Of DUSINESSES.......ccvriiiirerirereee e 10.0 26.8 -
OFNBE bbb (3.4) 0.5 (0.1)
Effective rate........cooiicice e 29 % 71 % 25 %
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The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2001 and 2000 are presented below:
December 31,

Deferred tax assets: 2001 2000
Accounts receivable, principally due to doubtful accounts.............ccoveeeiienenee $ 29 % 2.6
INVENEOTIES. ...ttt bbbttt st eb e ne e 9.9 10.8
Net operating loss carryforwards - dOmESLIC............coeereienicienniie e 2374 225.7
Net operating loss carryforwards - foreign...........coceeeeivrienninieinseeceeee 128.2 119.6
Accruals and related FESEIVES. ..o 10.1 15.6
EMPIOYEEe DENETILS. ... e 36.7 41.2
State aNd 10CAI TAXES. ......cverrieerrere e 12.2 131
Advertising, sales discounts and returns and coupon redemptions.............c....... 27.6 28.3
ONET ...t 24.9 29.6

Total gross deferred taXx aSSELS.......covveirieerseiessiere e 489.9 486.5
Less valuation allOWANCE...........cuevieeririeieeie st se s (451.8) (437.5)
Net deferred taX @SSELS. . ... . 38.1 49.0
Deferred tax liabilities:
Plant, equipment and Other @SSELS...........ccvieereeieinerisieireese e (31.3) (42.7)
(@ 19T SO USRS (3.5 (3.0)
Total gross deferred tax liabilities...........ccooeoeiriniiiiiiie e (34.8) (45.7)
NEt AEFErTed tAX ASSEL........c.veverieereiieret ettt bes s $ 33 % 3.3

In assessing the recoverability of its deferred tax assets,
managenent considers whether it is nore likely than not that sone
portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.
The ultinmate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon
the generation of future taxable incone during the periods in
whi ch those tenporary differences becone deductible. Managenent
consi ders the schedul ed reversal of deferred tax liabilities,
projected future taxable incone, and tax planning strategies in
maki ng this assessnent. Based upon the |evel of historical
taxabl e income for certain international nmarkets and projections
for future taxable inconme over the periods in which the deferred
tax assets are deductible, managenent believes it is nore likely
than not that the Conpany will realize the benefits of certain
deducti bl e differences existing at Decenber 31, 2001.

The valuation allowance increased by $14.3 during 2001,
decreased by $6.3 during 2000 and increased by $60.8 during 1999.

During 2001, 2000 and 1999, certain of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries used operating
loss carryforwards to credit the current provision for income taxes by $3.6, $1.9, and $8.8,
respectively. Certain other foreign operations generated losses during 2001, 2000 and 1999 for
which the potential tax benefit was reduced by a valuation allowance. At December 31, 2001, the
Company had tax loss carryforwards of approximately $1,039.9 that expire in future years as
follows: 2002-$31.3; 2003-$23.8; 2004-$29.6; 2005-$45.7; 2006 and beyond-$749.7; unlimited-
$159.8. The Company could receive the benefit of such tax loss carryforwards only to the extent it
has taxable income during the carryforward periods in the applicable jurisdictions. In addition,
based upon certain factors, including the amount and nature of gains or losses recognized by
Mafco Holdings and its other subsidiaries included in the consolidated federal income tax return,
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the amount of net operating loss carryforwards attributable to Mafco Holdings and such other
subsidiaries and the amounts of alternative minimum tax liability of Mafco Holdings and such
other subsidiaries, pursuant to the terms of the Tax Sharing Agreement, all or a portion of the
domestic operating loss carryforwards may not be available to the Company should the Company
cease being a member of the Mafco Holdings consolidated federal income tax return.
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In February 2002, Products Corporation sold its Benelux operations. The effect of this
transaction reduced the amount of losses available for carryover by $21 (See Note 21).

Appropriate United States and foreign income taxes have been accrued on foreign earnings
that have been or are expected to be remitted in the near future. Unremitted earnings of foreign
subsidiaries which have been, or are currently intended to be, permanently reinvested in the future
growth of the business aggregated approximately nil at December 31, 2001, excluding those
amounts which, if remitted in the near future, would not result in significant additional taxes under
tax statutes currently in effect.

13. Postretirement Benefits
Pensi on:

A substantial portion of the Company’s employees in the United States are covered by
defined benefit pension plans. The Company uses September 30 as its measurement date for
plan obligations and assets.

O her Postretirenment Benefits:

The Conpany al so has sponsored an unfunded retiree benefit
pl an, which provides death benefits payable to beneficiaries
of a Ilimted nunber of enployees and forner enployees.
Participation in this plan is limted to participants enrolled
as of Decenber 31, 1993. The Conpany also admnisters a
medi cal insurance plan on behalf of Holdings, the cost of
whi ch has been apportioned to Holdings. The Conpany uses
Septenber 30 as its neasurenent date for plan obligations and
assets.
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I nformation regarding the Conpany’s significant pension and
other postretirement plans at the dates indicated is as
fol |l ows:

Other Postretirement

Pension Plans Benefits
December 31,

Change in Benefit Obligation: 2001 2000 2001 2000
Benefit obligation - September 30 of prior year.................... $ (4206) $ (4182) $ 9.7 $ (9.2
SBIVICE COSL....viuiviiie ittt ettt et (10.2) (12.0) - -
INEEFESE COSL.....eveviteii et (28.0) (29.2) (0.8) (0.7)
Plan amendments..........ccooenennineenere e 111 (1.5) - -
Actuarial (10SS) gaiN........cccoeirrireireiee s (11.1) 9.4 (1.0) (0.4)
CUMAIIMENTS. .....ceiiie e 7.1 0.7 - -
Benefits Paid.........ccoeoeiriiiiee e 22.3 21.2 0.7 0.6
Foreign eXChange.........c.ccoerrerreieeeiene e 1.6 35 - -
Plan participant contributions.............ccoccoevroeiniennienncncene. (0.4) 0.7 - -
DISPOSILION. ...ttt 3.3 - - -
SEIEMENTS. ...t 2.1 6.2 - -
Benefit obligation - September 30 of current year................ (422.8) (420.6) (10.8) (9.7)

Change in Plan Assets:

Fair value of plan assets - September 30 of prior year.......... 343.4 323.7 - -
Actual return on plan assets..........ccovvervreineineeieseee s (38.3) 39.9 - -
Employer contributions............ccvvceeveiesenese i 8.1 9.6 0.7 0.6
ASSELS SOIU....eveeieiee e (3.6) (2.8) - -
Plan participant contributions.............cceeevveeeevnivnsierneneenens 0.4 0.7 - -
Benefits Paid........cccoveivieirieiieise e (22.3) (21.2) 0.7 (0.6)
FOreign eXChange........ccocovrveerieeieeerene e s s eeseeees (1.2) (3.1) - -
SEEIEMENTS.....eeieccee et (3.9) (3.4) - -
Fair value of plan assets - September 30 of current year....... 282.7 343.4 - -

Funded status of plans.........coccoovrrineinecc s (140.2) (77.2) (10.8) (9.7

Amounts contributed to plans during fourth quarter................... 1.4 11 0.1 0.1

Unrecognized net 10SS (QaiN)........covrvrerirerrenieinieeineeeeseeie e 69.7 (1.6) - (1.1)

Unrecognized prior SErVICE COSL........ccouevrurireeiereee s sieesieieens (6.6) 5.0 - -

Unrecognized Nt @SSEL..........cvreirereriee et (0.3) (0.5) - -
Accrued DENEfit COSL........cveviieiieriece e, $ (75.9) $ (732) $ (107) $ (10.7)

Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets
consist of:

Prepaid EXPENSES. ......cevucvrcveiecveseeiese st eeaes e besee e, $ 44 $ 77 % -3 -
Other long-term liabilities...........ccooeivieiiiiicie e (127.3) (85.5) (10.7) (10.7)
INtaNgible aSSEL.........ccvvveiirieirci e 0.5 0.5 - -
Accumulated other comprehensive 10SS...........ccoccevverereennns 46.1 3.6 - -
Other [oNg-term aSSEtS.......covivrvrerereresie e rereres e s e eens 0.4 0.5 -

$ (7159 $ (7132) $ (107) $ (1-0.7)

With respect to the above accrued benefit costs, the Company has recorded a receivable from affiliates of $1.2
and $1.0 at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively, relating to Holdings’ participation in the Company’s pension
plans and $1.3 and $1.4 at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively, for other postretirement benefits costs
attributable to Holdings.
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The following weighted-average assumptions were used in accounting for the plans:

U.S. Plans International Plans
2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999
DiSCOUNL FALE.......cveeeiieciece e 7.0% 7.5% 7.5% 5.8% 6.5% 6.5%
Expected return on plan assets.........c.ccceevrervrennnn. 9.5 9.5 9.5 8.5 9.0 9.2
Rate of future compensation increases.................... 5.0 5.3 5.3 3.7 4.5 45

The components of net periodic benefit cost for the plans are as follows:

Pension Plans Other Postretirement Benefits
Year Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999

SEIVICE COSLuuvuvrenrrrerirereesirsesessseeessseenens $ 102 $ 120 $ 160 $ - $ - $ 0.1

INLErest COSt.......cvrverirrieiiereee e 28.0 29.2 28.7 0.8 0.7 0.7
Expected return on plan assets................. (30.8) (30.1) (26.6) - - -
Amortization of prior service cost............ 0.9 1.7 1.7 - - -
Amortization of net transition asset.......... 0.2) (0.2) (0.2) - - -

Amortization of actuarial loss (gain)........ 0.7 1.0 5.0 (0.1) (0.1) (0.3)
Settlement gain.........coccevvvieivreiernecnieenns 0.8 (0.1) - - - -
Curtailment 10SS (gain)........ccoevvrerereenens 1.5 (0.4) - - - -

9.3 13.1 24.6 0.7 0.6 0.5

Portion allocated to Holdings................... (0.3) (0.3) (0.3) - 0.1

$ 90 $ 128 $ 243 § 07 % 06 $ 0.6

Were the accumulated benefit obligation exceeded the
related fair value of plan assets, the projected benefit
obl i gation, accunul ated benefit obligation, and fair val ue of
pl an assets for the Conpany’s pension plans are as foll ows:

December 31,

2001 2000 1999
Projected benefit 0bligation.............c.covvveveericiiii e, $ 4196 $ 605 $ 612
Accumulated benefit OblIgation..........cccccceie e 402.9 53.9 53.0
Fair value of plan @SSetS.......c..oii i 280.0 5.0 0.7

14. Stock Compensation Plan

Since March 5, 1996, Revlon, Inc. has had the Amended Stock Plan, which is a stock-based
compensation plan and is described below. Revlon, Inc. applies APB Opinion No. 25 and its
related interpretations in accounting for the Amended Stock Plan. Under APB Opinion No. 25,
because the exercise price of Revlon, Inc.’s employee stock options under the Amended Stock Plan
equals the market price of the underlying stock on the date of grant, no compensation cost has been
recognized. Had compensation cost for the Amended Stock Plan been determined consistent with
SFAS No. 123, Revlon, Inc.’s net loss and net loss per diluted share of $153.7 and $2.94,
respectively, for 2001, $129.7 and $2.49, respectively, for 2000, and $370.9 and $7.13,
respectively, for 1999 would have been changed to the pro forma amounts of $163.3 and $3.13,
respectively, for 2001, $140.7 and $2.70, respectively, for 2000, and $396.6 and $7.62,
respectively, for 1999. The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of the grant
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model assuming no dividend yield, expected volatility of
approximately 68% in 2001, 69% in 2000 and 68% in 1999; weighted average risk-free interest
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rate of 5.07% in 2001, 6.53% in 2000, and 5.48% in 1999; and a seven-year expected average life
for the Amended Stock Plan’s options issued in 2001, 2000 and 1999. The effects of applying
SFAS No. 123 in this pro forma disclosure are not necessarily indicative of future amounts.

Under the Amended Stock Plan, awards may be granted to employees and directors of
Revlon, Inc., and its subsidiaries for up to an aggregate of 8.5 million shares of Revlon, Inc.
Class A Common Stock. Non-qualified options granted under the Amended Stock Plan have a
term of 10 years during which the holder can purchase shares of Revlon, Inc. Class A Common
Stock at an exercise price, which must be not less than the market price on the date of the grant.
Option grants vest over service periods that range from one to five years, except as disclosed
below. Options granted in February 1999 with an original four-year vesting term were modified
in May 1999 to allow the options to become fully vested on the first anniversary date of the
grant. Options granted in May 2000 under the Amended Stock Plan vest 25% on each
anniversary of the grant date and will become 100% vested on the fourth anniversary of the grant
date; provided that an additional 25% of such options would vest on each subsequent anniversary
date of the grant if the Company achieved certain performance objectives relating to the
Company’s operating income for the fiscal year preceding such anniversary date, which
objectives were not achieved in 2000 or 2001. During each of 2001, 2000 and 1999, the
Company granted to Mr. Perelman, Chairman of the Executive Committee, options to purchase
225,000, 300,000 and 300,000, respectively, shares of Revlon, Inc. Class A Common Stock,
which grants will vest 25% on each anniversary date of the grant and will become 100% vested
on the fourth anniversary date of the grant date as to the 2001 grant, will vest in full on the fifth
anniversary of the grant date as to the 2000 grant and which vested 100% on the date of grant as
to the 1999 grant. At December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 there were 3,296,133, 3,009,908 and
1,850,050 options exercisable under the Amended Stock Plan, respectively.

A summary of the status of the Amended Stock Plan as of December 31, 2001, 2000 and
1999 and changes during the years then ended is presented below:

Shares Weighted Average
000 Exercise Price

Outstanding at December 31, 1998...... 3,764.5 $32.71
Granted........cooevveneineese e 2,456.7 16.89
EXErcised......ccoovvvvenivrniieesese e, (5.8) 27.94
Forfeited........oooviininieeeen, (444.2) 27.03
Outstanding at December 31, 1999...... 5,771.2 26.42
Granted........coovevvenenenese e 1,769.1 7.15
EXEICISEd. ..o, - -

Forfeited........ocooviniie e, (936.8) 24.06
Outstanding at December 31, 2000...... 6,603.5 21.59
Granted........cooeevveneinencse e 1,087.6 5.69
EXErcised......cccovvvvvvnivniniieeiese e, (0.2) 7.06
Forfeited.......ccoovvveieeiec s (788.8) 19.16
Outstanding at December 31, 2001...... 6,902.1 19.37
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The weighted average grant date fair value of options granted during 2001, 2000 and 1999
approximated $3.82, $4.58 and $10.65, respectively.
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The following table summarizes information about the Amended Stock Plan’s options
outstanding, at December 31, 2001:

Outstanding Exercisable
Weighted
Range Average Weighted Weighted
of Number Years Average Number Average
Exercise Prices of Options Remaining Exercise Price of Options Exercise Price
$4.00 to $6.88 1,193.6 9.35 $ 5.49 61.4 $ 4.81
7.06 to 10.44 1,670.5 8.30 7.80 266.2 7.10
15.00 to 24.00 1,400.1 6.16 18.03 1,354.3 18.10
24.131t0 31.94 1,242.5 5.84 28.40 997.7 29.43
34.00 to 53.56 1,395.4 5.83 38.39 616.5 35.43
4.00 to 53.56 6,902.1 3,296.1

The Amended Stock Plan also provides that restricted stock may be awarded to employees and directors of
Revlon, Inc. and its subsidiaries. On June 18, 2001 (the “Grant Date”), the Compensation Committee awarded 120,000
shares of restricted stock to Mr. Perelman as a director of the Company. The 2001 restricted stock awards are subject
to execution of a Restricted Stock Agreement by each grantee: Provided the grantee remains continuously employed
by the Company (or, in the case of Mr. Perelman, he continuously provides services as a director to the Company), the
2001 restricted stock awards will vest as to one-third of the restricted shares on the day after which the 20-day average
of the closing price of Revlon, Inc.’s Class A Common Stock on the New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE”) equals
or exceeds $20.00, an additional one-third of such restricted shares will vest on the day after which the 20-day average
of the closing price of Revlon, Inc.’s Class A Common Stock on the NYSE equals or exceeds $25.00 and the balance
will vest on the day after which the 20-day average of the closing price of the Company’s Class A Common Stock on
the NYSE equals or exceeds $30.00, provided that (i) subject to clause (ii) below, no portion of the restricted stock
awards will vest until the second anniversary following the Grant Date, (ii) all of the shares of restricted stock will vest
immediately in the event of a "change of control" of Revlon, Inc., and (iii) all of the shares of restricted stock which
have not previously vested will fully vest on the third anniversary of the Grant Date. No dividends will be paid on
unvested restricted stock. At December 31, 2001, there were 670,000 shares of restricted stock outstanding, and
unvested, under the Amended Stock Plan.

15. Related Party Transactions

Transfer Agreements

In June 1992, Revlon, Inc. and Products Corporation entered into an asset transfer
agreement with Holdings and certain of its wholly-owned subsidiaries (the "Asset Transfer
Agreement"), and Revlon, Inc. and Products Corporation entered into a real property asset transfer
agreement with Holdings (the "Real Property Transfer Agreement™ and, together with the Asset
Transfer Agreement, the "Transfer Agreements™), and pursuant to such agreements, on June 24,
1992 Holdings transferred assets to Products Corporation and Products Corporation assumed all
the liabilities of Holdings, other than certain specifically excluded assets and liabilities (the
liabilities excluded are referred to as the "Excluded Liabilities™). Certain consumer products lines
sold in demonstrator assisted distribution channels considered not integral to Revlon, Inc.’s
business and which historically had not been profitable (the "Retained Brands") and certain other
assets and liabilities were retained by Holdings. Holdings agreed to indemnify Revlon, Inc. and
Products Corporation against losses arising from the Excluded Liabilities, and Revlon, Inc. and
Products Corporation agreed to indemnify Holdings against losses arising from the liabilities
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assumed by Products Corporation. The amounts reimbursed by Holdings to Products Corporation
for the Excluded Liabilities for 2001, 2000 and 1999 were $0.2, $0.4 and $0.5, respectively.

Certain assets and liabilities relating to divested businesses were transferred to Products
Corporation on the transfer date and any remaining balances as of December 31 of the applicable
year have been reflected in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets as of such dates. At
December 31, 2001 and 2000, the amounts reflected in the Company’s Consolidated Balance
Sheets aggregated a net liability of $21.4 and $23.2, respectively, of which $3.0 and $4.8,
respectively, are included in accrued expenses and other and $18.4 is included in other long-term
liabilities as of both dates.

Reimbursement Agreements

Revlon, Inc., Products Corporation and MacAndrews Holdings have entered into
reimbursement agreements (the "Reimbursement Agreements™) pursuant to which (i) MacAndrews
Holdings is obligated to provide (directly or through affiliates) certain professional and
administrative services, including employees, to Revlon, Inc. and its subsidiaries, including
Products Corporation, and purchase services from third party providers, such as insurance, legal
and accounting services and air transportation services, on behalf of Revlon, Inc. and its
subsidiaries, including Products Corporation, to the extent requested by Products Corporation, and
(i) Products Corporation is obligated to provide certain professional and administrative services,
including employees, to MacAndrews Holdings (and its affiliates) and purchase services from third
party providers, such as insurance and legal and accounting services, on behalf of MacAndrews
Holdings (and its affiliates) to the extent requested by MacAndrews Holdings, provided that in
each case the performance of such services does not cause an unreasonable burden to MacAndrews
Holdings or Products Corporation, as the case may be. Products Corporation reimburses
MacAndrews Holdings for the allocable costs of the services purchased for or provided to Products
Corporation and its subsidiaries and for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection
with the provision of such services. MacAndrews Holdings (or such affiliates) reimburses
Products Corporation for the allocable costs of the services purchased for or provided to
MacAndrews Holdings (or such affiliates) and for the reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred
in connection with the purchase or provision of such services. The net amounts reimbursed by
MacAndrews Holdings to Products Corporation for the services provided under the
Reimbursement Agreements for 2001, 2000 and 1999, were $1.6, $0.9 and $0.5, respectively.
Each of Revlon, Inc. and Products Corporation, on the one hand, and MacAndrews Holdings, on
the other, has agreed to indemnify the other party for losses arising out of the provision of services
by it under the Reimbursement Agreements other than losses resulting from its willful misconduct
or gross negligence. The Reimbursement Agreements may be terminated by either party on 90
days' notice. Products Corporation does not intend to request services under the Reimbursement
Agreements unless their costs would be at least as favorable to Products Corporation as could be
obtained from unaffiliated third parties.

Tax Sharing Agreement
Holdings, Revlon, Inc., Products Corporation and certain of its subsidiaries and Mafco
Holdings are parties to the Tax Sharing Agreement, which is described in Note 12. Since

payments to be made under the Tax Sharing Agreement will be determined by the amount of taxes
that Revlon, Inc. would otherwise have to pay if it were to file separate federal, state or local
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income tax returns, the Tax Sharing Agreement will benefit Mafco Holdings to the extent Mafco
Holdings can offset the taxable income generated by Revlon, Inc. against losses and tax credits
generated by Mafco Holdings and its other subsidiaries. There were no cash payments in respect
of federal taxes made by Revlon, Inc. pursuant to the Tax Sharing Agreement for 2001, 2000 and
1999.

Registration Rights Agreement

Prior to the consummation of Revlon, Inc.’s initial public equity offering, Revlon, Inc. and
Revlon Worldwide Corporation (subsequently merged into REV Holdings), the then direct parent
of Revlon, Inc., entered into the Registration Rights Agreement pursuant to which REV Holdings
and certain transferees of Revlon, Inc.'s Common Stock held by REV Holdings (the "Holders")
have the right to require Revlon, Inc. to register all or part of the Company’s Class A Common
Stock owned by such Holders and the Company’s Class A Common Stock issuable upon
conversion of the Company’s Class B Common Stock owned by such Holders under the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act™) (a "Demand Registration™); provided that Revlon,
Inc. may postpone giving effect to a Demand Registration up to a period of 30 days if Revlon, Inc.
believes such registration might have a material adverse effect on any plan or proposal by Revlon,
Inc. with respect to any financing, acquisition, recapitalization, reorganization or other material
transaction, or if Revlon, Inc. is in possession of material non-public information that, if publicly
disclosed, could result in a material disruption of a major corporate development or transaction
then pending or in progress or in other material adverse consequences to Revlon, Inc. In addition,
the Holders have the right to participate in registrations by Revlon, Inc. of its Class A Common
Stock (a "Piggyback Registration™). The Holders will pay all out-of-pocket expenses incurred in
connection with any Demand Registration. Revlon, Inc. will pay any expenses incurred in
connection with a Piggyback Registration, except for underwriting discounts, commissions and
expenses attributable to the shares of the Company’s Class A Common Stock sold by such
Holders.

Other

Pursuant to a lease dated April 2, 1993 (the "Edison
Lease"), Holdings leased to Products Corporation the Edison
research and devel opnent facility for a term of up to 10 years
with an annual rent of $1.4 and certain shared operating expenses
payabl e by Products Corporation, which, together with the annual

rent, were not to exceed $2.0 per year. |In August 1998, Hol di ngs
sold the Edison facility to an wunrelated third party, which
assuned substantially all liability for environnmental clains and

conpliance <costs relating to the Edison facility, and in
connection with the sale Products Corporation termnated the
Edi son Lease and entered into a new |lease with the new owner.
Holdings agreed to indemify Products Corporation through
Septenber 1, 2013 to the extent rent under the new | ease exceeds
rent that would have been payable under the term nated Edison
Lease had it not been termnated. The net anounts reinbursed by
Holdings to Products Corporation with respect to the Edison
facility for 2001, 2000 and 1999 were $0.2, $0.2 and $0.2,
respectively.
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Effective September 2001, Revlon, Inc. acquired from Holdings all the assets and liabilities
of the Charles of the Ritz business (which Revlon, Inc. contributed to Products Corporation in the
form of a capital contribution), in consideration for 400,000 newly issued shares of Revlon, Inc.’s
Class A Common Stock and 4,333 shares of newly issued voting (with 433,333 votes in the
aggregate) Series B Preferred Stock which are convertible into 433,333 shares in the aggregate of
Revlon, Inc.’s Class A Common Stock, which conversion rights are subject to approval by the
stockholders of Revlon, Inc. at the 2002 Annual Meeting. As Holdings and Products Corporation
are under common control, the transaction has been accounted for at historical cost in a manner
similar to that of a pooling of interests and, accordingly, all prior period financial statements
presented have been restated as if the acquisition took place at the beginning of such periods. An
investment banking firm rendered its written opinion that the terms of the transaction were fair
from a financial standpoint to Revlon, Inc. The effect of the acquisition was to increase both
operating income and net income by $2.3, $0.9 and $0.6 for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
The net equity (deficit) of the Charles of the Ritz business of $0.7 and $(0.6) is included in total
stockholder’s deficiency at December 31, 2001 and December 31, 2000, respectively.

During 2001, Products Corporation leased certain facilities to MacAndrews & Forbes or its
affiliates pursuant to occupancy agreements and leases. These included space at Products
Corporation's New York headquarters and through January 31, 2001 at Products Corporation's
offices in London. The rent paid to Products Corporation for 2001, 2000 and 1999 was $0.5, $0.9
and $1.1, respectively.

Products Corporation's Credit Agreenment and the 12% Notes
are supported by, anong other things, guarantees from
Revlon, 1Inc., and, subject to certain limted exceptions,

all of the donestic subsidiaries of Products Corporation.

The obligations under such guarantees are secured by, anong
ot her things, the capital stock of Products Corporation and,

subject to certain Iimted exceptions, the capital stock of

all of Products Corporation’s donestic subsidiaries and 66%
of the capital stock of Products Corporation’s and its
donmestic subsidiaries’ first-tier foreign subsidiaries.

Products Corporation has received a commtnent from
Maf co Hol dings that it is prepared to provide, if necessary,
addi tional financial support to Products Corporation of up
to $40 on appropriate ternms through Decenber 31, 2003.

During 2000 and 1999, Products Corporation made advances of $0.1 and $0.4,
respectively, to Mr. Jeffrey Nugent, former President and CEO, pursuant to his employment
agreement for relocation expenses, which advances bear interest at the applicable federal rate.

During 2000, Products Corporation made an advance of $0.8 to Mr. Douglas Greeff, Executive Vice
President and CFO, pursuant to his employment agreement, which bears interest at the applicable federal rate, of
which $0.2 was repaid during 2001.

M. Nugent’s spouse provided consulting services in 2000 and
2001 for product and concept developnent, for which Products
Corporation paid her $0.1 in 2001.

During 1997, Products Corporation provided licensing services to a company that was its
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affiliate during 1997 and part of 1998. In connection with the termination of the licensing
arrangement and its agreement to provide consulting services during 1998, Products Corporation
received payments of $2.0 in 1998 and an additional $1.0 in 1999.

A conpany that was an affiliate of the Conpany during part
of 1999 assenbled |lipstick cases for Products Corporation.
Products Corporation paid approximately $0.1 for such services
for 1999.

During 2001, 2000 and 1999, Products Corporation made
payments of $0.1, $0.1 and $0.1, respectively, to a fitness
center, in which an interest is owned by nenbers of the
imediate famly of M. Donald Drapkin, who is a nenber of the
Conpany’s Board of Directors, for discounted health club dues
for an executive health program of Products Corporation.

During 2001 and 2000, Products Corporation nmade paynents of
$0.3 and $0.2, respectively to Ms. Ellen Barkin (spouse of M.
Perel man) under an agreenent pursuant to which she provided
voi ceover services for certain of t he Conpany' s
advertisenments, which paynments were conpetitive with industry
rates for simlarly situated tal ent.

The law firm of which M. Edward Landau (a director) is O
Counsel, Wl f, Block, Schorr and Solis-Cohen LLP, provided I egal
services to the Conpany during 2001 and 2000, but did not provide
any such services in 1999 and it is anticipated that such firm
wi |l continue to provide such services in 2002.

An investnent bank of which M. Vernon Jordan becane a
Managing Director in January 2000, Lazard Freres & Co. LLC
provi ded investnent banking services to Revlon, Inc. and its
subsidi ari es during 2001.

During 2001, 2000 and 1999 Products Corporation placed
advertisenents in nmagazi nes and other nedia operated by Mrtha
Stewart Living Ominedia, Inc. (“MSLO), which is controlled
by Ms. Stewart, who also serves as its Chairman and Chi ef
Executive O ficer. The Conpany paid MSLO $2.1, $1.5 and $1.8
for such services in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively, which
fees were less than 1% of our estimate of MSLO s consol i dated
gross revenues for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The
Conpany’s decision to place advertisenents for its products in
MSLO s nagazi nes and other nedia was based upon their popular
appeal to wonen and the rates paid were conpetitive wth
industry rates for simlarly situated magazi nes and nedi a.

During 2001, 2000 and 1999, Products Corporation obtained public relations and
advertising services from various subsidiaries of WPP Group plc (“WPP”). Ms. Robinson is
employed by one of WPP’s subsidiaries, however, Ms. Robinson is neither an executive officer
of, nor does she hold any material equity interest in, WPP. The Company paid WPP $2.0, $3.2
and $0.3 for such services in 2001, 2000 and 1999, which fees were less than 1% of our estimate
of WPP’s consolidated gross revenues for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The Company’s
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decision to engage WPP was based upon their professional expertise in understanding the
advertising and public relations needs of the consumer packaged goods industry, as well as their
global presence in many of the international markets in which the Company operates, and the
rates paid were competitive with industry rates for similarly situated public relations and
advertising agencies

In Decenber 2001, Products Corporation enployed in a junior
entry-level marketing position the daughter of the Chairmn of
t he Conmpany’s Executive Conmittee, with conpensation paid for
2001 of l|ess than $5, 000.

During 2001, Products Corporation enployed in a junior
entry-level marketing position the daughter of M. Donald
Drapkin, who is a nenber of the Conpany’s Board of Directors,
wi th conpensation paid for 2001 of |ess than $60, 000.
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16. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company currently leases manufacturing, executive, including research and
development, and sales facilities and various types of equipment under operating lease agreements.
Rental expense was $29.0, $33.0 and $42.8 for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and
1999, respectively. Minimum rental commitments under all noncancelable leases, including those
pertaining to idled facilities, with remaining lease terms in excess of one year from December 31,
2001 aggregated $67.1; such commitments for each of the five years subsequent to December 31,
2001 are $26.1, $14.1, $5.2, $3.7 and $4.4, respectively. Such amounts exclude the minimum
rentals to be received by the Company in the future under noncancelable subleases of $10.7.

The Conpany has m ni mum purchase commtnents with suppliers
of finished goods, raw materials and conponents. The m ni num
purchase conm tnents under these agreenents aggregated $194.5;
such commtnments for each of the five years subsequent to
Decenber 31, 2001 are $52.8 $26.6, $21.6, $21.3 and $21.3,
respectively.

The Company and its subsidiaries are defendants in litigation and proceedings involving
various matters. In the opinion of the Company’s management, based upon advice of its counsel
handling such litigation and proceedings, adverse outcomes, if any, will not result in a material
effect on the Company’s consolidated financial condition or results of operations.

On April 17, 2000, the plaintiffs in the six purported
class actions filed in Cctober and Novenber 1999 by each of
Thomas Conport, Boaz Spitz, Felix Ezeir and Any Hof f man, Ted
Parris, Jerry Krimand Dan Gavish individually and all egedly
on behalf of others simlarly situated to them against
Revlon, Inc., certain of its present and forner officers and
directors and the parent of Revlon, Inc., REV Holdings,
al I egi ng anong other things, violations of Rule 10b-5 under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, filed an anended
conpl aint, which consolidated all of the actions under the

caption “In Re Revlon, 1Inc. Securities Litigation” and
limted the alleged class to security purchasers during the
period from Cctober 29, 1997 through October 1, 1998. In

June 2000, the defendants noved to dismss the anended
conplaint, which notion was denied in substantial part in
March 2001. The Conpany believes the allegations contained
in the amended conplaint are without nmerit and is vigorously
def endi ng agai nst them

A purported class action |lawsuit was filed on Septenber
27, 2000, in the United States District Court for the
Southern District of New York on behalf of Dan Gavish,
Tricia Fontan and Walter Fontan individually and allegedly
on behalf of all others simlarly situated who purchased the
securities of Revlon, Inc. and REV Hol di ngs between Cctober
2, 1998 and Septenber 30, 1999 (the "Second Gavi sh Action").
In Novenmber 2001, plaintiffs anmended their conplaint. The
anended conpl ai nt all eges, anong other things, that Revlon,
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Inc., certain of its present and forner officers and
directors and REV Holdings violated, anong other things,

Rul e 10b-5 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. In
Decenber 2001, the defendants noved to dism ss the anended
conpl ai nt . The Conpany believes the allegations in the

anended conplaint are without nerit and, if its notion to
dismss is not granted, intends to vigorously defend agai nst
t hem
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17. Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of the unaudited quarterly results of operations:

Year Ended December 31, 2001

1st 2nd 3rd 4th
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter (c)
NEE SAIES......ocvieieeiicirt e $ 3241 % 3377 % 3272 % 3325
GroSS Profit.......cccoeeueeciniie e 192.5 194.7 197.4 192.7
NEL 10SS (@) -v-vrervrererrrrrirerirereesieisesi s (46.5) (56.0) (22.9) (28.3)
Basic loss per common share:
Net loss per common share............cccoeveviveciennns $ (0.89) $ (1.07) $ (0.44) $ (0.54)
Diluted loss per common share:
Net loss per common share............cccoeveivieeiennns $ (0.89) $ (1.07) $ (0.44) $ (0.54)

Year Ended December 31, 2000

st 2nd 3rd 4th
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

NEL SAIES......veeeeeeeeerirererreeeeees et ens $ 4496 $ 3398 $ 3448 $ 313.6
GroSS Profit......ccoceeeccivrecie e, 274.1 210.1 216.8 172.5
NEL 10SS (D)..cvevevirireriri s (27.7) (24.6) (26.1) (51.3)
Basic loss per common share:

Net loss per common share...........ccccoceevviiiirennn, $ (053) $ 0.47) $ (0.50) $ (0.98)
Diluted loss per common share:

Net loss per common share............cccceveiveciennns $ (0.53) $ 0.47) $ (0.50) $ (0.98)

(a) Includes restructuring costs of $14.6, $7.9, $3.0 and $12.6 in the first, second, third and
fourth quarters, respectively. (See Note 2).

(b) Includes restructuring costs of $9.5, $5.1, $13.7 and $25.8 in the first, second, third
and fourth quarters, respectively. (See Note 2).

(c) In the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company recorded a charge of $6.9 related to
increased sales returns, trade spending and inventory adjustments in the Company’s Argentine
operations.

18. Geographic, Financial and Other Information

The Company manages its business on the basis of one reportable operating segment. See

Note 1 for a brief description of the Company’s business. As of December 31, 2001, the Company
had operations established in 20 countries outside of the United States and its products are sold
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throughout the world. The Company is exposed to the risk of changes in social, political and
economic conditions inherent in foreign operations and the Company’s results of operations and
the value of its foreign assets are affected by fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. The
Company’s operations in Brazil have accounted for approximately 3.2%, 5.1% and 4.3% of the
Company’s net sales for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. While the Company’s operations in
Brazil have historically been significant, as a result of the sale of the Company’s Colorama brand
in Brazil in July 2001, the Company’s ongoing operations in Brazil are no longer significant to the
Company’s consolidated ongoing operations. (See Note 3). Net sales by geographic area are
presented by attributing revenues from external customers on the basis of where the products are
sold. During 2001, 2000 and 1999, Wal-Mart and its affiliates worldwide accounted for
approximately 19.9%, 16.5% and 13.1%, respectively, of the Company’s consolidated net sales,
before the EITF Issue 01-9 adjustment. (See Note 1). As a result of the Company’s dispositions of
certain non-core assets, including certain international businesses, the Company expects that for
future periods a small number of other customers will, in the aggregate, account for a large portion
of the Company’s net sales. The Company’s loss of Wal-Mart or one or more other customers that
may account for a significant portion of the Company’s sales, or any significant decrease in sales
to any of these customers, could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business,
financial condition or results of operations. The Company has no reason to believe that any such
loss of customer or decrease in sales will occur. In January 2002, Kmart Corporation filed a
bankruptcy petition for reorganization under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. Less than
5% of the Company’s 2001 net sales were made to Kmart. The Company plans to continue doing
business with Kmart for the foreseeable future and accordingly, based upon the information
currently available, believes that Kmart’s bankruptcy proceedings will not have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, or results of operations.

During the first quarter of 2001, to reflect the integration of management reporting
responsibilities, the Company reclassified Canada’s results from its international operations to its
United States operations. The geographic information reflects this change for all periods
presented.
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Geographic Areas:
Net sales:

United States and Canada........

International...........c.ccevvvevevnee.

Long-lived assets:
United States .........covervreenen.

Classes of Similar Products:
Net sales:

Cosmetics, skin care and fragrances...........oceveveeeerrenns

Personal care and professional
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Year Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999

8522 $ 842.8 $ 908.4
48.8 53.0 46.4
901.0 895.8 954.8
420.5 552.0 755.1
13215 % 1,447.8 $ 1,709.9
December 31,

2001 2000

3645 % 398.8

25 8.1

367.0 406.9

117.7 167.2

4847  $ 574.1
Year Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
8594 % 908.2 $ 881.2
462.1 539.6 828.7

13215 % 1,447.8 $ 1,709.9




19. Effect of New Accounting Standard

I n Novenber of 2001, the EITF reached consensus on the
GQui del i nes, the second portion of which (fornmerly EITF | ssue 00-
25) addresses vendor incone statenent characterization of
consideration to a purchaser of the vendor’s products or
services, including the classification of slotting fees,
cooperative advertising arrangenments and buy-downs. Certain
pronoti onal paynments that are currently classified in SGRA
expenses be classified as a reduction of net sales. The inpact of
t he adoption of the second portion of the CGuidelines on the
consol idated financial statements will reduce both net sales and
S&RA expenses by equal and offsetting anmounts. The adoption wl|
not have any inpact on the Conpany’ s reported operating incone or
net | oss. The Conpany has adopted the second portion of the
Gui del i nes effective January 1, 2002.

The Conpany has quantified the reclassification for 2001,
2000 and 1999 as summari zed bel ow

For the Year Ended
December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000 December 31, 1999
As As As As As As
Reported Adjusted Reported Adjusted Reported Adjusted

Net SAlES........overeeerreieireeneireieene $ 13215 % 12776 $ 14478 $ 14094 $ 17099 $ 1,629.8
Cost OF SAlES.....cvvrerreeirierrereines 544.2 544.2 574.3 574.3 726.3 726.3
SGEA EXPENSES....vvvrrerrererssreeens 723.1 679.2 803.5 765.1 1,155.4 1,075.3
Operating income (10SS)..........c..... 16.1 16.1 159 159 (212.0) (212.0

20. Extraordinary Item

The extraordinary loss of $3.6 (net of taxes) in 2001
resulted primarily from the wite-off of financing costs in
connection wth the 2001 Refinanci ng Transacti ons.

21. Subsequent Events

In February 2002, Products Corporation conpleted the
di sposition of its subsidiaries that operated its marketing,
sales and distribution business in Belgium the Netherl ands
and Luxenmbourg (“Benel ux™). As part of this sale, Products
Corporation entered into a long-term distribution agreenent
W th the purchaser pursuant to which the purchaser distributes
the Conpany’s products in Benel ux. The purchase price
consisted principally of the assunption of certain liabilities
and deferred contingent purchase price of up to approximately
$3.3 to be received over approximately a seven-year period.
In connection with the disposition, the Conpany does not
anticipate a significant gain or |oss.
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Effective February 14, 2002, Jeffrey M. Nugent, the Company's former President and Chief
Executive Officer, resigned from employment with the Company. On February 19, 2002, the
Company announced its appointment of Jack L. Stahl as its President and Chief Executive Officer.

F-90



REVLON, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999

Year ended December 31, 2001:
Applied against asset accounts:

Allowance for doubtful accounts.................

Allowance for volume and early payment

ISCOUNES.....cvvieveierieee e

Year ended December 31, 2000:
Applied against asset accounts:

Allowance for doubtful accounts.................

Allowance for volume and early payment

ISCOUNES.....covierriericee e

Year ended December 31, 1999:
Applied against asset accounts:

Allowance for doubtful accounts.................

Allowance for volume and early payment

AISCOUNTS......covreecriieieeciee e

Notes:

(dollars in millions)

Schedule 11

Balance at Charged to

Beginning Cost and Other

of Year Expenses Deductions
$ 76 % 35 % 28 (@)
$ 85 $ 300 $ (31.4) (2
$ 146 §$ 09 $ 6.1) (1)
$ 126 $ 42 % (38.3) (2
$ 140 $ 77 % (71) (1)
$ 145 §$ 425 % (44.4) (2)

Balance
at End

of Year

8.3

7.1

7.6

8.5

14.6

12.6

(1) Doubtful accounts written off, less recoveries, reclassifications and foreign currency translation adjustments.

(2) Discounts taken, reclassifications and foreign currency translation adjustments.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the

Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

Revlon, Inc.
(Registrant)

By: /s/ Paul E. Shapiro By: /s/ Douglas H. Greeff By: /s/ Laurence Winoker
Paul E. Shapiro Douglas H. Greeff Laurence Winoker
Executive Vice President, Executive Vice Senior Vice President,
Chief Administrative Officer and President and Corporate Controller and

Principal Executive Officer (a) Chief Financial Officer Treasurer

Dated: February 25, 2002

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed

by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant on February 25, 2002 and in the capacities
indicated.

Signature Title

Chairman of the Board and Director

(Ronald O. Perelman)

Director

(Howard Gittis)

/s/ Paul E. Shapiro Executive Vice President, Chief Administrative Officer
and Principal Executive Officer (a)

(Paul E. Shapiro)

Director
(Donald G. Drapkin)
* Director
(Meyer Feldberg)
* Director

(Vernon E. Jordan)



*

(Edward J. Landau)

*

(Jerry W. Levin)

*

(Linda Gosden Robinson)

*

(Terry Semel)

*

(Martha Stewart)

@ Effective February 14, 2002, Jeffrey M. Nugent, the Company's former President and Chief
Executive Officer, resigned from employment with the Company. On February 19, 2002,
the Company announced its appointment of Jack L. Stahl as its President and Chief
Executive Officer.

* Robert K. Kretzman, by signing his name hereto, does hereby sign this report on behalf of
the directors of the registrant after whose typed names asterisks appear, pursuant to powers of
attorney duly executed by such directors and filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

By: /s/ Robert K. Kretzman

Robert K. Kretzman
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